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Dominion Resources is one of the
nation’s leading energy companies.
We're traded under the symbol “D”
on the New York Stock Exchange
and are proud to have the confi-
dence of more than 400,000 share-
holders. We’re also privileged to
serve 5.3 million retail energy cus-
tomers in nine states. As one of the
nation’s largest producers of natur-
al gas and electric power, we're

an established wholesale energy
marketer. Our $44.2 billion asset
base includes 24,000 megawatts

of electric generation, 6.4 trillion

cubic feet equivalent of proved gas

and oil reserves and nearly 7,900

miles of natural gas transmission

pipeline. We also operate a natural
gas storage system with 960

billion cubic feet of capacity, the

nation’s largest.

Opposite

Top left: Workers steady the
new reactor vessel head as
it is lifred to the platform for
movement into containment
at Surry Unit 2 in October.

The head is protected

from rain until safely inside.

Bottom left: Healthy compe-
tition among rig crews

in the Sonora Field area

of west Texas greatly
increased drilling speed:s.

Top right: Edwin Delmoro
discusses tank pressures
with the control room at
Cove Point.

Bottom right: A Dominion
crew makes repairs

after Hurricane Isabel left
more than 1.8 million of
Dominion’s 2.2 million elec-
tric distribution customers
without power.
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We want that kind of
feedback. We love it.




Dear Felloew Investors

urricane Isabel started out as one of the

greatest natural disasters in company history.

Our response became the greatest example
of ingenuity, cooperation and hard work | have yet

encountered.

In Crisis, A Showcase of Qualities

Important to Today’s Investor

Looking back, the storm exacted huge personal and
economic costs. About 1.8 million Dominion customers in
Virginia and North Carolina lost power, many for days.
Our employees left homes that were flooded and dam-
aged to spend days and night$ repairing the system.
Workers came from as far as Texas and Quebec to help
replace thousands of poles and transformers and string

nearly a thousand miles of wire.

Yet, it showcased our most importont corporate
strength —people with enormous pride in their work who
rose to meet the challenge directly, despite the hardship.
They rebuilt our system swiftly and safely. The crisis also
showed the strength of doing business in communities
where we know the lay of the land, where customers are
also friends, neighbors and even fellow investors.

Weeks after the storm, on Halloween, we got a
photo by e-mail from a proud mother and customer whose
litle boy dressed up as a Dominion Virginia Power
“bucket truck guy.”

We want that kind of feedback. We love it.

The crisis also demonstrated our financial strength.
Our 2003 earnings reported under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) include a $122 million
aftertax expense related fo this massive —at times, heroic
—effort. Investors recognized our ability to absorb
the financial punch. Your share price remained steady

throughout the ordeal.
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RIghT: ¥Wanaa irescotl, Regiondi
Operations Center supervisor in
Norfolk, reviews a switching
order during Hurricane lsabel.

Left: Robert Young, lineman, |
installs distribution hardware in ‘
Virginia Beach after Hurricane

Isobel. Cperaing Earnings Per Share

Dollars
Based on Non-GAAP Financial Measures
See page 24.

2000 2001 2002 2003
4.83

4.55

Below: Samuel Holmes, lineman, We think the most

removes damaged electrical useful way to reveal

ARG o cor< corrings
strength is to compare
operating earnings
adjusted for certain
charges on a
year-to-year basis.

We Target 2004 Operating Earnings of
$4.80 vo $5.00 Per Share
The likes of Isabel don’t come around often.

So we excluded its costs from our 2003 operating

earnings. We think the most useful way to reveal our core

earnings strength is to compare operating earnings

adjusted for certain charges on a yearto-year basis. Such
charges may come from losses created by a massive
storm cleanup, restructuring costs or an investment gone
bad. Gains created by asset sales or accounting changes

also are excluded.

Last year, excluding certain items, we fell short of

operating earnings targets of $4.60 to $4.70 per share

by reporting 2003 operating earnings of $4.55. Our
2004 operating earnings targets are $4.80 to $5 per
share and we assume about 5 percent growth in 2005.
These targets, too, may exclude certain items we can't

yet predict.




Nearly 600,000 customers were
restored to power during the first
24 hours after Hurricane Isabel.
By the end of the two-week
restoration effort, the company
had replaced thousands of utility
poles, cross-arms, spans of wire
and transformers.

The likes of Isabel
don’t come around
often.
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Market Copitalizalion
Billions of Dollars
As of December 31

2000

2001 2002 2003

25

20.8
20

15

10

Our GAAP earnings include a $750 million charge
recorded in 2003 as a result of a disappointing write-
down at our telecommunications unit. They also include a
$180 million gain created by an accounting change in
the treatment of asset retirement obligations, a gain we
also excluded from operating earnings. With these and
certain items detailed on page 24, we reported GAAP
earnings of $1.00, down about 79 percent from GAAP

earnings of $4.82 a year earlier.

A 21.4-Percent Total Return
In 2003, we delivered a total return of 21.4 percent,

exceeding pastyear targets of 15 percent. This includes

a 16.2-percent increase in our share price, which closed
the year at $63.83, up from $54.90 a year earlier. And
it also includes your annual dividend of $2.58 per share,
a 4-percent yield ot yearend.

Our dividend payout — illustrated on a GAAP basis
on page 24, but about 57 percent of operating earnings
at current levels — totaled more than $800 million last
year. We've paid out more than 300 consecutive divi-
dends over the last 70 years. V

Through recent market turmoil, I've made a special
point to assure you that our existing dividend rate is
secure. It remains secure. Only our board of directors
can defermine whether or when to increase it. Many fac-
tors influence the board’s decision and management’s
recommendations. Ultimately, any decision hinges entirely
on whether we can invest this cash for the long term at
returns higher than our cost of capital. We compare these
opportunities with the alternatives of repurchasing shares

or raising the dividend.

Promofing Management Focus on
Sustained Long-Term Results
How company executives are rewarded is an important
corporate governance issue today.

At Dominion, we pay officers and middle manage-
ment to strike o reasonable balance between making

their annual earnings and productivity goals and sound

Stable, Well-Covered Dividend

Dollars Per Share

2003
Operating
Earnings

Dividend

5.00

Hedged unregulated earnings
provide additional coverage

bR

2.50 e
Dividend is more than
covered by regulated/
tariff-based earnings

Operating Cash Flow Sources*

61% from
regulated/
tariff-based

0
O Unhedged & Hedged O Regulated OVEPCOReg  CICNG-Reg MCNG/DEI-E&F M DEI-Non Reg
Unregulated Unregulated Tariffbased 42% 19% 33% 6%
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*Net income plus depreciation, depletion and amortization of operating
segments excluding the Corporate segment

Based on Non-GAAP Financial Measures

See page 24.



At year-end, our
equity market capital-
ization was bigger
than Federal Express
or General Mills.

Tetel Return Comparisen
Percent

As of December 31, 2003

S&P Electric

S&P 500

We’'re committed to
aligning management

Dominion S&P Utilities
80 73.8
o |
26.2 240
21.4 — .
20 \ ‘
: i 8.2 | : | !

. . | :

.20 12.2)

A (38.5)

1 Year Total Return ™ 3 Year Total Return 05 Year Total Return

interests with yours.

long-term decisions. Four years ago, we instituted a
unique long-term share-ownership program. It requires
officers to own from three to eight times their annual base
salaries in stock. Together, our 62-person officer group
owned more than 2.2 million shares of common stock at
year-end. We're committed to aligning management

interests with yours.

Looking Beyond A Given Year’s
Earnings Per Share
Investors continue to focus on the basics. Does the com-
pany pay out a steady dividend? Does it have growing
cash flow and increasing earnings? Does its business
plan ring true? Does it have a strong balance sheet and
financial flexibility?

Let's look at how Dominion did in 2003 compared
with the pack.

Our 21-percent year-end total return trailed the S&P
Utilities Index, which returned 26 percent, and the S&P

Electric Utilities Index, which produced a total return of
24 percent. Looking across all sectors, the S&P 500
returned 29 percent,

For the last 3- and S-year periods, we beat these
indexes. So it was no surprise the broader indexes
moved slightly ahead of us in 2003 to recover ground
we never lost.

At year-end, our equity market capitalization — our
share price times the number of outstanding common
shares — was bigger than Federal Express or General
Mills. At $20.8 billion, ranked by market capitalization,
we were the nation’s third-largest natural gas and electric

company.

Operating Cash Flow:
Significant Growth Expected in 2004
In past years, I've told you that cash is king.
In 2004, we expect to generate positive free cash

flow, barring any major new acquisition or unforeseen

7. Dominion 2003




development. Free cash tlow is simply cash from operat |
ing activities minus your dividend and capital expenditures. |
Our decision to cut back on planned capital
expenditures because of soft markets for power is a
major reason we expect fo generate positive free cash
flow in 2004 in the neighborhood of $100 million to
$300 million. Turn to page 24 to find the same metrics

under GAAP.

How We Expect Annual Earnings Growth ;
To Reach 5 Percent

Last year, we targeted 5- to 7-percent growth in operat-

ing earnings per share. Given market conditions, we

Cperaliing Larnings ¢ Qperaiing Casha Flow

Millions of Dollars

2000 2001 2003
2500 2,452
2,000
1,500 ‘ 1,365 |5 1,449 ;-
1,053 [
1,000 -

500

0 s

& Operating Earnings i Operating Cash Flow

Operating Earnings Based on Non-GAAP Financial Measures V
See page 24.

expect earnings at the low end of that range in 2004. As
always, we will strive to balance risks, invest our cash

low wisely and operate superbly.

Electric Franchise Area Service Areas

Natural Gas Franchise Area

% Corporate Headquarters
Richmond, Virginia
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We do our business in places we know best, namely
the Midwest, Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions of the
United States. Combined, their gross domestic output rep-
resents the world’s third-largest economy.

Within that economy, we serve 5.3 million customer
accounts from a $44.2 billion asset base that includes

major pieces of America’s energy infrastructure — electric

Assets
Billions of Dollars
Per GAAP Financial Siatements

2000 2001 2002 2003
50
44.2
40.0 |
36.4 1 |

25

generation, transmission and distribution, as well as nat-
ural gas exploration, production, storage, large interstate
pipelines and retail distribution.

Our Dominion Delivery business manages our distrib-
ution wires and pipes that serve about 3.9 million
customers in five states, and Dominion Retail’s 1.4 million
customers in eight states. Delivery generated about 26
percent of our 2003 operating segment earnings, or
$453 million, up 7 percent compared with 2002.
Dominion Generation oversees our electric generation.
Last year, it accounted for nearly 30 percent of 2003
operating segment earnings, or $508 million, down 9
percent compared with 2002. Dominion Energy oversees
our inferstate natural gas pipeline transmission network,
our electric transmission and Dominion Energy
Clearinghouse, which coordinates our energy buying,

selling and trading. Last year, it accounted for 20 percent

A very specialized vehicle
moves a 2 1 3+on transformer
to a critical northern Virginia
substation.

Above: The smooth coneflower
or Echinacea loevigata, and
other rare plants reside in our
power line rights-of-way. Some
have reappeared afier decades
of obsence thanks in part to

our routine maintencnce on com-
pany rightsofway.

As always, we will

strive to balc:i:e

risks, invest our cash
flow wisely aj\d

operate superbly.
1

1
4
|
{
{
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Proved Gas and O Researves®
Trillion Cubic Feet Equivalent (Tcfe)

2000 2001 2002 2003

7.0

6.1 6.4

35

* Includes reserves owned by the Exploration & Production segment
and Dominion Transmission, Inc.
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Our E&P people like
to think they run a
“gas factory.”

Right: Dominion's West
Cameron 100 in the Gulf of
Mexico is one of the largest
recent shelf discoveries at well
depths shallower than 15,000
feet. Dominicn’s share of
production from the platform is
in excess of 75 million cubic feet
of gas equivalent per day.

Left: Dominion’s operations in
the Black Warrior Basin in
northwest Alabama make us one
of the nation’s largest coal-bed
methane-gas producers.
Dominion produces more than
100 million cubsic feet per day
from all of our coalbed methane
properties.

We're producing
about 450 billion
cubic feet equivalent
annually, roughly
three-quarters

of it from onshore
reserves.

of our operating segment earnings, or $350 million, up
30 percent compared with 2002, which includes a
record contribution of $64 million from the Clearinghouse.
The remaining 24 percent of 2003 operating segment
earnings, or $415 million, came from our Dominion
Exploration & Production segment, up 9 percent com-
pared with a year earlier. Net expenses from our corpo-
rate operations, excluding certain items listed on page
24, amounted to $277 million in 2003, up about 4 per-
cent compared with a year earlier.

Page 24 dlso shows a comparison of these operating

segment earnings to our reported earnings under GAAP.

Reliable Production At Qur “Gas Factory”

Our E&P people like to think they run a “gas factory.”
We're producing about 450 billion cubic feet equiva-

lent annually, roughly three-quarters of it from onshore

reserves. Much of that is embedded in coal-bed methane

and tight-gas reservoirs. Our drilling success rate in these
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Includes Dominion Transmission,Inc.

gas factories is more than 95 percent. We don't have a

lot of risk, but we have to get these low-risk, long-lived
reserves out of the ground efficiently. They are the back-
bone of our E&P assets. Overall, more than 80 percent of
Dominion E&P’s 4.4 trillion cubic feet of proved natural
gas and oil reserve base resides onshore, principally in
the Appalachian Basin, west Texas and western Canada.

Offshore properties in the Gulf of Mexico have
been yielding about 25 percent of E&P’s production.
There, we typically share costs with partners to minimize
the higher risks of finding these potentially rewarding off-
shore reserves and producing gas and oil from them. This
opens up an upside component to our overall program.

In short, this blend —weighted towards low-risk,
onshore reserves-—provides stable and relatively pre-
dictable earnings and cash flow. Dominion was one of
the most active onshore operators in both 2002 and
2003. On a net basis, we drilled 922 wells in 2003 and

expect even more in 2004.

Retail Rate Certainty Also
an Investor Advantage
In the past, the electric utility business was a lot simpler.

We built power plants approved by regulators and
sold all the output into our franchise service territories at
rates, including profit levels, which regulators deter-
mined. Much of this has changed in efforts to deregulate
the power industry. Dominion Virginia Power now oper-
afes under capped rates. From an investor perspective,
it's a competitive advantage because savings from produc-
fivity gains go fo the bottom line. Rate stability also benefits
Dominion Virginia Power’s retail customers.

In our electric-utility service area we have rate
certainty in Virginia until 2007. As we went fo press,
Virginia legislators were studying the possibility of a
rate-cap extension. At our natural gas-utility service areas
in Ohio, West Virginia and Pennsylvania, which serve
about 1.7 million retail customers, we still operate under

stable forms of traditional regulation.
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Managing Our Businesses

As a Btu Balance Sheet

Deregulation opens unique opportunities because we own
electric generation and natural gas assets. Both forms can
be measured in British Thermal Units, or Btus. Think of
our businesses as a Btu balance sheet — assets on the
left; “liabilities,” or obligations to customers, on the right.

Our “assets” are megawatts and natural gas
reserves that make up the supply side of our portfelio.
Our Btu obligations include customer-supply obligations,
forward sales contracts with creditworthy institutions and
financial hedges, which are agreements to sell energy at
a certain price on a future date.

By the end of 2003, we had matched 90 percent of
our electric generation with our retail and wholesale cus-
tomers. We also hedged or locked in the prices we expect
to get for more than 80 percent of our 2004 natural gas
and oil production, reducing our exposure to price volatil-
ity in wholesale natural gas and power markets.

If gas prices spike up or down, we have less to
make or less to lose. In a boom-or-bust scenario, we'll

make a margin.

Creating Profits, Cash Through Commedity
Volatility, Growing “Internal Hedge”

| have a name for the 10 percent of generation that we
have not matched and the 20 percent of natural gas that
we have not hedged — “Btu equity.”

Btu equity gives us flexibility. We can create more
cash and profits by taking advantage of interconnections
between natural gas and competitive power markets.
Think of a child’s seesaw: When natural gas prices rise,
it costs us more to generate power in our merchant

gasfired units. Therefore, the profit margins earned on

12. Dominien 2003
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0O Commercial 30% |
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B Resale 3% customer choice is a reality. By year-end, our Dominion

Retail unit included more than 900,000 of these

price-sensitive gas and power customers among its over-

all base of 1.4 million customers. Retail’s commodity
Reguleied Revenue by Customer Class: |
Netural Ces §
For the Year 2003 ]]

|

M Residential 70%

O Commercial 21%
3 Industrial 5%
O Other 4%

Regulated & Nonregulated
Reteil Energy Customers

Millions of Customer Accounts

2000 2001 2002 2003

4 38 3.8 _39 3.9

| i [ l
3 1 } !

| |
2 f i }

| ‘ ‘ 1.4
1 l E 07 | | 08 I

| m B

|
0 L

CRegulated M Nonregulated

Left: The Dominion Energy
Clearinghouse, headquartered
in Richmond, Virgiria, is
Dominion’s energy trading and
marketing operation, and one
of the most successful energy
marketers in North America.

We also hedged or Above: Robert LaRochelle, a
locked in the prices we Cleoringho'use energy Ircden.',
expect to get for more scans realtime data on multiple
than 80 percent of sereens:

our 2004 natural gas
and oil production.
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The Berge Boston LNG tanker
delivered the first commercial
shipment in August to

Dominion’s Cove Point facility.

& Natural Gas nes
Transmission Pipelines

= Natural Gas
Transmission Pipelines
(Partnership)

i Natural Gas
Underground Storage Pools

£ Cove Point ING Facility

Electric Transmission Lines

(Bulk delivery)
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customers give us a ready market in which to sell
power or natural gas and to prudently take advantage
of price volatility.

An example is in eastern Pennsylvania, where we
are building a 1,180-megawatt natural gas-fired facility
called Fairless Works. Nearly 200,000 Dominion Retail
customers will be served by output from the first of its two
units, which are both set fo come on line in 2004.
Virtually all of the remaining firstunit output is contracted
for sale to a local electric utility.

Internal hedges are simply a more efficient way to
run our business. First, they don't tie up working capital
the way financial hedges with traders do because they
don’t require cash margin deposits. In addition, internal
hedges increase profits because we cut out the trading
middleman. They also reduce the credit risks of doing
business with others because we deal only with ourselves.
Finally, these transactions don't require mark-to-market
accounting, which is sometimes required with financial

hedges and may have the potential to distort earnings.

Wise Investing: Adding to our Btu
Balonce Sheet Assels

In addition to our construction at Fairless Works, we're

adding other assets that strengthen our Btu balance sheet.

In 2003, we brought Dominion Cove Point info
operation. Based in southern Maryland, it’s the nation’s
second-largest liquefied natural gas import and storage
facility. It has the capacity to deliver up fo 1 billion
cubic feet of natural gas daily — enough to meet the
daily energy needs of 3.4 million homes.

It's already fully subscribed—by Statoil, Shell and
BP Energy. The first commercial delivery arrived in late
August. The service fees these credit-quality companies
pay add to our earnings. We're spending $140 million

to expand Cove Point, increasing its LNG tank storage

In addition, internal
hedges increase profits
because we cut out
the trading middleman.

Right: We are constructing a fifth
ING tank at Cove Point, which
will provide an addlitional 2.8

| Bcf of storage capacity.

We’'re adding other Below: Possum Point’s new Unit
assets that strengthen 6, fueled mainly by natural gas,

our Btu balance sheet will play a significant role in
) providing reliable energy while

helping improve the region's air
quality.
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capability by 56 percent. In fact, we've suspended devel-
opment of a planned natural gas pipeline through West
Virginia, Virginia and North Carolina to study whether the
budgeted money can be put to more profitable use at
Cove Point. Global energy giant Statoil confirmed that

our timing appeared good in early 2004. Statoil signed

a letter of intent to contract for additional planned capac-

ity expansions at Cove Point that will nearly double its
overall capability by late 2008. We'll seek federal regu-

latory approval to begin the process this year.

investing Wisely: Demand Growth Strategy
In Northern Virginia, on schedule, we placed a
545-megawatt natural gasired facility info operation
at our Possum Point Power Station to meet annual
customer demand growth of 1.5 percent at Dominion

Virginia Power.

16. Dominien 2003
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Opportunities to expand our asset base at a price
that returns immediate profits don’t show up very often.

In November we found one. We signed a deal to
acquire the 545-megawatt Kewaunee Power Plant in
northeastern Wisconsin for $220 million in cash. We will
assume a 10-year power sales contract to serve the two
utilities selling the facility. We expect to begin booking
profits when this nuclear station joins our 5,500-
megawatt nuclear fleet in the autumn of 2004, our best
estimate based on the time required to get the approvals

from several state and federal agencies.

Record Replacement At

North Anna Nuclear Station

Long-time Dominion investors know we rank among the
top three operators of nuclear plants in the nation. Our
Virginia nuclear facilities, North Anna and Surry power
stations, consistently rank among the Top 10 most effi-

cient producers.




Call it what you
will—working harder,
smarter, quicker,
better, more efficiently,
or “achieving
productivity gains.”

Left: A temporary access open-
ing is cut through the contain-
ment wall during vessel head
installation.

Above: The old vessel head is

removed.
Below: The new head was Long-time Dominion ;
designed and fabricated by investors know we ‘ When routine inspections revealed wear and tear in
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries in k the t . Lo
Kobe, Japan. rank among the iop the vessel head, or lid, of one of our four Virginia reac-
three operators of .
nuclear plants in the tors, our nuclear operations pros had two choices: Do a
nation. . costly, lengthy repair, or replace it with a new one —
a task no American company had successfully accom-
plished. Replace it we did, safely and in record time,

writing an important chapter in U.S. energy history. So
we accelerated and completed vessel head replacements
at our three other Virginia units. With new vessel heads,
and regulatory approval in 2003 to extend their operat
ing lives another 20 years, North Anna and Surry are

positioned for vears of continued low-cost production.

Six Sigma Process Improvement Yields

$200 Million in Ongeing Savings

Call it what you will — working harder, smarter, quicker,
better, more efficiently or “achieving productivity gains.”

e In Dominion’s case, our investors benefit from an employee

| 17. Dominion 2003




culture that motivates people to take a lot of pride in their
jobs and log continuing savings along the way.

Our Six Sigma process improvement initiative is now
in its fourth year. We've found more than $200 million in
ongoing savings. More than 150 Six Sigma “black belt”
experts are enhancing our productivity. With more than
350 workplace improvement projects under way in 2004
and another 600 in the queue, we're targeting additional

ongoing savings in 2004 of $50 million per year.

Pounding the Ground Harder,
Getting the Gas Faster
An example at our Sonora natural gas properties in west
Texas brings clear meaning to the term “process improve-
ment.” We acquired the Sonora properties in 2001 with
our purchase of Louis Dreyfus Natural Gas. Time is
money in Sonora—the faster you can get the gas out,
the quicker it goes to market, the sooner sales hit the
cash register. Our seasoned gas pros are using Six
Sigma techniques to promote faster drilling. Lately,
they’ve been racing each other to drill faster, but always
maintaining the highest standards of safety. Dominion is
a leader in industry safety and environmental awards.
At year-end, gross production at Sonora exceeded
200 million cubic feet per day. Since we acquired
Senora, production at those properties is up more than

50 percent.

Capital Preservation: Managing CQur Risks,
Minding Our Balance Sheet

Over the years, our Dominion team has earned a reputa-
tion among investors for spending capital wisely. That's
why the write-offs at our telecommunications business
were so painful. Unfortunately, markets for Dominion
Telecom'’s services did not develop as we had expected,

and | alone accept responsibility.
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Our best move was to minimize the impact and try
to get it behind us. In March of this year, we signed an
agreement fo sell Dominion Telecom. Although we
excluded the write-offs from our operating earnings, it
did reduce the equity on our balance sheet.

Maintaining a strong balance sheet is a critical piece
of our strategy. Three times in the last two years we've
issued new shares in public offerings to raise equity
instead of increasing our debt. In total, we issued more
than 49 million shares. That raised more than $2.4 bil-
lion. Spread our net income over that expanded share
base (more than 325 million shares outstanding) and the
dilution amounted to 65 cents per share by the end of
2003. In most cases, we'd rather absorb the impact of
dilution in our shortterm earnings, than rob our long-term
future by neglecting our balance sheet.

Over the course of the last few years, we're proud of
the progress we’ve made in strengthening our credit
ratios. We will continue to focus on improving these mea-
sures, such as debt to total capital and cash coverage of
interest expense. Our objective is to lower our adjusted
debt as a percentage of our total capital to the 50 per-
cent range, and to have our funds from operations cover
our interest expense by at least four times. Turn to page

24 for details on the same metrics under GAAP.

Right: Workers apply a lubricant
to the drill pipe pin at a Senora
Field drilling site.

Left: The average life span of
a Sonora Field well is 30-40
years.




An example at our
Sonora natural

gas prcpertleI in west
Texas brings clear
meaning to the term
“process improve-
ment.” f

The average depth of a Sonora
Field well in west Texas is 7,500
feet.
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Fortunately, the lights
stayed on thanks in
part to a critical role
that Dominion’s high-

voltage transmission
assets and generating
stations played.

Dominion has more than
24,000 megawatts of electric

capacity.

Our solid investment grade credit rating and stable
outlook from Moody’s (Baa1) underscores the improve-
ments in our earnings, cash flow, balance sheet, liquidity
and financial flexibility. In late 2003, Standard & Poor’s
reaffirmed its BBB+ investment grade rating and, despite
our improving metrics, included a negative outlook. This
didn't warrant the issuance of additional shares. We told
S&P we'd address any future concerns through continued

focus on our balance sheet and earnings growth.

Dominicn Systems Help To Reduce Scope

of Northeast Blackout

Our entire industry came under fire during the major
summer blackout on August 14. | remember the vivid
television images — some 50 million people in the

Northeast, Midwest and Canada without power for days.
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Fortunately, the lights stayed on in the Mid-Atlantic,

thanks in part to a critical role that Dominion’s high-volt-
age transmission assets and generating stations in the
north and south played in helping to contain the blackout
and return power. Our Millstone Power Station, said the
chairman of Connecticut’s Department of Public Utility
Control, “stood as solid as o rock when everyone else
fell.” State Senator Melodie Peters said, “Thank God for
Dominion and Millstone.” Northeast Utilities former chair-
man, Mike Morris, said the power station’s ability to
keep generating during the crisis, “was critical to
Connecticut and New England, and we thank them.”
This massive disruption highlighted the need for more
investment in fransmission, as well as better regional and
national planning. We're taking steps to join a regional
transmission operator called PJM Inferconnection that
promotes regicnal fransmission coordination. And I've

written to members of Congress to urge them to adopt




I’ve discussed our

Btu balance sheet but
want to close my letter
with a word about

our customer goodwill
balance sheet.

Left: Customers in a Richmend,
Virginia, neighborhood express
their gratitude for power restora-
tion efforts after Hurricane
Isabel.

Right: Franco Harris, speaking
on behalf of LIHEAP, the Low
Income Home Energy Assistance
Program in Pennsylvania, is
filmed by Dominion for print
and broadcast promotion of the
program.

binding reliability standards, to eliminate long delays in
siting, fo promote regional transmission and work to pro-

vide investment incentives for companies like Dominion.

Federal Environmental! Relations:
Deminion, EPA Agree on Game Plan
It's not often that agreeing to spend $1.2 billion is good
news. But in the case of Dominion’s landmark settlement
with the EPA announced in April 2003, it wasn't just
good news — it was great news. This was a difficult
negotiation. Good people worked long hours on both
sides of the table.

The setflement results in a cleaner environment for
everyone,! with improvements that go well beyond the
requirements of the Clean Air Act or state regulations.

We will become one of the nation’s cleanest coal-burning

fleets. It ended what could have been costly, draining liti-
gation. The projected costs already are embedded in exist-
ing budgets and will not affect our earnings guidance.
Beyond the EPA seftlement, we generally support the
EPA’s efforts to identify and implement legislative and regu-

latory solutions for additional environmental improvements.

The Balance Sheet Of Customer Goodwill

I've discussed our Btu balance sheet but want to close
my lefter with a word about our customer goodwill
balance sheet.

In the hours, days and weeks after Isabel, | heard
countless times about Dominion employees leaving
behind their families in the dark so they could get the
lights back on for others. Workers not usually involved in
storm restoration jumped in, eager to help get the power

flowing again.
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We showcased our company,
our accomplishments and our
New York Stock Exchange sym-
bol in a Wall Street ad cam-

paign.

N Ys E . D FIND OUT MORE ABOUT THE ENERGY COMPANY THAT HAS PAID
] i 304 CONSECUTIVE DIVIDENDS SINCE 1925.
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Our customers took note. Everywhere, they went out
of their way to say thank you. They held fish fries and
barbecues for crews, brought coffee and baked goods to
shops and offices and left coolers of soft drinks at work
sites. Even when their power had yet fo be restored, they
posted signs expressing encouragement and gratitude.

My gratitude is immense, and | thank all 16,700
employees, the guardians of the Dominion culture who
keep the Dominion enterprise rumbling forward on time,

on budget and cn target, moving faster, thinking harder.

Belle of the Ball
Last year, a prominent financial columnist at The
Washington Post wrote that Dominion may now be the
indusiry’s “Belle of the Ball.” In the interest of fairness, he
also questioned whether this message had fully gotten
through fo investors and analysts.

As | see it, Dominion is the Belle of the Ball, and |

appreciate your continued investment and support.

Gifted Senior Management

Each day, the company’s gifted senior management team
proves the best way to manage is to surround yourself
with smart people, set ambitious but realistic goals —and
then get out of the way. Last December, our board of
directors named Tom Farrell president and chief operating

officer. During his past eight years at Dominion, Tom has

tackled senior manage-
ment assignments at

both our regulated and
unregulated businesses
with competence, high

energy and intellectual

Thomas F. Farrell, Il
President and
Chief Operating Officer

precision. With this promotion, all businesses will have
benefit of Tom’s skill and leadership.

| thank the skilled, energetic leaders who make up
our board. Our board’s counsel and steady guidance
are instrumental in helping us to meet requirements of the
Sarbanes-Oxley legislation in our stewardship of your
capital.

To our vendors, bankers and contractors, thanks for
the good work. You, too, play key roles in helping us set
great standards of reliability, service and courtesy for mil-
lions of Dominion customers. We always work to serve
them in helpful, even better ways. To those customers
affected by Hurricane Isabel: You suffered greatly, but
you understood. You were patient and kind. You stood by
our employees.

A final word to the little boy dressed up as a “bucket
truck guy.” Give us a call someday, son. There could be

a good job with your name on it.

Sincerely,

Thos. E. Capps

Chairman and

\
|
l
Chief Executive Officer E
|

As | see it, Dominion is
the Belle of the Baill,
and | appreciate your
continued investment
and support.
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Consolidated Dominion Resources, Inc.—Reconciliation of Operating Earnings to Reported Earnings (GAAP)

2000 2001 2002 2003
Millions Millions EPS Millions EPS Millions EPS
Operating Earnings $787 $3.33 $1,053 $4.17 $1,365 $4.83 $1,449 $4.55
Af‘lt’er-tcx items:
Telecom related charges (750}  (2.35)
Hurricane Isabel costs (122)  [0.38)
Impairment of certain other equity-method investments 69) (0.22)
Severance costs for workforce reductions (16)  [0.06)
Restructuring of certain electric sales contracts (39)  (0.12)
Financial service asset impairments (186) (0.79) {183) {0.73) (8) ({0.03) (81) (0.25)
Termination of power-purchase contracts (136) {0.54) [65)  (0.20)
Cumulative effect of chnges in
accounting. principles. 21 0.09 T 003~
Restructuring & acquisition-related charges (198) (0.84) (68) {0.27). 5 0.02
Loss on sale of Saxon Capital (25) (0.10)
Enron impairment (97) {0.38)
Gain on sale of Corby Power Station 12 0.06
Total afterfax ifems (351) (148 (505)  [2.02) 3] (0.01) (1,131 (3.55)
Reported Earnings (GAAP) $436 §$1.85 $ 544 $ 2.5 $1,362 $4.82 $ 318 $1.00
Reconciliation of 2003 Sﬂment Operating Earnings Reconciliation of Free Cash Flow to GAAP Measures
to Reported Earnings (GAAP) - ‘
Projected  Projected

Operating Earnings Reported Earnings

2004 GAAP Based 2004 Free

Millions % Millions % Cash Flows Cash Flow
Dominion Delivery $ 453 26 $ 453 142 {dollars in millions)
Dominion Generation 508 30 508 160 o : P
Iy perating Activities
Domfn!on Energy . ) 350 20 350110 Income from continuing operations $ 1,600 $ 1,600
Dominion Exploration & Production 415 24 415 131 Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,400 1,400
Primary operating segments 1,726 100 1,726 543 Deterred income taxes and {TC 400 400
Corporate and Other (277) (1,408) (443) Changes in working capital and other 200
Consolidated $1,449 $318 100 Net cash provided by operating activities 3,600 3,400
Investing Activities
. ... Plant construction and other property additions (1,350} {1,350}
Corporate Operations Segment —Reconciliation of Purchases of gas and oil properties,
Operating Earnings to Reported Earnings net of proceeds from sales of same (1,000) {1,000)
— Repayment, net of advances, from lessor for
Millions : :
o project under construction 700
% Kewaunee acquisition [22Q)
2002 2003 Change Other investing cash flows 70
gHPe"'C"i_';‘g Earnings ($266) ($277) 4 Net cash used in investing activities {1,800) (2,350)
er-tax items: - - P
Financing Activities
Teleco relted chorges o) Comman dividend payments Bs0)  [860)
Impairment of certain other equity-method (DJE::r;f;icsyt::kmiz;?nzte:swnces (1,400)
investments (69) ) .
Severance costs for workforce reductions (17} Dlrzf:t‘jocl‘; pU.rChcse’ sc:vrrgs and 160
Restructuring of certain electric sales contracts (39) c fviden re;mve;tmfnk Z?ﬁnsbf i 413
Financial service asset impairments (8) (80) Konversnon oF equify-linked debf securifies 10
Termination of power-purchase contracts (65} ewaunee acquisition
Cumulative effect of cﬁcnges in Net cash used in financing activities (1,577} (860}
accounting principles 11 Net Ch in Cash 293
Restructuring & acquisition-related charges 5 F Ze ¢ ul’;\g;:‘l as 3 5 190
Total cftertax items 3) (1,131} - o hid

Reported Earnings ($269) ($1,408) 423

Reconciliation of Debt to Capitalization

The debt-to-total capital target of the 50 percent range referenced in the
chairman’s letter is to be calculated in the same manner as the Adjusted
GAAP measure presented in the table below.

Millions

Year-end Ratio of GAAP Measure Adjusted
Debt to Total Capitalization at 12/31/03 at 12/31/03
Securities due within one year $ 1,252 $ 1,252
Shortterm debt 1,452 1,452
Long-term debt:

Equityinked debt securities 743 743

Junior subordinated debentures 1,440

Other long-term debt 13,593 13,593

Total long-term debt 15,776 14,336
Synthefic lease balance 71
Total debt 18,480 63.1% 17,111 56.9%
Preferred stock 257 257
Junior subordinated debentures 1,440
Common shareholders' equity 10,538 10,538
Equitylinked debt securities 743
Total equity 10,795 36.9% 12,978 43.1%
Total capitalization $29.275 $30,089
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For factors that could cause actual results to differ, see Forward
Locking Statements, Risk Factors and Cautionary Statements That
May Affect Future Results and Market Rate Sensitive Instruments and
Risk Management in Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this report.

Page 6: Dividend payout based on GAAP net income was 258%.

Page 6: The percentage of Operating Cash Flow Sources included
in the chart represents the net income less depreciation, depletion
and amortization of the opercting segments, excluding the
Corporate segment. The percentages including the Corporate
segment are as follows: VEPCO-Reg 79%; CNG-Reg 35%;
CNG/DEI-E&P 62%; DEI-Non-Reg 13%; Corporate segment (-89%).

Page 6: Definitions of abbreviations

VEPCO: Virginia Electric and Power Company
CNG: Consolidated Natural Gas Company
DEI: Dominion Energy, Inc.

E&P: Dominion Exploration & Production




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations {MD&A) discusses the results of operations
and general financial condition of Dominion. MD&A should be
read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The term “Dominicn” is used throughout MD&A and, depending
on the context of its use, may represent any of the following: the
legal entity, Dominion Resources, Inc.; one of Dominion Resources,
Inc.’s consolidated subsidiaries; or the entirety of Dominion
Resources, inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Contents of MD&A

The reader will find the following information in this MD&A:
s Forward-looking Statements

¢ Introduction

* Accounting Matters

* Dominion’s Results of Operations

* Segment Resulis of Operations

¢ Dominion’s Sources and Uses of Cash

¢ Future Issues and Other Matters

* Market Rate Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management
* Risk Factors and Cautionary Statements that May Affect

Future Results

» Selected Financial Data

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains statements concerning Dominion’s expecta-
tions, plans, objectives, future financial performance and other
statements that are not historical facts. These statements are “for-
ward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Secu-
rities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, In most cases, the reader can
identify these forward-looking statements by words such as

"o "o aoa

“anticipate,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “expect,” “believe,”

"o

“should,” “could,” “plan,” “may” or other similar words.

Dominion makes forward-looking statements with full knowl-
edge that risks and uncertainties exist that may cause actual
results to be materially different from predicted results. Factors
that may cause actual results to differ are often presented with the
forward-looking statements themselves. Additionally, other risks
that may couse actual results to differ from predicted results are
set forth in Risk Factors and Cautionary Statements That May
Affect Future Results.

Dominion bases its forward-looking statements on manage-
ment’s beliefs and assumptions using information available at the
time the statements are made. Dominion cautions the reader not
to place undue reliance on its forward-looking statements
because the assumptions, beliefs, expectations and projections
about future events may, and often do, materially differ from
actual results. Dominion undertakes no obligation to update any
forward-looking statement to reflect developments occurring after
the statement is made.

Introduction

Dominion is a diversified, fully integrated electric and gas hold-
ing company headquartered in Richmond, Virginia. Dominion
concentrates its efforts largely in what Dominion refers to as the
“MAIN to Maine” region. In the power industry, “MAIN" means
the Mid-America Interconnected Network, which comprises all
of lllinois and portions of the states of Missouri, lowa, Wisconsin,
Michigan and Minnesota. Under this strategy, Dominion focuses
its efforts on the region siretching from MAIN, through its pri-
mary Mid-Atlantic service areas in Ohio, Pennsylvania, West
Virginia, Virginia and North Carolina, and up through New
York and New England. The MAIN-o-Maine region is home to
approximately 40% of the nation’s demand for energy.

Operating in all aspects of the energy supply chain positions
Dominion to optimize the value of its energy portfolio and
enhance its return on invested capital. Dominion has the capabil-
ity to discover and produce gas, store it, sell it or use it fo gener-
ate power; it can generate electricity to sell to customers in its
refail markets or in wholesale transactions. These capabilities
give Dominion the ability to produce and sell energy in whatever
form it finds most useful and economic. Dominion also operates
North America’s largest natural gas storage system, which gives it
the flexibility to provide supply when it is most economically
advantageous to do so.

Maintaining and improving Dominion’ financial condition
and flexibility is of paramount importance fo its management.
Imporfant measures of an entity’s financial strength and credit-
worthiness are the credit ratings assigned by Moody’s and
Standard & Poor’s. Dominion Resources, inc., and its subsidiaries,
Virginia Electric and Power Company (Virginia Power} and Con-
solidated Natural Gas Company [CNG), are each rated by those
agencies and have ratings that are considered investment grade.
Dominion has responded to recommendations by those agencies
to reduce the percentage of debt in Dominion’s overall capital
structure by focusing on minimizing incremental debt issuance,
delaying certain capital projects and raising capital by issuing
equity securities in proportion to debt so as to reduce overcll
debt to capital.

Dominion’s businesses are managed along four primary operat-
ing segments: Dorninion Generation, Dominion Energy, Dominion
Delivery and Dominion Exploration & Production. These segments,
and their composition, reflect changes made to Dominion’s man-
agement structure during the fourth quarter of 2003.

The contributicns to net income by Dominion’s primary operat-
ing segments are determined based on a measure of profit that
executive management believes represents the segments
earnings. As a result, certain specific items aftributable to those

oy

core”

segments are not included in profit measures evaluated by execu-
tive management in assessing segment performance or allocating
resources among the segments. Those specific items are reported
in the Corporate and Other segment.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condifion and Results of Operations, Continued

Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of
Dominion’s electric utility and merchant fleet. The fuel mix used
by these operations is diversified and includes coal, nuclear, gas,
oil, hydro and purchased power. Dominion’s strategy for its elec-
tric generation operations focuses on serving customers in the
MAIN to Maine region. Its generation facilities are located in Vir-
ginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, Connecticut, lllinois, Indi-
ana, Pennsylvania and Ohio. In addition, Dominion expects fo
complete the acquisition of the Kewaunee power plant located in
northeastern Wisconsin in the second half of 2004.

Utility generation operations represent Dominion Genaration’s
primary source of revenue and cash flow. These operations are
sensitive to external facters, primarily weather. Currently, revenue
from utility operations largely reflects the capped rates charged
to customers in Virginia, the majority of its utility customer base.
Under Virginia’s current deregulation legislation, electric rates are
capped through mid-2007. As rates are capped, changes in
Dominion Generation’s operating costs, relative to costs recov-
ered in the capped rates, will impact Dominion’s earnings.
Dominion Generation has reduced costs by terminating certain
longterm power purchase agreements and, based on engineer-
ing studies, extended the estimated useful lives of generation
assets, reducing the annual depreciation expense for those
assets. Currently, legislators in Virginia are evaluating the future
of electric deregulation in Virginia as well os the possibility of
extending the capped rates period.

Prices received for electricity generated by its merchant fleet
ore market-based, subjecting Dominion Generation to risks associ-
ated with recovering capital expenditures and absorbing variabil-
ity in fuel cosis. Generally, Dominion Generation manages these
risks by entering info fixed-price sales and purchase contracts.

Variability in expenses for Dominion Generation relates pri-
marily to the cost of labor and benefits, fuel consumed and the
timing, duration and costs of scheduled outages. Dominion is cur-
rently permitted to seek rate-recovery for fuel costs associated
with utility operations.

Dominion Energy includes the following operations:
¢ A regulated interstate gas transmission pipeline and storage
system, serving Dominion’s gas distribution businesses and
other customers in the Midwest, the Mid-Atlantic states and the
Northeast;

* A regulated electric transmission system principally located in
Virginia and northeastern North Carcling;

* Field services operations, representing aggregation of gas
supply and related wholesale activities related o Appalachian
and Canadian areas; v

* Aliquefied naturcl gas unloading and storage facility in
Maryland;

¢ Cerfain gas production operations located in the Appalachian
basin and
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* Dominion Energy Clearinghouse (Clearinghouse), which is
responsible for energy trading, marketing, hedging and arbitrage
activities.

Dominion Energy’s revenue and cash flows are derived from
both regulated and non-regulated operations.

Revenue and cash flow provided by regulated electricand
gas transmission operations and the liquefied natural gas facility
are based primarily on rates established by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC). Variability in revenue and
cash flow provided by these businesses results primarily from
changes in rates. Variability in expenses relates largely to
operating and mainfenance expenditures, including decisions
regarding use of resources for operations and maintenance
or capital-related activities.

Revenue and cash flow for Dominion Energy’s nonregulated
businesses are subject to variability associated with changes
in commodity prices. Dominion Energy’s nonregulated businesses
use physical and financial arrangements to hedge this price
risk. Certain hedging and trading activities may require cash
deposits to satisfy margin requirements. In addition, reported
earnings for this segment reflect changes in the fair value of
certain derivatives; these values may change significantly from
period to period. Variability in expenses for these nonregulated
businesses relates largely to labor and benefits and the costs
of purchased commodities for resale and payments under
financially-settled contracts.

Dominion Delivery includes Dominion’s electric and gas
distribution systems and customer service operations as well as
retail energy marketing activities. Electric distribution operations
serve customers in Virginia and northeastern North Carolina.
Gas distribution operations serve residential, commercial and
industrial gas sales and transportation customers in Ohio, Penn-
sylvania and West Virginia. Retail energy marketing activities
include the marketing of gas, electricity and related products
and services fo residential and small commercial customers in
the Northeast and Midwest.

Revenue and cash flow provided by electric and gas distribu-
tion operations are based primarily on rates established by state
regulatory authorities. Variability in Dominion Delivery’s revenue
and cash flow relates largely to changes in volumes, which are
primarily weather sensitive. For local gas distribution operations,

- revenue may-vary-based upon-changes in levels of rate recovery - -

for the costs of gas sold to customers. Such cosis and recoveries
generally offset and do not materially impact net income. Rev-
enue from retail energy marketing operations may vary in con-
nection with changes in weather and commodity prices as well
as the acquisition and potential loss of customers,

Variability in expenses results from changes in the cost of pur-
chased gas, routine maintenance and repairs {including labor
and benefits as well as decisions regarding the use of resources
for operations and maintenance or capitalrelated activities), and
unplanned damage to property, such as the recent siorm-related




damage caused by Hurricane lsabel. For gas distribution opera-
tions, Dominion is permifted to seek recovery of the cost of gas
sold to customers.

Dominion Exploration & Production includes Dominion’s gas
and oil exploration, development and production operations.
These operations are located in several major producing basins
in the lower 48 states, including the outer continental shelf and
deepwater areas of the Gulf of Mexico, and Western Canada.

Dominion Exploration & Production operates a drilling
program focused on low risk development drilling in several
proven onshore regions of the United Stafes and Western
Canada, while also maintaining some exposure to higher risk
exploration opportunities. Significant development drilling pro-
grams are currentiy underway in West Texas, the Appalachians
and the Rocky Mcuntains where Dominion Exploration & Produc-
tion holds sizable acreage positions and operational experience.
While each region provides Dominion Exploration & Production
with exploration cpportunities, most exploratory drilling takes
place in the Gulf Coast region, including the deepwater Gulf of
Mexico. Dominicn Exploration & Production maintains an active
and ongoing drilling program, participating in 922 net wells
during 2003, and replacing approximately 160 percent of its
2003 production.

Revenue and cash flow provided by exploration and produc-
tion operations are based primerily on the production and sale of
company-owned natural gas and oil reserves. Variability in
Dominion Exploration & Production’s revenue and cash flow
relates primarily to changes in commodity prices, which are mar-
ket based, and volumes, which are impacted by numerous factors
including drilling success, timing of development projects, as well
as external factors such as severe weather. Dominion manages
commeodity price volatility by hedging a substantial portion of its
near term expected production.

Variability in Dominion Exploration & Production’s expenses
relates primarily to changes in operating costs and production
taxes, which tend to increase and decrease with changes in gas
and oil prices and the prevailing cost environment. Commodity
price changes place upward or downward pressure on related
E&P service indusiry costs, while severance and property taxes
move with changes in revenue. A changing price environment
impacts both operating costs and the cost of acquiring, finding
and developing natural gas and oil reserves.

Corporate and Other includes:

* The operations of Dominion Capital, Inc., a financial services
subsidiary (DCl}, which are being divested in accordance with
an SEC order;

¢ Dominion Fiber Ventures, LLC {DFV) and its subsidiary,
Dominion Telecom, Inc. (DTl), o telecommunications business that
is being discontinued;

¢ Dominion’s corporate and other operations, including its ser-
vices company and

¢ Specific items attributable to Dominion’s operating segments
that are reported in Corporate and Other.

Accounting Matters

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Dominion has identified the following accounting policies, includ-
ing cerfain inherent estimates, that as a result of the judgments,
uncertainties, uniqueness and complexities of the underlying
accounting standards and operations involved, could result in
material changes to its financial condition or results of operations
under different conditions or using different assumptions.

Accounting for derivative contracts at fair value

Dominion uses derivative instruments fo manage its commodity
and financial market risks. In addition, Dominion purchases and
sells commodity-based contracts in the natural gas, eleciricity
and oil markets for trading purposes. Accounting requirements for
derivatives and hedging activities are complex; interpretation of
these requirements by standard-setting bodies is ongoing.

Generally, derivatives are reported on the Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheets at fair value. In addition, in 2002 and prior years,
all energy trading contracts were reported at fair value. As a
result of new accounting requirements beginning in 2003, non-
derivative trading contracts are no longer reported at fair value.
Prior period financial statements were not restated for this
change. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not
designated as accounting hedges are recorded in earnings.

The measurement of fair value is based on actively quoted
market prices, if available. Otherwise, Dominion seeks indicative
price information from external sources, including broker quotes
and industry publications. If pricing information from external
sources is not available, measurement involves judgment and
estimates. These estimates are based on valuation methodologies
considered appropriate by Dominion management.

For individual contracts, the use of different assumptions
could have @ material effect on the contract’s estimoted fair
value. In addition, for hedges of forecasted transactions,
Dominion must estimate the expected future cash flows of the
forecasted transactions, as well as evaluate the probability of
the occurrence and timing of such transactions. Changes in con-
ditions or the occurrence of unforeseen events could affect the
timing of recognition in earnings for changes in fair value of
certain hedging derivatives.

Use of estimates in goodwill impairment testing

Dominion is required to test its goodwill for potential impairment
on an annual basis, or more frequently if impairment indicators
are present. In performing the test, Dominion estimates the fair
value of its reporting units by using discounted cash How analy-
ses'and other valuation techniques based on multiples of earn-
ings for peer group companies, as well as analyses of recent
business combinations involving peer group companies. These
caleulations are dependent on many subjective factors, including
management’s estimate of future cash flows, the selection of
appropriate discount and growth-rates, and the selection of peer
group companies and recent transactions. The cash flow esti-
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mates used by Dominion are based on relevant information avail-
able at the time the estimates are made. However, estimates of
future cash flows are highly uncertain by nature and may vary
significantly from actual results.

The underlying assumptions and estimates involved in prepar-
ing these fair value calculations could change significantly from
period to peried. Modifications to any of these assumptions, par-
ticularly changes in discount rates and changes in growth rates
inherent in management’s estimate of future cash flows, could
result in a future impairment of goodwill.

Substantially all of Dominion’s goodwill is allocated to its Gen-
eration, Energy, Delivery and Exploration & Production reporting
units. If the estimates of future cash flows used in the 2003 annual
test had been 10% lower, the resulting discounted cash flows
would have been greater than the carrying values of each of those
reporting units, still indicating no impairment was present.

Use of estimates in long-lived asset impairment testing
Impairment testing for long-lived assets and intangible assets with
definite lives is required when circumstances indicate those assets
may be impaired. In performing the impairment test, Dominion
would estimate the future cash flows associated with individual
assets or groups of assefs. Impairment must be recognized when
the undiscounted estimated future cash flows are less than the
related assets carrying amount. In those circumstances, the asset
must be written down to its fair value, which, in the absence of
market price information, may be estimated as the present value
of its expected future net cash Hlows, using an appropriate dis-
count rate. Although cash flow estimates used by Dominion are
based on relevant information available at the time the estimates
are made, estimotes of future cash flows are, by nature, highly
uncertain and may vary significantly from actual results.

tn 2003, reflecting a significant revision in long-term expecta-
tions for potential growth in telecommunications service revenue,
Dominion approved a strategy to sell its interest in the telecommu-
nications business. In connection with this change in strategy,
Dominion tested the network assets to be sold for impairment,
using the revised long-term expectations for potential growth.
Dominion’s assets were determined to be substantially impaired
and were written down to fair value.

Asset retirement obligations
Dominion recognizes liabilities for the expected cost of retiring

- ~tangible lorg-lived-assets for which-o-legal-obligation exists: -~ -

These asset retirement obligations (AROs) are recognized at fair
value as incurred, and are capitalized as part of the cost of the
related tangible long-lived assets. In the absence of quoted mar-
ket prices, Dominion estimates the fair value of its AROs using
present value techniques, in which estimates of future cash flows
associated with retirement activities are discounted using its
credit-adjusted risk free rate. AROs currently reported on
Dominion’s Consolidated Balance Sheet were measured during a
period of historically low interest rates. The impact on measure-
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ments of new AROs, using different rates in the future, may: be
significant.

A significant portion of Dominions AROs relates to the future
decommissioning of its nuclear facilities. At December 31, 2003,
nuclear decommissioning ARO:s totaled $1.3 billion, which repre-
sented approximately 80% of Dominion’s total AROs. Based on
their significance, the following discussion of critical assumptions
inherent in determining the fair value of AROs relates to those
associated with Dominion’s nuclear decommissioning obligations.

Dominion obtains from third-party experts periodic site-spe-
cific “base year” cost studies in order to estimate the nature,
cost and timing of planned decommissioning activities for its
utility nuclear plants. Dominion uses internal cost studies for
its merchant nuclear facility based on similar methods. These
cost studies are based on relevant,information available at the
time they are performed; however, estimates of future cash
flows for extended periods are by nature highly uncertain and
may vary significantly from actual results. In addition, these cost
estimates are dependent on subjective factors, including the
selection of cost escalation rates, which Dominion considers to
be a critical assumption.

Dominion determines cost escalation rates, which represent
projected cost increases over time, due to both general inflation
and increases in the cost of specific decommissioning octivities,
for each of its nuclear focilities. The weighted average cost esca-
|lation used by Dominion was 3.18%. The use of alternative rates
would have been material to the liabilities recognized. For exam-
ple, had Dominion increased the cost escalation rate by 0.5% to
3.68%, the amount recognized as of December 31, 2003 for its
ARO:s related to nuclear decommissioning would have been
$256 million higher.

Employee benefit plans

Dominion sponsors noncontributory defined benefit pension plans
and other postretirement benefit plans for eligible active employ-
ees, retirees and qualifying dependents. The costs of providing
benefits under these plans are dependent, in part, on historical
information such as employee demographics, the level of contri-
butions made to the plans and earnings on plan assets. Assump-
tions about the future, including the expected rate of return on
plan assets, discount rates applied to benefit obligations, rate of
compensation increase and the anticipated rate of increase in
health care costs, also have a significant impact on employee

benefit costs. The impact on pension and other postretirement
benefit plan obligations associated with changes in these factors
is generally recognized in the Consclidated Statements of Income
over the remaining average service period of plan participonts
rather than immediately.




The selection of discount rates and expected long-term rates
of return on plan assets are critical assumptions. Dominion deter-
mines the expected long-term rates of return on plan assets for
pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans by using a
combination of:
¢ Historical return analysis to defermine expected future risk
premiums;
¢ Forward looking return expectations derived from the yield on
long-term bonds and the price earnings ratios of major stock mar-
ket indices;
¢ Expected inflation and risk-free interest rate assumptions and
¢ The types of investments expected to be held by the plans.

Assisted by an independent actuary, management develops
assumptions, which are then compared to the forecasts of other
independent investment advisors o ensure reasonableness. An
internal committee: selects the final assumptions. Discount rates
are defermined from analyses performed by a third-party actuar-
ial firm of AA/Aa rated bonds with cash flows matching the
expected payments to be made under Dominion’s plans.

The following table illustrates the effect of changing the critical
actuariol assumpticns discussed above:

Increase in 2004
Net Periodic Cost

Other

Actuarial Changein  Pension  Postretirement

Assumption Assumption  Benefits Benefits
(millions)

Discount rate (0.25%) $12 $6

Rate of return on plan assets (0.25%) 10 1

Healthcare cost trend rate 1% N/A 22

Accounting for regulated operations

Metheds of allocating costs o accounting periods for operations
subject to federal or state cost-ofservice rate regulation may dif-
fer from accounting methods generolly applied by nonregulated
companies. When the timing of cost recovery prescribed by regu-
latory authorities differs from the timing of expense recognition
used for accounting purposes, Dominion’s Consolidated Financial
Statements may recognize a regulatory asset for expenditures
that otherwise would be expensed. Regulatory assets represent
probable future revenue associated with certain costs that will be
recovered from customers through rates. Regulatory liabifities
represent probable future reductions in revenue associated with
expected customer credits through rates or amounts collected
from customers for expenditures not yet incurred. Management
makes assumptions regarding the probability of regulatory asset
recovery through future rates approved by applicable regulatory
authorities. The expectations of future recovery are generally
based on orders issued by regulatory commissions or historical
experience, as well as discussions with applicable regulatory
authorities. If recovery of regulatory assets is determined to be
less than probable, they would be expensed in the pericd such
assessment is made. See Notes 2 and 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Accounting for gas and oil operations

Dominion foliows ihe full cost method of accounting for gas and
oil exploration and production activities prescribed by the SEC.
Under the full cost method, all direct costs of property acquisi-
tion, exploration and development activities are capitalized and
subsequently depreciated using a unit-of-production method. The
depreciable base of costs includes estimated future costs to be
incurred in developing proved gas and oil reserves, as well as
capitalized asset retirement costs, net of projected salvage val-
ves. The calculations under this accounting method are depen-
dent on engineering estimates of proved reserve quantities and
estimates of the amount and timing of future expenditures to
develop the proved reserves. Proved reserves, and the cash flows
related to these reserves, are estimated based on a combination
of historical dota and expected future activity. Actual reserve
quantities and development expenditures moy differ from the
forecasted amounts.

In addition, Deminion has significant investments in unproved
properties, which are initially excluded from the depreciable
base. Until the properties are evaluated, a ratable portion of
the capitalized costs is periodically reclassified to the deprecia-
bie base, determined on a property-by-property basis, over
terms of underlying leases. Once a property has been evaluated,
any remaining capitalized costs are then transferred to the
depreciable base.

Capitalized cests in the depreciable base are subject fo @
ceiling test prescribed by the SEC. The test limits capitalized
amounts to a ceiling —the present value of estimated future net
revenues to be derived from the production of proved gas
and oil reserves assuming period-end hedge-adjusted prices.
Dominion performs the ceiling test quarterly, on a country-by-
country basis, and would recognize asset impairments to the
extent that total capitalized costs exceed the ceiling. Any impair-
ment of excess gas and oil property costs over the ceiling is
charged to operations. Given the volatility of natural gas and
oil prices, it is possible that Dominion’s estimate of discounted
future net cash flows from proved natural gas and oil reserves
could change in the near term. If natural gas or oil prices have
declined as of the date of the ceiling test, or if Dominion revises
its estimates of the quantities or timing of future production
from its proved reserves, recognition of natural gas and il
property impairments could occur. See Notes 2 and 29 to the
Consclidated Financial Statements.

Accounting for retained interests from securitizations
Securitizations involve selling loans to qualifying unconsolidated
trusts in exchange for cash and retained interests. Retaired infer-

ests may include unsecured debt of the trust or retained interests
in the transferred loans. Dominion holds retained interests from
mortgage and commercial loans securitized in prior years and
classifies them as available-for-sale investments, carried on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Quarterly, Dominion
evaluates the key assumptions relating to valuing the retained
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interests. Those key assumptions include: loan prepayment
speeds, credit losses, forward yield curves and discount rates.
Using ¢ published forward yield curve, cash flows, net of adjust-
ments for expected credit losses and loan prepayments, are dis-
counted to determine the estimated fair value of the retained
interests. Loan prepayment speeds and credit loss assumptions
are based on actual historical results and future estimates. The
discount rate is risk adjusted and is periodically compared to
industry averages and recent or similar fransactions for reason-
ableness. Changes in interest rates will result in @ change in the
forward yield curve and can result in @ change in the assumed
amount of foan prepayments. Changes in general economic con-
ditions may impact actual credit losses, thus impacting the credit
loss assumption used in Dominion’s quarterly evaluation. Income
from the residual interests is reported as other revenue. See Note
27 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of
impairment charges recorded in 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Newly Adeopted Accounting Standards in 2003
During 2003, Dominion was required to adopt several new
accounting standards which affect the comparability of its Con-
solidated Financial Statements. The requirements of those stan-
dards are discussed in Notes 2 and 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The following discussion is presented to
provide an understanding of the financial statement impacts of
those standards when comparing the 2003 Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements to prior years.

SFAS No. 143
Adopting Stotement of Financic! Accounting Standards {SFAS)
No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, on janu-

ary 1, 2003, affected the comparability of Dominions 2003 Con-

solidated Financial Statements to those of prior years as follows:
* Recognition of asset retirement obligations of $1.5 billion com-
pared to a liability of $1.6 billion that had been previously
recorded for nuclear decommissioning;

¢ Recognition of $350 million of capitalized asset retirement
costs in property, plant and equipment and a $90 million
increase in accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortiza-
tion, representing the depreciation of such costs through Decem-
ber 31, 2002;

® Beginning in 2003, accretion of the AROs, including nuclear
decommissioning, is reported in other operations and mainte-
nance expense. Previously, expenses associated with the provi-
sion for nuclear decommissioning were reported in depreciation
expense and in other expense, as described below and
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¢ Beginning in 2003, realized and unrealized earnings of trusts
available for funding decommissioning activities at Dominicen’s
utility nuclear plants are recorded in other income and other com-
prehensive income, as appropriate. Previously, as permitted by
regulatory authorities, these earnings were recorded in other
income with an offsetting charge to expense, also recorded in
other income, for the accretion of the decommissioning liability.

EITF 02-3 and EITF 03-11

The adoption of Emerging lssues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 02-3,
Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for
Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and
Risk Management Activities and the related EITF 03-11, Reporting
Realized Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments That Are
Subject to FASB Statement No. 133 and Not “Held for Trading
Purposes” as Defined in Issue No. 02-3, changed the timing of
recognition in earnings for certain Clearinghouse energy-related
contracts, as well as the financial statement presentation of

gains and losses associated with energy-/related contracts. The
Consolidated Statements of Income for 2002 and 2001 were not
restated. Prior to 2003, all energy trading contracts, including
non-derivative contracts, were recorded at fair value with
changes in fair value and setlement reported in revenue on

a net basis, Specifically, adopting EITF 02-3 and EITF 03-11
affected the comparability of Dominion’s 2003 Consolidated
Financial Statements to those of prior years as follows:

¢ For derivative contracts not held for trading purposes that
involve physical delivery of commodities, unrealized gains and
losses and settlements on sales contracts are presented in rev-
enue, while unrealized gains and losses and seftlements on pur-
chase confracts are reported in expenses and

¢ Non-derivative energy-related contracts, previously subject to
fair value accounting under prior accounting guidance, are no
longer subject fo fair value accounting. Dominion recognizes rev-
enue or expense on a gross basis at the time of contract perfor-
mance, seﬂlemen? or termination.

FIN 46R

Upon adoption of FASB interpretation No. 46 {revised December
2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46R} on
December 31, 2003 with respect to special purpose entities,
Dominion was required to consolidate certain variable interest
lessor entities through which Dominion had financed and leased
several new power generation projects, as well as its corporate
headquarters and aircraft. As o result, the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as of December 31, 2003 reflects an additional $644 mil-
lion in net property, plant and equipment and deferred charges -

and $488 million of related debit.




In addition, uncler FIN 46R, Dominion reports its junior subor-
dinated notes held by five capital trusts as long-term debt, rather
than the trust preferred securities issued by those trusts. At Decem-
ber 31, 2002, Dominion consolidated the trusts and reported the
trust preferred securities on its Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Dominion’s Results of Operations

2003 2002 2¢01

{millions,
except per Net Diluted Net Diluted Net Diluted
share amounts) Income EPS Income EPS [Income EPS
Dominion

Generation $ 508 $1.59 § 561 $1.98 § 517 $2.02
Dominion

Energy 350 1.10 268 0.95 268 1.06
Dominion

Delivery 453 1.42 422 1.49 311 1.23
Dominion

Exploration &

Production 415 1.30 380 1.34 320 1.27
Primary

operating

segments 1,726 5.41 1,631 5.76 1,410 5.58
Corporate and

Other (1,408) (4.41) (269) (0.94) (866) (3.43)

Consolidated $ 318 $1.00 $1,362 $4.82 § 544 §2.15

Qverview

2003 vs. 2002

Dominion earned $1.00 per diluted share on net income of
$318 million, a decrease of $3.82 per diluted share and
$1,044 million. The per share decrease includes approximately
$0.13 of share dilution, reflecting an increase in the average
number of commcn shares outstanding during 2003.

The combined net income contribution of Dominion's primary
operating segments increcsed $95 million in 2003. This increase
largely reflects the: benefits of higher natural gas prices during
2003 on sales of Dominions gas and oil production as well as
margins associated with gas trading activities. See Note 28 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for information about
Dominion’s operating segments. This increased contribution by
the operating segments was more than offset by significant spe-
cific charges recognized in 2003 and reported in the Corporate
and Other segment, including:

»  $750 million of aftertax losses associated with Dominion’s
telecommunications business, which is being discontinued;

»  $122 million of aftertax incremental expenses associated with
Hurricane Isabel;

»  $96 million of aftertax charges for DCI asset impairments;

»  $69 million of aftertax charges for asset impairments related
to certain investments held for sale;

»  $104 million of aftertax charges associated with the
termination of long-term power purchose agreements and the
restructuring of power sales agreements and

¢ $16 million of cftertax severance costs for workforce
reductions.

2002 vs. 2001

Dominion earned $4.82 per diluted share on net income of

$1.4 billion, an increase of $818 million and $2.67 per diluted
share compared to 2001. Per share amounts also reflect approxi-
mately $0.57 of share dilution, due to an increase in the average
number of common shares outstanding during 2002.

The combined net income contribution of Dominion’s primary
operating segments increased $222 million in 2002. These
results largely reflect the impact of favorable weather and cus-
tomer growth on ulility operations and the inclusion of a full year
of operations after the Louis Dreyfus acquisition. In addition to the
increased contribution by the operating segments, the increase in
net income included the effect of discontinuing the amortization
of goodwill in 2002 {$95 million) and the impact of significant
specific charges recognized in 2001 that did not recur in 2002.
These items were reported in the Corporate and Other segment
and included:
¢ $208 million of aftertax losses from the impairment of DCI
financial assets and the sale of @ DCl subsidiary;

* A $136 million aftertax charge related to the termination of
certain long-ferm power purchase contracts;

* A $97 million chtertax charge for credit exposure associated
with the bankruptcy of Enron and

o A $68 million aftertax charge for restructuring activities.

Analysis of Conselidated Cperations
Presented below are selected amounts related to Dominion’s
results of operations,

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
{millions)
Operating Revenue
Regulated electric sales $4,876 $4,836 4,619
Regulated gas sales 1,258 876 1,409
Nonreguloted electric sales 1,130 1,017 1,022
Nonregulated gas sales 1,718 778 1,073
Gas transportation and storage 740 708 702
Gas and oil production 1,503 1,334 1,857
Other 853 652 676
Operating Expenses
Electric fuel and energy purchases, net 1,667 1,447 1,369

Purchased electric capacity 607 691 680

Purchased gas, net 2,175 7,59 7,822
Liquids, pipeline capacity and
other purchases 468 159 219
Restructuring and other acquisition-
related costs - (&) 105
Other operations and maintenance 2,908 2,198 2,938
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,216 1,258 1,245
Other taxes a76 429 395
Other income (loss) (40) 1038 26
Interest and related charges 975 945 997
Income tax expense 597 § 681 § 370
Loss from discontinued operations (642) - -
Cumulctive effective of changes in
accounting principles $ 11 - -~
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An analysis of Dominion’s results of operations for 2003 com-

pared fo 2002 and 2002 compared to 2001 follows.
2003 vs. 2002

Operating Revenue
Regulated electric sales revenue increased less than 1% to $4.9
billion, primarily reflecting the combined effects of:
* A $54 million increase from customer growth associated with
new customer connections;
* A $42 million increase from higher fuel rate recoveries. Fuel
rate recoveries were generally offset by a comparable increase in
fuel expense and did not materially affect net income and
¢ A $103 million decrease associated with milder weather.
Regulated gas sales revenue increased 44% to $1.3 billion,
primarily due to:
* Recovery of higher gas prices in rates {$289 million) and
» Comparably colder weather in the first and fourth quarters
of 2003 ($79 million), reflecting more heating degree-days
in 2003.
The increase in regulated ges sales revenue was largely offset
by a comparable increase in purchased gas expense.
Nonregulated electric sales revenue increased 11% fo
$1.1 billion, primarily reflecting the combined effects of:
¢ A $77 million increase in merchant generation revenue,
reflecting higher volumes {$59 million} and higher prices ($18
million). The increase in volumes can be attributed to fewer out-
age days at the Millstone Power Station in 2003 and c full year's
sales from generating units placed into service during 2002;
¢ A $74 million increase in refail energy sales, primarily as a
result of customer growth, including the acquisition of new cus-
tomers previously served by other energy companies during
2003 and
* A $43 million decrease in Clearinghouse electric revenue, net
of applicable purchases, due to unfavorable changes in the fair
value of derivative contracts held for trading purposes and the
impact of adopting EITF 02-3, partially offset by increased mar-
gins.
Nonregulated gas sales revenue increased 121% to $1.7 bil-
lion, primarily reflecting:
¢ An $82 million increase in revenue from retail energy market-
ing operations, reflecting higher prices (378 million) and higher
volumes ($4 million);
e A $659 million increase in revenue from field services opera-
tions, reflecting higher prices ($467 million} and higher volumes
($192 million) and
» A $208 million increase in Clearinghouse gas revenue, net of
applicable purchases, due to higher margins, favorable changes
in the fair value of derivative contracts held for trading purposes
and the impact of adopting EITF 02-3. The increase included a
$54 million increase associated with the economic hedges,
described further in the discussion of Dominion Energy’s results.
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Gas and oil production revenue increased 13% to $1.5 bil-
lion primarily due to higher average realized prices for gos and
oil. It also includes $43 million of revenue recognized related to
deliveries under a volumetric production payment fransaction.

Other revenue increased 31% to $853 million, primarily
reflecting the combined effects of:

* A $49 million increase in coal sales revenue;

* A $115 million increase, resulting from a change in the classifi-
cation of coal purchases from other revenue to expense under
EITF 02-3 beginning in 2003;

¢ $94 million of sales of emissions credits that began in 2003;

* A 326 million increase in sales of extracted products and

¢ An $81 million decrease in revenue associated with Dominion
financial services operations, reflecting the winding down under
Dominion's divestiture strategy.

Operating Expenses and Other Items

Electric fuel and energy purchases expense increased 15% to
$1.7 billion, primarily reflecting:

* A $154 million increase associated with nonregulated energy
marketing operations, primarily resulting from higher volumes
purchased and the reclassification of certain purchase contracts
after the implementation of EITF 02-3 and

¢ A $68 million increase related to regulated utility operations,
including $42 million associated with rate recovery in 2003 rev-
enue and the recognition of $14 million of previously deferred

fuel costs that will not be recovered under the settlement of the
Virginia jurisdictional fuel rate case.

Purchased electric capacity expense decreased 12% to
$607 million, reflecting scheduled rate reductions on certain
non-utility generation supply contracts ($54 million) and lower
purchases of capacity for utility operations ($30 million}.

Purchased gas expense increased 88% to $2.2 billion,
primarily reflecting:

* A $647 million increose associated with field services opera-

fions, reflecting higher prices [$459 million) and higher volumes

{$188 million) and

¢ A $363 million increase associated with regulated gas opera-
tions discussed above in Regulated gas sales revenuve.

Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases expense
increased 194% to $468 million, reflecting primarily the reclassifi-
cation of certain purchase contracts for transportation, storage,
coal and emissions allowances after the adoption of EITF 02-3.

Other operations and maintenance expense rose 32% to
$2.9 billion, primarily reflecting the following specific increases:
* Incremental restoration expenses associated with Hurricane
Isabel {$197 million);

e Cost of terminating power purchase contracts used in electric
utility operations ($105 million};

¢ Asset and goodwill impairments associated with DCI's finan-
cial services operations ($108 million);




* Goodwill impairment associated with the purchase of the
remaining interest in the telecommunications joint venture held by
another party ($60 million);

» A charge for the restructuring of certain electric sales con-
tracts recorded as derivative assets {$64 million);

¢ Accrefion expense for asset retirement obligations

($86 million);

¢ Decrease in net pension credits and an increase in other
postretirement benefit costs ($87 million) and

¢ Expenses associofed with nuclear outages for refueling in
2003 ($13 millior).

These increases were partially offset by a decrease attribut-
able to lower outcge costs at Millstone ($28 million).

Other taxes increased 11% to $476 million, primarily due to
higher severance faxes and gross receipts taxes, as well as the
effect of a favorable resolution of sales and use tax issues in
2002. Such benefits were not recognized in 2003.

Other income decreased 138% o a net loss of $40 million,
which included the following items:

* $57 million of costs associated with the acquisition of DFV
senior notes;

¢ $27 million for the reallocation of equity losses between
Dominion and the minority interest owner of DFV;

*  $62 million for the impairment of certain equity-method invest-
ments and

¢ A $32 million increase in net realized losses associated with
nuclear decommissioning trust fund investments.

Partially offsetiing these reductions to other income was an
increase of $28 million, reflecting equity losses on Dominion’s
investment in DFV in 2002; DFV was consolidated beginning in
the first quarter of 2003. In 2003, the operating losses of DFV's
subsidiary, DTl, were classified in discontinued operations.

Income taxes Dominion’s effective tax rote increased 5.3% to
38.6% for 2003. The increase primarily resulted from the expira-
tion of nonconveritional fuel credits beginning in 2003, an
increase in the valuation allowance related to the impairment of
goodwill associated with the telecommunications investment and
federal loss corryforwards at CNG International and DCI that
are not expected to be utilized, partially offset by a reduction in
Canadian tax ratzs applied to deferred tax balances.

Loss from discontinued operations reflects the results of
operations of Dominion’s telecommunications business, which is
classified as held for sale. The loss includes the following:

* Impairment of network assets of $566 million. Dominion has
not recognized any deferred tax benefits related to the impair-
ment charges, since realization of tax benefits will be dependent
upon Dominion’s future tax profile and taxable earnings. In addi-
tion, Dominion also increased the valuation allowance on
deferred tax assets recognized by its telecommunications invest-
ment, resulting in a $48 million increase in deferred income tax
expense and

* DTl operating losses of $28 million.

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles
During 2003 Dominion was required to adopt several new
accounting standards, resulting in a net aftertax gain of $11 mil-
lion which included the following:

* A $180 million aftertax gain [SFAS No. 143), partially
offset by;

o A $67 million aftertax loss [EITF 02-3);

* A $75 million aftertax loss (Statement 133 Implementation
Issue No. C20) and

e A $27 million afterfax loss (FIN 46R).

2002 vs. 2001

Operating Revenue

Regulated electrit sales revenue increased 5% to $4.9 billion,
primarily due fo:

¢ Favorable weather conditions ($195 million), reflecting
increased cooling and heating degree-days in 2002,

* Customer growth [$60 million) and

* Fuel rate recoveries ($65 million), which were generally offset
in fuel expense and do not materially affect net income.

These increases were partially: offset by other factors not sepa-
rately measurable, such as the impact of economic conditions on
customer usage, as well as variations in seasonal rate premiums
and discounts.

Regulated gas sales revenue decreased 38% to $876 mil-
lion, reflecting $550 million for lower gos cost recoveries attribut-
able to lower prices and customer migration, partially offset by
the impact of slightly colder weather and other factors. The
decline was offset by a corresponding $4%91 million decrease in
purchased gas expense, reflecting the motching of purchased
gas costs and gas cost recoveries in rates, and increased gas
transportation service revenve.

Nonregulated electric sales revenue increased 1% to
$1.0 billion, primarily reflecting the combined etfects of:
¢ A $21 million decrecse in sales revenue from Dominion’s mer-
chant generation fleet, reflecting.a $201 million decline due to
lower prices partially offset by sales from assets acquired and
constructed in 2002 and the inclusion of Millstone operations for
all of 2002;

* A $74 million decrease in revenue from the wholesale market-
ing of utility generation. Due to the higher demand of utility ser-
vice territory customers during 2002, less production from utility
plant generation was available for profitable sale in the whole-
sale market;

* A $71 million increase in revenue from retail energy sales,
reflecting primarily customer growth over the prior year and

* A $33 million increase in Clearinghouse electric revenue, net
of applicable trading purchases, reflecting the effect of favorable
price changes on unsetfled contracts and higher margins.
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Nonregulated gas sales revenue decreased 28% to
$778 million, primarily reflecting:
¢ A $261 million decrease in sales by Dominions field services
and retail energy marketing operations, reflecting to a large
extent declining prices and '

* A $51 million decrease in Clearinghouse gas revenue, net of
applicable trading purchases, due to unfavorable price changes
on unsettled contracts and lower overall margins. Those losses
were partially offset by contributions from higher trading volumes
in gas and oil markets. The decrease included a $70 million rev-
enue decrease associated with the economic hedges.

Gas and oil production revenue increased 26% to $1.3 bil-
lion, reflecting higher overall production as a result of the inclu-
sion of a full year of operations after the Louis Dreyfus acquisition
and Dominion’s ongoing drilting programs. Average realized gas
and oil prices, including the effects of hedging, decreased for the
comparative years.

Operating Expenses and Other ltems
Purchased gas expense decreased 36% to $1.2 billion, primarity
reflecting:
* A $196 million decrease associated with field services and
gas transmission operations, primarily reflecting lower prices and
¢ A $489 million decrease associated with regulated gas oper-
ations discussed above in Regulated gas sales revenue.

Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases expense
decreased 28% to $159 million, primarily reflecting comparably
lower levels of rate recoveries of certain costs of fransmission
operations in the current year period. The difference between
actual expenses and amounts recovered in the period are
deferred pending future rate adjustments.

Other operations and maintenance expense decreased
25% to $2.2 billion, primarily reflecting the following expenses
incurred in 2001 that did not recur in 2002:

e A $281 million charge for impairments of certain financial
assets held by DCI;

¢ $151 million charge for credit exposure associated with the
bankruptcy of Enron;

¢ A $220 million charge related to the termination of certain
longterm power purchase contracts and

* A $40 million loss on the sale of assets by DCI.

Depreciation expense increased 1% fo $1.3 billion, primarily
reflecting the combined effects of:
¢ A $95 million decrease resulting from discontinued amortiza-
tion of goodwill effective January 1, 2002;
¢ A $58 million decrease related to the extension of estimated
useful lives of most fossil fuel stations and electric transmission
and distribution properties in 2002 and nuclear properties
in 2007%;
¢ $138 million of additional depreciation, depletion and
amortization expense recognized in connection with a full
year of operations after the Louis Dreyfus acquisition and
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¢ A $28 million increase associated with other new
plant additions.

Other taxes increased 9% to $429 million, primarily due to
higher severance taxes associated with a full year of Louis Drey-
fus operations. in addition, Dominion incurred higher property
taxes on new asset additions, partially offset by lower gross
receipts taxes, primarily reflecting lower regulated gas
sales revenue.

Other income decreased 18% to $103 million, primarily
reflecting $27 million of equity losses from DFV.

Income taxes Dominion’s effective income tax rate decreased,
reflecting the net $33 million effect of including certain sub-
sidiaries in Dominion’s consolidated state income tax returns. In
addition, the effective tax rate decreased for foreign earnings, the
discontinuance of goodwilt amortization for book purposes and
other factors.

Cuilook — Dominion
Dominion believes its operating businesses will provide growth
in net income on a per share basis, including the impact of
higher expected average shares outstanding, in 2004 and 2005.
Growth factors for 2004 include:
* Potential increase in regulated electric sales, as compared to
2003, assuming Dominion’s utility service ferritories experience o
return to normal weather in 2004;
¢ Continued growth in utility customers;
¢ Reduced electric capacity expenses, resulting from terminated
contracts;
* lower interest expense as a result of refinanced debt;
* Higher expected levels of gas and oil production as a result of
Devils Tower and Front Runner becoming operational;
* |mproved contributions from Millstone’s operations, resulting
from expected higher capacity factors and favorable scles prices;
¢ Higher contribution from Cove Point operations;
* Expected Six Sigma benefits and
¢ Specific costs and reductions to earnings in 2003 that are not
expected to recur in 2004, including:
» Lost revenue due to Hurricane Isabel;
¢ The Virginia fuel rate case settlement and
» Costs associated with refinancing callable debt.
For 2004, the growth factors will be partially offset by:
* Decreased pension credits and increased other postretirement
benefit costs;
¢ Higher expected operating expenses for gas and oil produc-
tion and
* Normalization of Clearinghouse contribution.
Growth factors for 2005 include:
¢ Gas and oil production growth, reflecting a full year of Devils
Tower and Front Runner operations;
o A full year of operations of the Kewaunee power plant,
expected to be acquired in the second half of 2004;
* Continued growth in utility customers;
* Expanded operations of Cove Point and




¢ Expected Six Sigma benefits.

For 2005, the growth factors are expected to be partially
offset by:

* increased inferest expense and
¢ Inflation and other factors.

Based on these projections, Dominion estimates that cash flow
from operations will increase in 2004, as compared to 2003.
Management believes this increase, coupled with reductions in
discretionary and developmental capital expenditures previously
planned for power generation and ges and oil exploration and
production projects, will provide sufficient cash flow to maintain
or grow Dominion’s current dividend to common shareholders.

Segment Results of Operations

Pominion Generation
Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of
Dominion’ electric utility and merchant fleet.

2003 2002 2001
[millions, except EPS)
Net income contribution $508 $567 $511
EPS contribution $1.59 $1.98 $2.02
Electricity supplied (millions mwhrs) 105 101 95

Presented below are the key factors impacting Dominion
Generation’s operating resulfs:

2003 vs. 2002 2002 vs. 2001

Increase Increase
(Decrease) {Decrease)
Amount EPS Amount EPS

{millions, except EPS)
Revenue reallocation $(57) $(0.20) - -
Regulated electric sales:

Weather (42) {0.15) $ 82 $ 0.32

Customer growth 23 0.08 25 0.10
Merchant generation

margins 18 0.06 (122) {C.48)
Capacily expenses 29 0.10 8 .03
Fuel setlement (9} (0.03) - -
Utility outages (13) (0.04) i1 0.04
Other (2) - 46 0.19
Share dilution - (0.21}) - (0.24)
Change in net

income contribution $(53) $(0.39) $ 50 $(0.04)

2003 vs. 2002

Dominion Generation’s net income contribution decreased

$53 million over 2002, primarily reflecting:

* A change in the allocation of electric utility base rate revenue
beginning in 2003 among Dominion Generation, Dominion
Energy and Dominion Delivery;

* A decrease in regulated electric sales due to comparably
milder summer weather, resulting in a decrease in cooling degree
days in 2003, partially offset by an increase in heating degree
days in 2003; |

* Anincrease in regulated electric sales due to customer growth
in the electric franchise service area; primarily reflecting an
increase in new residential customers;

¢ Scheduled decreases in capacity expenses under certain
power purchase agreements;

* Recognition of previously deferred fuel costs in connection
with the Virginia fuel rate seflement and

* Increased utility outage expenses, reflecting the refueling
activities at the utility nuclear facilities in 2003.

20602 vs, 2001

Dominion Generation’s net income contribution rose $50 million
over 2001, primarily reflecting:

¢ An increase in reguloted electric sales due to comparably
warmer summer weather, resulting in an increase in cooling
degree days;

¢ Anincrease in regulated electric sales due to customer growth
in the electric franchise service area, primarily reflecting an
increase in new residential customers and

¢ A decrease in merchant generation sales primarily as a result
of lower prices in 2002, partially offset by a full year of Millstone
operations.

Deminion Energy _
Dominion Energy includes Dominion’s electric transmission, nat-
ural gas transmission pipeline and storage businesses, certain
natural gas production, as well as Clearinghouse (energy trading
and marketing) and field services (aggregation of gas supply and
related wholesale activities) operations.

2003 2002 2001
[millions, except EPS)
Net income contribution $350 $268 $268
EPS contribution $1.10  $0.95 $1.06
Gas transportation throughput (bef} 612 597 553
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Presented below are the key factors impacting Dominion
Energy’s operating results:

2003 vs. 2002 2002 vs. 2001
Increase Increase
(Decrease) {Decrease)
Amount EPS Amount EPS

{millions, except EPS)
Clearinghouse $16 $ 0.06 $ (4) $(0.02)
Economic hedges 33 0.12 (43) (G.17)
Electric transmission

operations 11 0.04 16 0.06
Cove Point operations 9 0.03 - -
Revenue reallocation 7 0.02 - -
Interest (5) (0.02) & 0.02
Other 11 0.04 25 C.11
Share dilution - (0.14) - {0.11)
Change in net

income contribution $82 $0.5 - $(0.11)

2003 vs. 2002

Dominion Energy’s net income rose $82 million from 2002, pri-
marily reflecting:

* Anincrease in the contribution of Clearinghouse operations,
reflecting a $43 million increase in margins on settled contracts,
partially offset by a $27 million decrease in net mark-fo-market
gains on derivative contracts;

* An increase attributable to o reduction in net losses on the
economic hedges of Dominion Exploration & Production gas pro-
duction described in Selected Information—Energy Trading Activ-
ities below:

* A change in the dllocation of electric base rate revenue
among Dominion Generation, Dominion Energy and Dominion
Delivery effective January 1, 2003;

¢ Anincrease in electric transmission contribution due to cus-
tomer growth and other factors, partially offset by weather and

¢ The operations of Cove Point, which was reactivated

during 2003.
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2002 vs. 2001

Dominion Energy’s net income contribution did not change com-
pared to 2001, and reflected:

* A decrease in the contribution of Clearinghouse operations,
reflecting a $54 million decrease in net mark-to-market gains on
derivative contracts, partially offset by a $47 million increase in
margins on settled contracts;

¢ Net losses associated with the economic hedges of Dominion
Exploration & Production gas production;

¢ Anincrease in eleciric transmission contribution, reflecting the
impact of customer growth and favorable weather conditions as
well as reduced depreciation expense, resulting from the exten-
sion of estimated useful lives of transmission assets and

* A decrecse in inferest expense, resulting primerily from lower
interest rotes.

Selected Information — Energy Trading Activities

As previously described, Dominion Energy manages Dominion’s
energy trading, hedging and arbitrage activities through the
Clearinghouse. Dominion believes these operations complement
its integrated energy businesses and facilitate its risk manage-
ment activities. As part of these operations, the Clearinghouse
enters into contracts for purchases and sales of energy-related
commodities, including natural gas, electricity, and oil. Settle-
ments of contracts may require physical delivery of the underlying
commodity or cash setlement. The Clearinghouse enters into con-
tracts with the objective of benefiting from changes in prices. For
example, after entering into a contract to purchase a commodity,
the Clearinghouse typically enfers into a sales contract, or a com-
bination of sales contracts, with quantities and delivery or settle-
ment terms that are identical or very similar to those of the
purchase contract. When the purchase and sales contracts are
settled either by physical delivery of the underlying commodity or
by net cash settlement, the Clearinghouse may receive a net cash
margin {a realized gain), or may pay a net cash margin (a real-
ized loss). Clearinghouse management continually monitors its
contract positions, considering location and timing of delivery or
setflement for each energy commodity in relation to market price
activity, seeking arbitrage opportunities.




In addition, the Clearinghouse held a portfolio of financial
derivative instruments to manage Dominion’ price risk associated
with a portion of its anticipated sales of 2003 natural gas pro-
duction that had not been considered in the hedging activities of
the Dominion Exploration & Production segment {economic
hedges). For the yzar ended December 31, 2003, Dominion
Energy recognized a net loss of $10 million on the economic
hedges. As anticipated, Dominion Exploration & Production sold
sufficient volumes of natural gas in 2003 at market prices, which,
when combined with the setflement of the economic hedges,
resulted in o range of prices for those sales contemplated by the
risk management strategy.

A summary of the changes in the unrealized gains and losses
recognized for Dominion’s energy-related derivative instruments

held for trading purposes, including the economic hedges, during »

2003 follows:
Amount
(millions)
Net unrealized gain at December 31, 2002 $170
Reclassification of contracts —adoption of EITF 02-3:
Non-derivative energy contracts (110)
Derivative energy contracts, not held for irading purposes (81)
(21)
Confracts realized or otherwise seftled during the period a1
Net unrealized gain ot inception of contracts initiated
during the period -
Changes in valuation techniques -
Other changes in fair valve 13
Net unrealized gain at December 31, 2003 $ 33

The balance of net unrealized gains and losses recognized
for Dominion’s enargy-related derivative instruments held for
trading purposes, including the economic hedges at December
31, 2003, is summarized in the following table based on the
approach used tc determine fair value and contract settlement
or delivery dates: ‘

Maturity Based on Contract
Settlement or Delivery Date(s)

Less In Excess

Source of than 1-2 2-3 3-5 of
Fair Value 1 year years years years 5 years Total
(millions)
Actively quoted’  $(14) $24 $ 4 - - %14
Other external

sources(? - 10 6 $3 - 19
Models and

other valuation

methods®! - - - - - -
Tetal $(14) $34  $10 $3 ~  $33

{1} Exchange-traded cind overthe-counter contracts.

{2) Values based on prices from overthe-counter broker activity and industry
services and, where applicable, conventional option pricing models.

(3} Values based on Diominion’s estimate of future commodity prices when
information from external sources is not available and use of internally-
developed models, reflecting option pricing theory, discounted cash flow
concepts, etc.

Dominion Delivery

Dominion Delivery includes Dominion’s electric and gas distribu-
tion and customer service business, as well as retail energy mar-
keting operations.

2003 2002 2001
{millions, except EPS)
Net income contribution $ 453 ‘ $422 $3IN
EPS contribution $1.42 $1.49 $1.23
Electricity delivered (million mwhrs) 75 75 72
Gas throughput (bef] 373 364 357

Presented below are the key factors impacting Dominion
Delivery’s operating results:

2003 vs. 2002 2002 vs. 2001
Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
Amount EPS Amount EPS

{millions, except EPS)
Revenue reallocation $50 $0.18 - -
Customer growth —

utility operations 10 0.03 $ 10 $ 0.04
Weather {(5) {0.02) 530 0.20
Interest expense - - 14 0.06
Income taxes (9) (0.03) i8 0.07
Other (15) (0.05) 19 .07
Share dilution - (0.18) - {0.18)
Change in net

income contribution $31 $(0.07) $111 $ 0.26

2003 vs. 2002

Dominion Delivery’s net income contribution rose $31 million from
2002, primarily raflecting:

* A change in the allocation of electric base rate revenue
among Dominion Generation, Dominion Energy and Dominion
Delivery effective January 1, 2003;

¢ Customer growth in the electric and gas franchise service
areq, primarily reflecting new residential electric customers;

* A decrecse in regulated electric sales due to comparably
milder weather in Dominion’s electric utility service territories off-
set by the increase in regulated gas sales due to comparably
colder weather in Dominion’s gas utility service territories;

* A decrease in pension credits and an increase in other postre-
tirement benefit costs and

¢ The deferral of 2003 bad debt expenses as regulatory assets,
pending future recovery under a bad debt rider approved by the
Public Utility Commission of Ohic, effective January 1, 2003.

2002 vs. 2007

Dominion Deliverys net income contribution rose $111 million
over 2001, primarily reflecting:

e Customer growth in the electric and gas franchise service
areq, primarily reflecting new residential electric customers;

* Comparably warmer weather, resulting in increased summer
sales in Dominion’s electric service territories and comparably
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colder winter weather, resulting in increased sales in both electric
and gas service ferritories;

* A decrease in interest expense, resulting primarily from lower
interest rates and

¢ A decrease in the effective income tax rate for reasons
described for Dominion on o consolidated basis.

Deminion Explereiion & Production
Dominion Exploration & Production monages Dominion's gas and
oil exploration, development and production business.

2003 2002

2001
[millions, except EPS)
Net income contribution $ 415 §$ 380 § 320
EPS contribution $ 1.30 $ .34 $ 1.27
Gas production (bef) 384 385 283

Qil production {million bbls) 9 i¢ 7

Average realized prices with

hedging results:

Gas [per mcfji? $ 395 $ 3.40 $ 3.80
Gil {per bbl) 24.29 2328  23.42
Average prices without hedging results:
Gas (per mcf)i2 4.99 3.03 3.87
Qil {per bbl) 29.82 24.44 23.53
DD&A {per mcfe] $1.20 5 1.12 $ 1.08
Average production {lifting} cost

(per mcfe) 0.80 0.60 0.65

(1) Excludes the effects of the economic hedges discussed in the operating results
of Dominion Energy under Selected Information — Energy Trading Activities.

[2)Excludes $43 million of revenue recognized in 2003 under the volumetric
production payment agreement described in Note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Presented below are the key factors impacting Dominion
Exploration & Production’s operating results:

2003 vs. 2002 2002 vs. 2001

Increase Increamse
(Decrease) {(Decrease)
Amount EPS Amount EPS

{millions, except EPS)
Gas and oil —prices $133 $ 0.47 $ (38) $(0.35)
Gas and oil —

production {18) (0.06) 277 1.10
VPP revenue 27 0.10 - -
DD&A —rate (22) (0.08) 14 0.06
DD&A — production 3 0.01 (103) {©.42)
Operations and

maintenance (41) (0.15) (2%) {0.08)
Severance faxes (18) (0.06) {7} {0.03)
Income taxes (20) {0.07}) (3) {0.02)
Other (9) (0.03) (5} {0.03)
Share dilution - {0.17) - {0.76)
Change in net

income contribution ~ § 35 5(0.04) $ &0 $ 0.07

38. Dominion 2003

2003 vs. 2002

Dominion Exploration & Production’s net income contribution rose
$35 million from 2002, primarily reflecting:

* Higher average realized prices for gas and ail;

* Lower oil production, reflecting declines in Gulf of Mexico
shelf and deepwater production. Lower gas production, reflecting
the sale of minerals rights under a volumetric production payment
agreement (VPP) and declines in Rocky Mountain and Michigan
production, was largely offset by increased Gulf of Mexico gas
production;

s A higher rate for depreciation, depletion and amortization in
2003, primarily reflecting increased acquisition, finding and
development costs;

* Higher operations and maintenance expenses which
increased in connection with overall higher commodity prices in
2003, that caused an increase in the demand for equipment,
labor and services;

* Higher severance taxes, resulting from higher gas and oil rev-
enue associated with higher commodity prices in a higher com-
modity price environment and

¢ Higher income taxes, primarily reflecting the expiration of Sec-
tion 29 production tax credits beginning in 2003 {$34 million),
partially offset by a reduction in tax rates applied to deferred
toxes associated with Canadian operations ($14 million).

20802 vs. 2001

Dominion Exploration & Production’s net income contribution rose
$60 million, primarily reflecting a full year of Louis Dreyfus oper-
ations following its acquisition in the fourth quarter of 2001.
These new operations, as well as ongoing drilling programs,
resulted in increased gas and oil production, and higher operat-
ing expenses, such as depreciation, depletion and amortization
and gas well expenses.

Corporate and Other

Corporate and Other includes the operations of DCI, DFV and
related telecommunications operations, and Dominion’s corporate
and other operations.

2003 2002 2001

(millions, except EPS amounts)
Specific items attributable to

operaling segments $ (221) $§ 7 $(297)
DCl operations (95) 14 (225)
Telecommunications operations!!) {(750) {26) -
Other corporate operations (342) (264) (344)
Total net expense {1,408) (269) (866)
Earnings per share impact $ (4.41) 5(0.94) ${3.43)

(1) $642 million is classified as discontinued operations in 2003.




Specific Items Attributable to Operating Segments — 2003
During 2003, Dominion reported in the Corporate and Other seg-
ment the following ifems attributable to its operating segments:

* 321 million net aftertax gain representing the cumulative effect
of adopting new accounting principles, as described in Note 3 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, including:

* SFAS No. 143: a $180 million aftertax gain attributable fo:
Dominion Generation ($188 million aftertax gain); Dominion
Exploration & Production {$7 million aftertax loss); and
Dominion Delivery ($1 million aftertax loss);

¢ EiTF 02-3: a $67 million afterfax loss atfributable to
Dominion Energy;

* SFAS No. 133 Interpretation C20: a $75 million aftertax
loss attributable to Dominion Generation and

* FIN 44R: a 517 million aftertax loss aftributable to
Dominion Generation;

*  $197 million of operations and maintenance expense

($122 million afteriax), representing incremental restoration
expenses associated with Hurricane Isabel, attributable primarily
to Dominion Delivery;

s A 3105 million [$65 million aftertax) charge for the termina-
tion of power purchase contracts attributable to Dominion
Generation; '

* A $64 million ($39 million aftertax) charge for the restructur-
ing and termination of certain electric sales contracts atiributable
to Dominion Generation and

e $28 million ($16 million aftertax) of severance costs for work-
force reductions during the first quarter of 2003, attributable to:

¢ Dominion Generation ($8 million aftertax)

* Dominion Energy ($2 million aftertax),

* Dominicn Delivery ($4 million oftertax),

¢ Dominion Exploration & Production ($1 million after-
tax) and

* Corporate and other [$1 million aftertax);

Specific ltems Attributable to Operating Segments —2001
During 2001, Dominion reported in the Corporate and Other seg-
ment the following items attributable to its operating segments:
* A 368 million aftertax charge for restructuring activities,
including employee severance and terminafion benefits and costs
associated with the termination of leases, attributable to:

* Dominion Generation {$8 million aftertax);

¢ Dominion Energy {$2 million aftertax];

* Dominicon Delivery ($44 million aftertax) and

* Dominion Exploration & Production ($3 million
aftertax);
* A $97 million aftertax charge for credit exposure associoted
with the bankruptcy of Enron aftributable to:

¢ Dominion Exploration & Production ($99 million
aftertax);

* Dominion Energy {$2 million oftertax credit);

o A $136 million aftertax charge related to the termination of
cerfain long4erm power purchase contracts aftributable to
Dominion Generation.

DCI Operations

DCl recognized o net loss in 2003, resulting primarily from the
recognition of the following:

o $51 million ($32 million aftertax| impairment of retained intfer-
ests from securitizations;

*  $34 million {$22 million aftertax) impairment of goodwill and
other investments;

¢ $23 million {$15 million aftertax) recognized in connection
with the sale of financial assets during the fourth quarter of

2003 and

¢ $26 million valuation allowance on certain deferred

tax assets.

DCi earned $14 miflion in 2002, compared to a net loss of
$225 million in 2001. The net loss in 2001, resulted primarily
from the recognition of the following:

e $102 million ($66 million affertax) impairment of retained
interests from securitizations;

e $94 million ($61 million aftertox) impairment of loans receiv-
able and

¢ $85 million [$55 million aftertax) impairment of other
investments.

Telecommunications Operations

Dominion’ loss from its telecommunications business increased
$724 million to $750 million in 2003, primarily reflecting:

e $566 million associated with the impairment of network
assets and related inventories. Dominion has not recognized any
deferred tax benefits related to the impairment charges, since
realization of tax benefits will be dependent upon Dominion’s
future tax profile;

* A $48 million increase in deferred tax expense as a result of
the increase in the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets;

* Dominion’s purchase of the remaining equity inferest in

DFV held by another party for $62 million in December 2003,
$60 million of which was recorded as goodwill and impaired;

¢ $57 million {$35 million aftertax) for the costs associated with
Dominions acquisition of DFV senior notes and

¢ $41 million of aftertax operating losses.

39. Dominion 2003




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Continued

Other Corporate Operations
The net loss associated with other corporate operations for 2003
increased by $78 million as compared to 2002, primarily reflect-
ing the impairment of certain investments held for sale. Included
in these investments was a small generation facility in Kauai,
Hawaii that was sold in December 2003

The net loss associated with other corporate operations
decreased in 2002 as compared to 2001, primarily as a result
of discontinuing the amortization of goodwill beginning
January 1, 2002.

Dominion’s Sources and Uses
of Cash

Dominion and ifs subsidiaries depend on both internal and
external sources of liquidity to provide working copital and to
fund capital requirements. Shortterm cash requirements not
met by cash provided by operating activities are generally
satisfied with proceeds from shortterm borrowings. Llong-term
cash needs are met through sales of securities and additional
long-term financing.

At December 31, 2003, Dominion had cash and cash equive-
fents of $126 million with $655 million of unused capacity under
its credit facilities. For longterm financing needs, amounts avail-
able for debt or equity offerings under currently effective shelf
registrations totaled $4.4 billion at March 1, 2004.

Cash Provided By Operations :
As presented on Dominion’s Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows, net cash flows from operating activities were $2.4 billion
for each of the years 2003, 2002 and 2001. Dominion’s manage-
ment believes that its operations provide a stable source of cash
flow sufficient to contribute to planned levels of capital expendi-
tures and maintain or grow current shareholder dividend levels.
Dominion’s operaticns are subject fo risks and uncertainties
that may negatively impact the timing or amounts of operating
cash flow, including:
¢ Unusual weather and its effect on energy sales to customers
and energy commodity prices;
* Extreme weather events that could disrupt gas and oil produc-
fion or cause catastrophic damage to Dominion’s electric distribu-
tion and transmission systems;
» Exposure to unanticipated changes in prices for energy com-
modities purchased or sold, including the effect on derivative
instruments that may require the use of funds fo post margin
deposits with counterparties;
¢ Effectiveness of Dominion’s risk management activities and
underlying assessment of market conditions and related factors,
including energy commodity prices, basis, liquidity, volatility,
counterparty credit risk, availability of generation and transmis-
sion capacity, currency exchange rates and interest rates;
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* The cost of replacement electric energy in the event of longer-
than-expected or unscheduled generation outages;
 Contractual or regulatory restrictions on transfers of funds
among Dominion and its subsidiaries; and

¢ Timeliness of recovery for costs subject to cost-of-service utility
rate regulation.

Credit Risk

Dominion’s exposure fo potential concentrations of credit risk
results primarily from its energy trading, marketing and hedging
activities and sales of gas and il production. Presented below is
o summary of Dominion’s gross and net credit exposure as of
December 31, 2003 for these activities. Dominion calculates ifs
gross credit exposure for each counterparty as the unrealized fair
value of derivative contracts plus any outstanding receivables (net
of payables, where netting agreements exist), prior fo the appli-
cation of collateral.

Gross Net
Credit Credit Credit
Exposure Collateral Exposure
{millions)
Investment grade!) $404 - $404
Non-investment grade? 60 $14 46
No external ratings:
Internally rated —
investment grade®®) 306 - 306
Internally rated —
non-investment grade!4) 109 - 109
Total $879 $14 $865

{1) Designations as investment grade are based upon minimum credit rafings
assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor’s. The five largest counterparty
exposures, combined, for this category represented approximately 13% of
the total gross credit exposure.

(2] The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category
represented approximately 4% of the total gross credit exposure.

(3) The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category
represented approximately 24% of the total gross credit exposure.

{4) The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category
represented approximately 5% of the fotal gross credit exposure.

Cash Provided By Financing Activities

Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Electric and Power Company
{Virginia Power) and CNG (collectively the Dominion Compa-
nies) rely on bank and capital markets as a significant source of
funding for capital requirements not satisfied by cash provided
by the companies' operations. As discussed further in the

Credit Ratings section below, the Dominion Companies’ ability
to borrow funds or issue securities and the return demanded by
investors are affected by the issuing company’s credit ratings. In
addition, the raising of external capital is subject fo certain regu-
latory approvals, including authorization by the SEC and, in the
case of Virginia Power, the Virginia State Corporation Commis-
sion {Virginia Commission).




During 2003, 2002 and 2001, net cash flows from financing
activities were $853 million, $1.3 billion and $1.9 billion, respec-
tively. During 2003, the Dominion Companies issued long-term
debt (net of exchanged debt) and common stock totaling approxi-
mately $4.4 billion. The proceeds were used primarily to repay
other debt and fo finance capital expenditures.

Credit Facilities and Short-Term Debt

The Dominion Comr panies use shortterm debt, primarily commer-
cial paper, to fund working capital requirements and as bridge
financing for acquisitions, if applicable. The levels of borrowing
may vary significantly during the course of the year, depending
upon the timing and amount of cash requirements not satisfied
by cash from operations. At December 31, 2003, the Dominion
Companies had committed lines of credit totaling $3.0 billion,
Although there were no loans outstanding, these lines of credit
support commercial paper borrowings and lefter of credit
issuances. At December 31, 2003, the Dominion Companies
had the following shortterm debt outstanding and capacity
available under credit facilities:

Qutstanding Owutstanding Facility
Facility Commercial Letters of  Capacity
Limit Paper Credit Available
{millions)
364-day joint
revolving credit
facility $1,250
Three-yeor joint
revolving credit
facility 750
Total joint credit
facilities!" 2,000 $1,440 $ 85 $475
364-day CNG
credit facility( 1,000 - 820 180
Totals $3,000 $1,440 $905 $655

(1) The joint credit facilities support borrowings by the Dominion Companies. The
364-day revolving zredit facility was executed in May 2003 and terminates in
May 2004, The three-year revolving credit facility was executed in May 2002
and terminates in May 2005.

{2)The credit facility i used to support the issuance of lefters of credit and
commercial paper by CNG to fund collateral requirements under its gas and
ofl hedging program. The facility was executed in August 2003 and
terminates in August 2004.

Dominion’s financial policy preciudes issuing commercial
paper in excess cf its supporting lines of credit. At December 31,
2003, the total amount of commercial paper outstanding was
$1,440 million and the total amount of letter of credit issuances
was $905 million, leaving approximately $655 million available
for issuance. The Dominion Companies are required to pay
minimal annual commitment fees to maintain the credit facilities.

e |

In addition, these credit agreements contain various terms and
conditions that could affect the Dominion Companies’ ability
to borrow under these facilities. They include maximum debt to
total capital ratios, material adverse change clauses and cross-
default provisions,

All of the credit facilities include a defined maximum fotal
debt to total capite! ratio. As of December 31, 2003, the calcu-
lated ratio for the Dominion Companies, pursuant fo the terms of
the agreements, was as follows:

Moximum  Actual
Company Ratio Ratio®
Dominion Resources, Irc. 65% 56%
Virginia Power 60% 52%
CNG 60% 52%

{1} Indebtedness as defined by the bank agreements excludes certain junior
subordinated notes payable to affiliated trusts and mandatorily convertible
securities that are reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

These provisions apply separately to Dominion Resources,
Inc., Virginia Power and CNG. if any one of the Dominion
Companies or any of that specific company’s material sub-
sidiaries fail to make payment on various debt obligations in
excess of $25 million, the lenders could require that respective
company to accelerate its repayment of any outstanding borrow-
ings under the credit facility and the lenders could terminate
their commitment to lend funds to that company. Accordingly,
any defoults on indebtedness by CNG or any of its material
subsidiaries would not affect the lenders’ commitment to Virginia
Power. Similarly, any defaults on indebtedness by Virginia
Power or any of its material subsidiaries would not affect the
lenders’ commitment to CNG. However, any default by either
CNG or Virginia Power would also affect in like manner the
lenders’ commitment to Dominion Resources, Inc. under the joint
credit agreements.

Although the joint credit agreements contain material adverse
change clauses, the participating lenders, under those specific
provisions, cannot refuse to advance funds to any of the
Dominion Companies for the repurchase of its outstanding com-
mercial paper.

Common Stock

During 2003, Dominion issued 17 million shares of common
stock and received proceeds of $990 million. Of this amount,

11 million shares and proceeds of $683 million resulted from a
public offering. The remainder of the shares issued and proceeds
received were through Dominion Direct® {a dividend reinvest
ment and open enrollment direct stock purchase plan), employee
savings plans and the exercise of employee stock options.
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Long-Term Debt
During 2003, Dominion Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries
issued the following long-term debt:

Issuing
Type Principal Rate  Maturity Company
: {miltions)
Senior notes $2,120 2.125%to 2005to Dominion
6.30% 2033 Resources, Inc,
Senior notes 500 Variable 2013 Dominion
’ Resources, Inc.
Senior notes 200 5.00% 2014 CNG
Senior notes 1,055 4.10% to 2010to Virginia Power
5.25% 2038
Total long-ferm
debt issued 3,875
Less: direct
exchange® (500)
Total long-term debt
issued, excluding
direct exchanges  $3,375

{1) During the third quarter of 2003, Dominion redeemed its $500 million
variable rate senior notes due 2013, In a direct exchange, Dominion
completed the redemption by issuing $510 million of 5.25% senior notes
due 2033,

In addition to the senior notes described above, Dominion
borrowed $18 million to complete ¢ power generation project at
Virginia Power’s Possum Point power station.

In January 2004, Dominion Resources, Inc. issued $100 mil-
lion of variable rate senior notes due 2006 and $200 million of
5.2% senior notes due 2016. Net proceeds were used for general
corporate purposes, principally the repayment of debt.

During 2003, Dominion Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries
repaid $2.9 billion of long-term debt securities. Dominion used
the entirety of its $500 million escrow deposit, established in
December 2002, to repay matured debt in January 2003.

Amounts Available under Shelf Registrations

At March 1, 2004, Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Power, and
CNG had approximately $2.4 billion, $670 million, and $1.3 bil-
lion, respectively, of available capacity under currently effective
shelf registrations. Securities that may be issued under these shelf
registrations, depending upon the registrant, include senior notes
{including medium-term notes), subordinated notes, first and
refunding morigage bonds, trust preferred securities, preferred
stock and common stock.
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Credit Ratings

Credif rafings are infended to provide banks and capital market
participants with a framework for comparing the credit quality of
securities and are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold secu-
rities. Management believes that the current credit ratings of the
Dominion Companies provide sufficient access to the capital mar-
kets. However, disruptions in the banking and capital markets not
specifically related to Dominion may affect the Dominion Compao-
nies’ ability to access these funding sources or cause an increcse
in the return required by investors.

Both quantitative (financial strength) and qualitative (business
or operating characteristics) factors are considered by the credit
rating agencies in establishing an individual company’s credit rat-
ing. Credit ratings should be evaluated independently and are
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rat-
ing organization. The credit ratings for the Dominion Companies
are most affected by each company financial profile, mix of reg-
ulated and nonregulated businesses and respective cash flows,
changes in methodologies used by the rating agencies and
“event risk,” if applicable, such as major acquisitions.

Credit ratings for the Dominion Companies as of February 2,
2004 follow:

Standard
& Poor’s Moody’s
Dominion Resources, inc.
Senior unsecured debt securities BBB+ Baal
Preferred securities of affiliated trusts BBB- Baa2
Commercial paper A2 P-2
Virginia Power
Mortgage bonds A~ A2
Senior unsecured (including tax-exempt)
debt securities BBB+ A3
Preferred securities of affiliated trust BBB Baal
Preferred stock BBB Baa?
Commercial paper A2 P
CNG
Senior unsecured debt securities BBB+ A3
Preferred securities of affilioted trust BBB- Baal
Commercial paper A2 p-2

As of February 2, 2004, Moody’s maintains o negative out-
look for its ratings of CNG and Standard & Poor’s maintains a
negative outlook for its ratings of Dominion Resources, Inc. and
CNG.

Generally, o downgrade in an individual company’s credit rat-
ing would not restrict its ability to raise shortterm and long-term
financing so long s its credit rating remains “investment grade,”
but it would increase the cost of borrowing. Dominion has been
working closely with both Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s with
the objective of maintaining its current credit ratings. Recent steps
to improve the agencies’ view of Dominion’s financial position




include the reduction of planned capital spending and related
borrowings, as discussed below, and the issuance of $2.0 billion
of common stock during 2002 and $990 million during 2003,
As discussed in Risk Factors and Cautionary Statements That
May Affect Future Results, in order to maintain its current ratings,
Dominion may find it necessary to modify its business plans

and such changes may adversely affect its growth and earnings
per share.

Debt Covenants

As part of borrowing funds and issuing debt (both shortterm and
long-term) or preferred securities, the Dominion Companies must
enter into enabling agreements. These agreements contain

covenants that, in the event of default, could result in the accelero-

tion of principal and interest payments; restrictions on distribu-
tions related to its capital stock, including dividends,
redemptions, repu-chases, liquidafion payments or guarantee
payments; and in some cases, the fermination of credit commit-
ments unless @ waiver of such requirements is agreed to by the
lenders/security holders. These provisions are customary, with
each agreement specifying which covenants apply. These provi-
sions are not necessarily unique fo the Dominion Companies.
Some of the typiccl covenants include:
* The timely payment of principal and interest;
¢ Information requirements, including submitting financial
reports filed with the SEC to lenders;
* Performance obligations, audits/inspections, continuation of
the basic nature of business, restrictions on certain matters
related to merger or consolidation, restrictions on disposition of
substantial assets;
¢ Compliance with collateral minimums or requirements related
to morigage bonds; and
¢ Limitations on liens.

Dominion monitors the covenants on a regular basis in order
to ensure that events of default will not occur. As of December 3],
2003, there were rio events of default under the Dominion Com-
panies’ covenants.

Cash Used In Investing Activities

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, investing activities resulted in net
cash outflows of $3.4 billion, $4.0 billion, and $4.2 billion,
respectively. Significant investing activities for 2003 included:

e $2.1 billion for the construction and expansion of generation
facilities, including environmental upgrades, purchases of nuclear
fuel, and construction and improvements of gas and electric
transmission and distribution assets;

¢ $1.3 billion for the purchase and development of gas and oil
producing properties, drilling and equipment costs and undevel-
oped lease acquisitions; .

* $777 million for the purchase of securities and $912 million
for the sale of securities, primarily related to investments held in
nuclear decommissioning trusts,

*  $633 million for purchase of DFV senior notes;

*  $385 million-in advances related to @ generation project
under construction in Pennsylvania. The asset, when completed,
will be leased to Dominion;

e $305 million of proceeds from sales of gas and oil prop-
erties and

¢ release of $500 million from escrow for the repayment

of debt.

Future Cash Payments For Confractual Obligations
and Planned Capital Expenditures

Dominion is party to numerous contracts and arrangements oblig-
ating Dominion to make cash payments in future years. These
contracts include financing arrangements such as debt agree-
ments and leases, as well as contracts for the purchase of goods
and services and financial derivatives. Presented below is « table
summarizing expected cash payments that may result from con-
tracts to which Dominion is a party as of December 31, 2003.

For purchase obligations and other liabilities, amounts are largely
esfimated based upon contract terms, including fixed, minimum
or expected quantities to be purchased af fixed or market-based
prices. Actual cash payments will be based upon actual quanti-
ties purchased and prices paid and will likely differ from amounts
presented below.

Less More
Than 1 1-3 3-5 thans
year years years years Total
{millions)
Long-term debt® $1,239 §$3,724 $2,626 59,485 $17,074
Interest charges 981 1,778 1,383 7,965 12,107
leases 70 95 60 57 282
Purchase obligations:
Purchased electric
capacity for utility
operations 589 1,155 1,063 4,176 6,983
Fuel used for utility
operations—other” 986 638 309 424 2,357
Production handling 44 117 89 43 293
Pipeline capacity 86 141 89 235 551
Energy commodity
purchasesfor
resalel 547 102 24 - 673
Other fuel —
nonregulated 30 119 102 - 251
Other 283 276 265 274 1,098
Other long-term liabilities:
Financial derivatives® 725 645 40 193 1,603
Asset retirement
obligations 49 56 84 11,502 11,691
Other contractual
obligations 55 35 4 32 126

Total cash poyments  $5,684 $8,881 $6,138 $34,386 $55,089

{1) Based on stated maturity dates rather than the earlier redemption dates that
could be elected by instrument holders.

(2)Fuel used in utility operations is recoverable through rate recovery
mechanisms.

{3) Represents the summation of setilement amounts, by contracts, due from
Dominion if all physizal or financial transactions among Dominien and its
counterparties were liquidated and terminated.

[4)Represents expected cash payments adjusted for inflation for estimated costs to
perform asset refirement activities.

43. Dominion 2003




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Continued

Dominion’s planned capital expenditures during 2004 are
expected to total approximately $2.4 billion. For 2005, planned
capital expenditures are expected to range from $2.4 billion to
$2.6 billion. These expenditures include construction and expan-
sion of generation facilities, environmental upgrades, construc-
tion.improvements and expansion. of gas and electric

transmission and distribution assets, purchases of nuclear-fuel~ —-

and expenditures to explore for and develop natural gas and oil
properties. Dominion expects fo fund its capital expenditures with
cash from operations, and a combination of sales of securities
and shortterm borrowings.

Dominion may choose to postpone or cancel certain planned
capital expenditures, fo the extent they are not fully covered by
operating cash flows. Dominion would do this in order to mitigate
the need for future debt financings, beyond those needed to
cover normal maturities and redemptions.

Use of Of-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Leasing Arrangements
As of December 31, 2003, Dominion was party to an agreement
with a voting interest entity {lessor) in order to construct and lease
a new power generation project in Pennsylvania. Project costs
totaled $695 million at December 31, 2003 of which $624 mil-
lion was advanced to the lessor by Dominion. Dominion expects
to be repaid during 2004. This project is expected to be com-
pleted in 2004 and will result in estimated annual lease commit-
ments of approximately $58 million. A lease agreement has not
yet been executed for this project, however, Dominion expects
that, once executed, it will qualify os an operating lease.

Dominion has been appointed to act as the construction agent
for the lessor and controls the design and construction of the facil-
ity. Dominion, in this role, is responsible for completing construc-
tion by a specified date. In the event a project is terminated
before completion, Dominion has the option to either purchase
the project for 100% of project costs plus fees or terminate the
project and turn it over to the lessor.

Benefits of this arrangement include:
¢ Certain tax benefits as Dominion would be considered the
owner of the leased property for tax purposes. As a result, it
would be entitled 1o tax deductions for depreciation not recog-
nized for financial accounting purposes and
* As an operating lease for financial accounting purposes, the
asset and related borrowings used tfo finance the construction of
the asset would not be included on Dominion’s Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheets. Although this improves measures of leverage calcu-
lated using amounts reported in Dominion’s Consolidated
Financial Statements, credit rating agencies view lease obliga-
tions as debt equivalents in evaluating Dominion's credit profile.
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trusts have no recourse to Dominion’ other assets for failure of

Securitizations of Mortgages and Loans

As of December 31, 2003, Deminion held $413 million of
retained interests from securitizations of mortgage and commer-
cial loans completed in prior years. Dominion did not securitize
or originate any loans in 2003, Investors in the securitization

-debtors to repay principal and inferest on the underlying loans

when due. Therefore, Dominion’s exposure to any future losses
from this activity is limited to its investment in retained interests.

Future Issues and Other Matters

Status of Deregulation in Virginia

The Virginia Electric Utility Restructuring Act (the Virginia Restruc-
furing Act], enacted in 1999, established a plan to restructure the
electric utility industry in Virginia. The Virginia Restructuring Act
addressed among other things: capped base rates, participation
in a regional transmission organization (RTO), retail choice and
the recovery of stranded costs. Dominion made retail choice
available to all of its Virginia reguiated electric customers as of
January 1, 2003.

Base Rates

Under the Virginia Restructuring Act, the generation portion of
Dominion’ Virginia jurisdictional operations is no longer subject
to cost-based rate regulation. Dominion’s base rates (excluding
fuel costs and certain other allowable adjustments) will remain
capped until July 2007, unless modified or terminated sconer
under the Virginio‘ Restructuring Act. Recovery of generation-
related costs will continue through capped rates, and, where
applicable, a wires charge assessed on those customers opting
for alternative suppliers. Additionally, the Virginia Restructuring
Act provides that after the end of the capped rate pericd, any
default service provided by Dominion will be based upon
competitive market prices for electric generation services.

In January 2004, legislation supported by the Offices of the
Governor and the Attorney General of Virginia was submitted o
the Virginia General Assembly that would extend the capped
base rates by three and one-half years, through December 31,
2010. The bill was supported by Dominion and was approved by
the Virginia Senate in late January 2004. in addition to extend-
ing capped rates, the bill would:

* lock in Dominion’s fuel factor until the earlier of July 1, 2007
or the termination of capped rates through Virginia Commission
order;

* Provide for a onetime adiusiment of Dominion’s fuel factor,
effective July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010, with no adjust-
ment for previously incurred overrecovery or under-recovery of
fuel costs and thus would eliminate deferred fuel accounting and
* End wires charges on the earlier of July 1, 2007, or the termi-
nation of capped rates, consistent with the Virginia Restructuring
Act’s original timetable.




Other bills were infroduced in the Virginia House of Delegates
that would repeal the Virginia Restructuring Act, suspend most
of the Virginia Restructuring Act, suspend customer choice, and
re-impose “cost of service” rate moking. Legislation calling for
suspension of the Virginia Restructuring Act’s key provisions
and a return to the cost-of-service regulatory methodology was
defeated in @ House committee in early February. Other meo-
sures have been deferred to 2005 by a House committee. Until
the legislative process is concluded, no assessment can be made
concerning future developments.

RTO

The Virginia Restructuring Act requires that Dominion join an
RTO subject to Virginia Commission approval. FERC requires
each public utility that owns or operates transmission facilities to
make certain filings with respect to RTO formation, but relies on
voluntary formation of RTOs to advance its energy policies. By
joining an RTQ, Dominion’s regulated electric utility subsidiary,
Virginia Power, would transter functional control of its transmis-
sion assets to a third-party RTO.

In September 2002, Dominion and PJM Interconnection, LLC
{PJM] entered into the PJM South Implementation Agreement. The
agreement provides that, subject fo regulatory approval and cer-
tain provisions, Dominion will become a member of PJM, transfer
functional control of its electric transmission facilities to PJM for
inclusion in @ new PJM South Region and integrate its control
area into the PJM energy markets. The agreement also allocates
costs of implementation of the agreement among the parties.

In June 2003, Dominion made a filing as required by the
Virginia Restructuring Act requesting authorization from the Vir-
ginia Commission io become a member of PJM on November 1,
2004. In September 2003, the Virginia Commission issued an
order directing Dominicn to provide additional information con-
cerning the application. Hearings on Dominion’s application are
scheduled to begin in October 2004. Dominion intends to file for
FERC and North Carolina Commission approval to join PJM in
the future.

Dominion has incurred and will continue to incur integration
and operating costs associated with joining an RTO. Dominion
has deferred certain of these costs for future recovery and is giv-
ing further consideration to seeking regulatory approval to defer
the balance of such costs.

Recovery of Stranded Costs
Stranded costs are those generation-related costs incurred or
commitments made by ufilities under cost-based regulation that
may not be reasorably expected to be recovered in a competi-
tive market. At December 31, 2003, Dominion’s exposure to
potentially stranded costs consisted of long-term purchased
power contracts that could ultimately be determined to be above
market; generating plants that could possibly become uneconomi-
cal in a deregulated environment; and unfunded obligations for
nuclear plant deccmmissioning and postretirement benefits not
yet recognized in the financial statements. Dominion believes
capped electric relail rates and, where applicable, wires charges
will provide an opportunity fo recover a portion of its potentially
stranded costs, depending on market prices of electricity and
other factors. Recovery of Dominion’s potentially stranded costs
remains subject to numerous risks even in the capped-rate envi-
ronment. These include, among others, exposure to long-term
power purchase commitment losses, future environmental compli-
ance requirements, changes in tax laws, nuclear decommission-
ing costs, inflation, increased capital costs, and recovery of
certain other items,

The enactment of deregulation legislation in 1999 not
only caused the disconfinuance of SFAS No. 71 for Dominion’s
Virginia jurisdictional utility generation-related operations but
also caused Dominion to review its utility generation assets for
impairment and long-term power purchase contracts for potential
losses at that time. Significant assumptions considered in that
review included possible future market prices for fuel and electric-
ity, load growth, generating unit availability and future capacity
additions in Dominion’s market, cepital expenditures, including
those related to environmental improvements, and decommission-
ing activities. Based on those analyses, no recognition of plant
impairments or contract losses was appropriate at that time. In
response to future events resulting from the development of a com-
petitive market structure in Virginia and the expiration or termina-
tion of capped rates and wires charges, Dominion may have to
reevaluate its utility generation assets for impairment and long-
term power purchase contracts for potential losses. Assumptions
about future market prices for electricity represent a critical factor
that affects the results of such evaluations. Since 1999, market
prices for electricity have fluctuated significantly and will con-
tinue to be subject fo volatility. Any:such review in the future,
which would be highly dependent on assumptions considered
appropriate at the time, could possibly result in the recognition of
plant impairment or contract losses that would be material to
Dominion’s results of operations or its financial position.

In January 2004, the Commission on Electric Utility
Restructuring adopted a resolution related to the monitoring of
stranded costs.
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Changes to Cost Structure While the Virginia Restructuring
Act did not define specific generation-related costs to be recov-
ered, it did provide for generation-related cash flows (through the
combination of capped rates and wires charges billed to cus-
tomers} through july 1, 2007, unless terminated ecrlier pursuant fo
the Virginia Restructuring Act (the transition period). The genero-
tion-related cash flows provided by the Virginia Restructuring Act
are intended to compensate Dominion for continuing to provide
generation services and to allow Dominion management to incur
costs fo restructure such operations during the transition period.
As a result, during the transition perioci, Dominion may increase
earnings ‘o the extent that management can reduce operating
costs for its utility generation-related operations. Conversely, the
same risks affecting the recovery of Dominion stranded costs,
discussed above, may also adversely impact its cost structure dur-
ing the transition period. Accordingly, Dominion could realize the
negative economic impact of any such adverse event. In addition
to manoging the cost of its generation-related operations,
Dominion may also seek opportunities to sell available electric
energy and capacity to customers beyond its electric utility ser-
vice territory. Using cash flows from operations during the transi-
tion period, Dominion may further alter its cost structure or
choose to make additional investment in its business.

The capped rates were derived from rates established as part
of the 1998 Virginia rate setflement and do not provide for spe-
cific recovery of particular generation-related expenditures,
except for certain regulatory assets. To the extent that Dominion
manages its operations to reduce its overall operating costs
below those levels included in the capped rates, Dominion’s
earnings may increase. Since the enactment of the Virginia
Restructuring Act, Dominion has been reviewing its cost structure
to identify opportunities to reduce the annual operating expenses
of its generation-related operations. For example, the reduction in
future fixed capacity payments, resulting from the termination of
certain leng-term power purchase agreements during 2001 and
2003, is expected to increase annual after—tox earnings by
approximately $48 million during the transition pericd.

Also in 2002 and 2001, Dominion revised the estimated
useful lives of its electric generation assefs. The changes in esti-
mates were based upon expected life-extensions of nuclear
plants and new engineering studies of the other assets. As a
result of these changes, annual aftertox earnings will increase
by approximately $67 million during the transition period, s
a result of lower depreciation expense for these assets.
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FERC Standard Market Design Proposat

In 2002, FERC issued proposed rules that would establish a stan-
dardized transmission service and wholesale electric market
design for entities participating in wholesale electric markets.
FERC proposed to exercise jurisdiction over the transmission com-
ponent of bundled retail transactions, modify the existing electric
fransmission tariff to include a single tariff service applicable fo
all transmission customers and provide a standard market design
for wholesale electric markets. FERC also proposed that fransmis-
sion owners that have nof yet joined an RTO must contract with a
separate entity, an independent transmission provider, to operate
their transmission facilities. FERC scheduled a number of techni-
cal conferences and meetings with interested parties and has
indicated that the market design and timing of the rule is subject
to change.

In April 2003, FERC issued a discussion document addressing
several issues raised by state regulatory commissions and market
participants in FERC's proposed Standard Market Design. The
document proposes certain changes to Standard Market Design
and to work with the states and market participanis to develop
reasonable timetables for moving forward on the formation of
RTOs. FERC also stated that it would not use the Standard Market
Design rulemaking to overturn prior RTO orders where there is an
overlap. It is uncertain what impact, if any, these matters may
have on Dominion’s efforts to join PJM or on the design of whole-
sale electric markets.

Environmental Matters

Dominion is subject to costs resulting from @ number of federal,
state and local laws and regulations designed to protect human
health and the environment. These laws and regulations affect
future planning and existing operations. They can result in
increased capital, operating and other costs cs ¢ result of compli-
ance, remediation, containment and monitoring obligations. His-
torically, Dominion recovered such costs arising from regulated
electric operations through utility rates. However, to the extent
that environmental costs are incurred in connection with opera-
tions regulated by the Virginia Commission, during the period
ending June 30, 2007, in excess of the level currently included in
the Virginic jurisdictional electric retail rates, Dominion’s results
of operations will decrease. After that date, recovery through reg-
ulated rates may be sought for only those environmental costs
related to regulated electric transmission and distribution opera-
tions. Dominion also may seek recovery through regulated rates
for environmental expenditures related to regulated gas transmis-
sion and distribution operations.




Environmental Protection and Monitoring Expenditures
Dominion incurred approximately $113 million, $123 million and
$116 million of expenses {including depreciation) during 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively, in connection with environmental
profection and monitoring activities, and expects these expenses
to be approximately $120 million in 2004. In addition, capital
expenditures related to environmental controls were $210 million,
$335 million and $221 mitlion for 2003, 2002 and 2007,
respectively. The estimated amount for these expenditures is

$100 million for 2004.

Clean Air Act Compliance

The Clean Air Act requires Dominion to reduce its emissions of
sulfur dioxide {SO,) and nitregen oxide (NO,), which are
gaseous by-products of fossil fuel combustion. The Clean Air Acts
SO, and NO, reduction programs include:

¢ The issuance of a limited number of SO, emission allowances.
Each allowance permits the emission of one ton of SO, into

the atmosphere. The allowances may be transacted with a

third party; and

¢ The issuance of a limited number of NO, emission allowances
to comply with NO, emission requirements applicable during
ozone seascn months of May through September. Each
allowance permits the emission of one ton of NO, info the
atmosphere.

Implementatior. of projects to comply with SO, and NO, limi-
tations are ongoing and will be influenced by changes in the
regulatory environment, availability of allowances, various state
and federal contral programs, and emission control technology.
In response to these requirements, Dominion expects to make the
following capital expenditures at its affected generating facilities:
* $350 million during the pericd 2004 through 2008 on SO,
emission control equipment; and
* 372 million during 2004 through 2005 on NO, reduction
equipment. Total costs are expected to be $708 million, of which
approximately $636 million has been incurred through Decem-
ber 37, 2003.

The majcrity of these cost estimates are also included in the
capital cost experditure estimate contemplated by the Consent
Decree, describec below.

In relation to a Notice of Violation received by Virginia Power
in 2000 from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and
related proceedings, Virginia Power, the U.S. Department of Jus-
tice, the EPA, and the states of Virginia, West Virginia, Connecti-
cut, New Jersey and New York agreed to a settlement in April
2003 in the form of a proposed Consent Decree. The Virginia
federal district court entered the final Consent Decree in October
2003, resolving the underlying actions. Under the settlement, Vir-
ginia Power paid a $5 million civil penalty, agreed to fund $14
million for environmental projects and committed to improve air
quality under the Consent Decree estimated to involve expendi-
tures of $1.2 billion. Dominion has already incurred certain capi-
tal expenditures for environmental improvements at its coalired

stations in Virginia and West Virginia and has commiited to
additional measures in its current financial plans and capital bud-
get to satisfy the requirements of the Consent Decree. As of
December 31, 2003, Dominion had recognized a provision for
the funding of the environmental projects, substantially all of
which was recorded in 2000.

Other

As part of its reissuance of a pollution discharge permit for the
Millstone Power Station, the Connecticut Department of Environ-
mental Protection is evaluating the ecological impacts of the cook
ing water intake system. Until the permit is reissued, it is not
possible to predict the financial impact, if any, that may result.

Future Environmental Regulations

In December 2003, the EPA announced plans to propose addi-
tional regulations addressing pollution transport from electric
generating units as well as the regulation of mercury and nickel
emissions. These regulatory actions, in addition to revised regula-
tions expected to be issued in 2004 to address regional haze,
could require additional reductions in emissions from the Com-
pany’s fossil fuelfired generating facilities. If these new emission
reduction requirements are imposed additional significant expen-
ditures may be required.

Under authority of the Clean Water Act, the EPA has
announced the publication of new regulations governing utilities
that employ a cooling water intake structure, with flow levels that
exceed a minimum threshold. As annocunced, the EPAs rule pre-
sents several control options. Dominion is evaluating facility infor-
mation from affected power stations. Dominion cannot predict the
future impact on its operations at this time.

The U.S. Congress is considering various legislative proposals
that would require generating facilities to comply with more strin-
gent air emissions standards. Emission reduction requirements
under consideration would be phased in under a variety of peri-
ods of up fo 16 years. If these new proposals are adopted, addi-
tional significant expenditures may be required. '

In 1997, the United States signed an international Protocol to
[imit man-made greenhouse emissions under the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change. However, the Proto-
col will not become binding unless approved by the U.S. Senate.
Currently, the Bush Administration has indicated that it will not
pursue ratification of the Protocol and has set a voluntary goal of
reducing the naticn’s greenhouse gas emission intensity by 18%
over the next 10 yaars. Several legislative proposals that include
provisions seeking fo impose mandatory reductions of green-
house gas emissions are under consideration in the United States
Congress. The cost of compliance with the Protocol or other
mandatory greenhouse gas reduction obligations could be signifi-
cant. Given the highly uncertain outcome and timing of future
action, if any, by the U.S. federal government on this issue,
Dominion cannot predict the financial impact of future climate
change actions on its operations at this time.
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Other Matters

Telecommunications Operations

In December 2003, Dominion classified the assets and related
liabilities of DT as held-forsale, and its results of operations as
discontinued operations. The current plan of sale anticipates a
closing by the end of June 2004. In addition DTI has long-term
obligations, including leases, maintenance ogreements and other
contracts, that must be considered in the sale and may result in
additional losses in future periods depending upon the final terms
of the sale.

Millstone Operating Licenses

In January 2003, Dominion filed with the Nuclear Regulatory
Commission fo renew the operating licenses of its two nuclear
units ot Millstone Power Station. If renewed, Unit 2 would con-
tinue to operate until 2035 and Unit 3 until 2045.

Kewaunee Power Plant

During the fourth quarter of 2003, Dominion announced an
agreement with Wisconsin Public Service Corporation, a sub-
sidiary of WPS Resources Corperation (WPS), and Wisconsin
Power & Light Company (WP&L), a subsidiary of Alliant Energy
Corporation, to purchase the Kewaunee Power Plant, a nuclear
power station in northeastern Wisconsin. Under terms of the
agreement, the aggregate purchase price is $220 million in cash,
including $35 million for nuclear fuel. Dominion will sell 100% of
the facility’s output fo WPS {59%) and WP&L (41%) under a
power purchase agreement that expires in 2013. The fransaction
is expected fo close in the second half of 2004, pending applica-
ble federal and state regulatory approvals. Kewaunee will be
included in the Dominion Generation operating segment.

Future Acquisitions

Because Dominion’s industry is rapidly changing, there are many
opportunities for acquisitions of assets, as well as for business
combinations. Dominion investigates any opportunity that may
increase shareholder value and build on existing businesses, with
an objective to enter into transactions that would be immediately
accretive fo earnings per share. Dominion has participated in the
past—and its security holders may assume that at any time
Dominion may be participating—in bidding or other negotiations
for such transactions. Such participation may or may not result in
a transaction for Dominion. However, any such transaction that
does take place may involve consideration in the form of cash,
debt or equity securities. It may also involve payment of a pre-
mium over book or market values. Such transactions or payments
could affect the market prices and rates for Dominions securities.
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Market Rate Sensitive instruments
and Risk Management

Dominion’s financial instruments, commodity contracts and
related derivative financial instruments are exposed to potential
losses due to adverse changes in inferest rates, equity security
prices, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices.
Interest rate risk generally is related to Dominion’s outstanding
debt. Commodity price risk is present in Dominion’ electric oper-
ations, gas production and procurement operations, and energy
marketing and trading operations due fo the exposure to market
shifts in prices received and paid for natural gas, electricity and
other commodities. Dominion uses derivative commodity con-
tracts o manage price risk exposures for these operations. In
addition, Dominion is exposed to equity price risk through vari-
ous porffolios of equity securities.

The following sensitivity analysis estimates the potential loss
of future earnings or fair value from market risk sensitive instru-
ments over a selected time period due to a 10% unfavorable
change in commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates.

Commodity Price Risk —Trading Activities

As part of its strategy to market energy and to manage related
risks, Dominion manages a portfolio of commodity-based deriva-
tive instruments held for trading purposes. These contracts are
sensitive to changes in the prices of natural gas, eleciricity and
certain other commodities. Dominion uses established policies
and procedures to manage the risks associated with these price
fluctuations and uses derivative instruments, such as futures, for-
wards, swaps and options, fo mitigate risk by creating offsetting
market positions. In addition, Dominion may use ifs generation
capacity to satisfy commitments to sell energy when not needed
to serve customers in its service territory.

A hypothetical 10% unfavorable change in commodity prices
would have resulted in a decrease of approximately $56 million
and $12 million in the fair value of Dominion’s commodity-based
financial derivative instruments held for trading purposes as of
December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively.

Commodity Price Risk —Neon-Trading Activities
Dominion manages the price risk associated with purchases and
sales of natural gas, oil and electricity by using derivative com-
modity instruments including futures, forwards, options and
swaps. For sensitivity analysis purposes, the fair value of
Dominion’s non-trading derivative commeodity instruments is deter-
mined based on models that consider the market prices of com-
modities in future periods, the voldtility of the market prices in
each period, as well as the time value factors of the derivative
instruments. Market prices and volatility are principally deter-
mined based on quoted prices on the futures exchange. A hypo-
thetical 10% unfavorable change in market prices of Dominion's
non-rading commodity-based derivative financial instruments




would have resulted in a decrease in fair value of approximately
$424 million and $357 million as of December 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, respectively.

The impact of a change in energy commadity prices on
Dominion’s non-trading derivative commodity instruments at a
point in time is nol necessarily representative of the results that
will be realized when such contracts are ultimately seftled. Net
losses from derivarive commodity instruments used for hedging
purposes, to the exdent realized, are substantially offset by recog-
nition of the hedged transaction, such as revenue from sales.

Interest Rate Risk
Dominion manages its interest rafe risk exposure predominantly
by maintaining a balance of fixed and varicble rate debt.
Dominion also enters into interest rate sensitive derivatives,
including interest rate swaps and interest rate lock agreements.
For financial instruments outstanding at December 31, 2003, a
hypothetical 10% increase in market interest rates would decrease
annual earnings by approximately $10 million. A hypothetical
10% increase in market interest rates, as determined at December
31, 2002, would have resulted in a decrease in annual earnings
of approximately $4 million.

in addition, Deminion, through subsidiaries, retains ownership
of mortgage investments, including subordinated bonds and
interest-only residual assets retained frem securitizations of mort-
gage loans originated and purchased in prior years. Note 27 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements discusses the impact of
changes in value of these investments.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Dominion’s Canacdlian natural gas and oil exploration and pro-
duction activities are relatively self-contained within Canada.

As a result, Dominion’s exposure to foreign currency exchange
risk for these activities is limited primarily to the effects of transla-
tion adjustments that arise from including that operation in its
Consolidated Financial Statements. Dominion's management
monitors this exposure and believes it is not material. In addition,
Dominion manages its foreign exchange risk exposure associated
with anticipated future purchases of nuclear fuel processing
services denominated in foreign currencies by utilizing currency
forward contracts. As a result of holding these contracts as
hedges, Dominion's exposure 1o foreign currency risk is minimal.
A hypothetical 10% unfavorable change in relevant foreign
exchange rates would have resulted in a decrease of approxi-
mately $19 million and $22 million in the fair value of currency
forward contracts held by Dominion at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Investment Price Risk

Dominion is subject to investment price risk due to marketable
securities held as investments in decommissioning trust funds. In
accordance with current accounting standards, these marketable
securities are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair
value. Dominion recognized a net realized loss (net of investment

income) of $10 million and a net unrealized gain of $263 million
on decommissioning trust investments for the year ended 2003.
For the year ended December 31, 2002, Dominion recognized a
net realized gain {including investment income) of $32 million
and a net unrealized loss of $166 million.

Dominion also sponsors employee pension and other postre-
tirement benefit plans thet hold investments in trusts to fund bene-
fit payments. To the extent that the values of investments held in
these trusts decline, the effect will be reflecied in Dominion’s
recognition of the periodic cost of such employee benefit plans
and the determination of the amount of cash to be contributed to
the employee benefit plans. During 2003, Dominion’s pension
plans experienced net realized and unreclized gains of
$627 million and in 2002 net realized and unrealized losses
of $241 million.

Risk Management Policies

Dominion has operating procedures in place that are adminis-
tered by experienced management fo help ensure that proper
internal centrols are maintained. In addition, Dominion has
established an independent function at the corporate level to
monitor compliance with the risk management policies of all sub-
sidiaries. Dominion maintains credit policies that include the eval-
uation of a prospective counterparty’s financial condition,
collateral requirements where deemed necessary, and the use of
standardized agreements that facilitate the netting of cash flows
associated with a single counterparty. In addition, Dominion also
monitors the financial condition of existing counterparties on an
ongoing basis. Based on credit policies and the December 3],
2003 provision for credit losses, management believes that it is
unlikely that @ material adverse effect on its financiol position,
results of operations or cash flows would occur as a result of
counterparty nonperformance.

Risk Factors and Cautionary
Statements That May Affect
Future Results

Factors that may cause actuat results to differ materially from
those indicated in any forward-looking statement include weather
conditions; governmental regulations; cost of environmental com-
pliance; inherent risk in the operation of nuclear facilities; fluctua-
tions in energy-related commodities prices and the effect these
could have on Dominion’s earnings, liquidity position and the
underlying value of its assets; trading counterparty credit risk;
copital market conditions, including price risk due to marketable
securities held as investments in trusts and benefit plans; fluctuo-
tions in interest rates; changes in rating agency requirements and
ratings; changes in accounting standards; collective bargaining
agreements and labor negotiations; the risks of operating busi-
nesses in regulated industries that are becoming deregulated; the
transfer of controf over electric fransmission facilities to a regional
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Continued

transmission organization; political and economic conditions
{including infiction and deflation); and completing the divestiture
of investments held by DCI, CNG International Corporation and
DFV. Other more specific risk factors are as follows:

Dominion’s operations are wedather sensitive. Dominion’s
results of operations can be offected by changes in the weather.
Weather conditions directly influence the demand for electricity
and natural gas and affect the price of energy commodities. In
addition, severe weather, including hurricanes, winter storms
and droughts, can be destructive, causing outages, production
delays and property damage that require Dominion to incur
additional expenses.

Dominion is subject to complex governmental regulation
that could adversely affect its operations. Dominion’s opera-
tions are subject to extensive regulation and require numerous
permits, approvals and certificates from federal, state and local
governmental agencies. Dominion must also comply with environ-
mental legislation and associated regulations. Management
believes the necessary approvals have been obtained for
Dominion’ existing operations and that its business is conducted
in accordance with applicable laws. However, new laws or regu-
lations, or the revision or reinterpretation of existing laws or regu-
lations, may require Dominion fo incur additional expenses.

Costs of environmental compliance, liabilities and litigation
could exceed Dominion’s estimates. Compliance with federal,
state and local environmental laws and regulations may result in
increased capital, operafing and other costs, including remedia-
tion and containment expenses and monitoring obligations. In
addition, Dominion may be a responsible party for environmen-
tal clean-up at @ site identified by a regulatery body. Manage-
ment cannot predict with certainty the amount and timing of all
future expenditures related to environmental matters because of
the difficulty of estimating clean-up and compliance costs, and
the possibility that changes will be made to the current environ-

mental laws and regulations. There is also uncertainty in quantify-

ing liabilities under environmental laws that impose joint and
several liability on all potentially responsible parties.

Dominion is exposed to cost-recovery shortfalls because of
capped base rates in effect in Virginia through mid-2007 for
its regulated electric utility. Under the Virginia Restructuring
Act, the generation portion of Dominion’s electric utility opera-
tions is open to competition and resulting uncertainty. Under
the Virginia Restructuring Act, Dominion’s base rates (excluding,
generally, fuel costs and certain other allowable adjustments)
remain unchanged until July 2007 unless modified or terminated
consistent with the Virginia Restructuring Act. Although the Vir-
ginia Restructuring Act allows for the recovery of certain generc-
tion-related costs during the capped rates period, Dominion
remains exposed to numerous risks of costrecovery shortfalls.
These include exposure to potentially stranded costs, future envi-
ronmental compliance requirements, tax law changes, costs
related to hurricanes or other weather events, inflation and
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increased capital costs. In addition, under the Virginia Resfructur-
ing Act, the generation portion of Dominion’s electric utility oper-
ations is open to competition and is no longer subject to
cost-based regulation. To date, the competitive market has been
slow to develop and it is difficult to predict the pace at which the
competitive environment will evolve and the extent to which
Dominion will face increased competition and be able to operate
profitably within this competitive environment. Additional uncer-
tainty arises from several legislative proposals currently under
consideration by the 2004 Virginia General Assembly. These
proposals range from extending for three and a half years the
period during which capped rates are in effect but with certain
limitations on changes in the fuel factor, to suspending customer
choice and refurning to cost-based regulation. See Future Issues
and Other Matters — Status of Deregulation in Virginia in MD&A
and Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for addi-
tional information.

Dominion’s merchant power business is operating in a
challenging market. The success of Dominion’s merchant power
business depends upon its ability to find buyers willing to enter
info power purchase agreements at prices sufficient to cover its
operating costs. Depressed spot and forward wholesale power
prices and excess capacity in the industry could result in lower
than expected revenues in Dominion’s merchant power business.

There are inherent risks in the operation of nuclear facili-
ties. These risks include the cost of and Dominions ability to
maintain adequate reserves for decommissioning, plant mainte-
nance costs, threat of terrorism, spent nuclear fuel disposal costs
and exposure to potential liabilities arising out of the operation of
these facilities. Dominion maintains decommissicning trusts and
external insurance coverage fo minimize the financial exposure
to these risks. However, it is possible that costs arising from
claims could exceed the amount of any insurance coverage.

The use of derivative instruments could result in financial
losses. Dominion uses derivative instruments, including futures,
forwards, options and swaps, to manage its commodity and
financial market risks. In addition, Dominion purchases and sells
commodity-based contracts in the natural gas, electricity and oil
markets for trading purposes. In the future, Dominion could recog-
nize financial losses on these coniracts as a result of volatility in
the market values of the underlying commedities or if a counter-
party fails to perform under o contract. In the absence of actively
quoted market prices and pricing information from external
sources, the valuation of these contracts involves management's
judgment or use of estimates. As a result, changes in the underly-
ing assumptions or use of alternative valuation methods could
affect the reported fair value of these contracts. For additional
information concerning derivatives and commodity-based trading
contracts, see Market Rate Sensitive Insiruments and Risk
Management and Notes 2 and 8 to the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements.




Dominion is exposed to market risks beyond its control in
its energy clearinghouse operations. Dominion’s energy clear-
inghouse and risk management operations are subject to multiple
market risks includling market liquidity, counterparty credit
strength and price volatility. Many industry participants have
experienced severe business downturns resulting in some compa-
nies exiting or curlailing participation in the energy trading mar-
kets. This has led to a reduction in the number of trading partners
and lower industry trading revenues. Declining creditworthiness
of some of Dominion’s trading counterparties may limit the level
of its trading activities with these parties and increase the risk
that these parties ray not perform under a contract.

Successfully executing Dominion’s exit from the telecom-
munications business is dependent upon market conditions
and timing. In September 2003, Dominion announced it would
recognize impairment charges related to DT, its telecommunico-
tions investment, and that it plans to exit the telecommunications
business. Continued depressed market conditions in the telecom-
munications industry may make it difficult for Dominion to sell the
business as a whole, resulting in sales of telecommunications
assets that may not include a transfer of all associated liabilities.
Additionally, the difficulty in finding suitable buyers for the
telecommunications business and in obtaining required state and
federal regulatory approvals could delay the sale of the business.
If Dominion fails to sell its telecommunications business quickly,
DTl risks the loss of current customers and key employees. DT
requires external sources of liquidity for its operating funds.
Dominion has advanced, and anticipates making additional
advances of, operating funds to DTI. Given its current financial
and operating position, it is unlikely that DTI would be able to
secure funds from cther sources, so it is dependent on continued
funding from Dominion to sustain its operations. Any additional
funds provided by Dominion may not be recovered from ¢ sale of
the telecommunications business. Until a sale occurs, Dominion’s
investment in the telecommunications business may continve
to be adversely affected and could be subject to further impair-
ment charges.

Dominion’s exploration and production business is depen-
dent on factors that cannot be predicted or controlled. Factors
that may affect Dominion$ financial results include fluctuations in
natural gas and crude oil prices, results of future drilling and well
completion activities, Dominion’s ability to acquire additional
land positions in competitive lease areas as well as inherent oper-
ational risks that could disrupt production. Dominion’ liquidity
may also be impacted by margin requirements that result from
financial derivatives used to hedge future sales of gas and oil pro-
duction and require the deposit of funds and other collateral with
counterparties to cover the fair value of covered contracts in
excess of agreed-upon credit limits. Short—term market declines
in natural gas and cil prices may also result in the permanent
write-down of Dominion’s gas and oil properties as required by
the full cost method of accounting. Under the full cost method, all

direct costs of property acquisition, exploration and development
activities are capifalized. If net capitalized costs exceed the pre-
sent value of estimated future net revenues based on hedge-
adjusted period-end prices from the production of proved gas
and oil reserves (the ceiling test), in a given country, at the end of
any quarterly period, then a permanent write-down of the assets
must be recognized in that period.

An inability to access financial markets could affect the
execution of Dominion’s business plan. Dominion relies on
access to both shortterm money markets and longerterm capital
markets as a significant source of liquidity for capital require-
ments not satisfied by the cash flows from its operations. Manage-
ment believes that Dominion and its subsidiaries will maintain
sufficient access to these financial markets based upon current
credit ratings. However, certain disruptions outside of Dominion’s
control may increase its cost of borrowing or restrict its ability to
access one or more financicl markets, Such disruptions could
include an economic downturn, the bankruptcy of an unrelated
energy company or changes to Dominion% credit ratings. Restric-
tions on Dominion’s ability to access financial markets may affect
its ability fo execute its business plan as scheduled,

Changing rating agency requirements could negatively
affect Dominion‘s growth and business strategy. As of Febru-
ary 2, 2004, Dominion’s senior unsecured debt was rated BBB+,
negative outlook, by Standard & Poor’s and Baa), stable outlook,
by Moodys. Both agencies have recently implemented more strin-
gent applications of the financial requirements for various ratings
levels. In order to maintain its current credit ratings in light of
these or future new requirements, Dominion may find it necessary
fo take steps or modify its business plans in ways that may
adversely affect its growth and earnings per share. A reduction
in Dominion’ credit ratings by either Standard & Poor’s or
Moody’s could increase its borrowing costs and adversely affect
operating results.

Potential changes in accounting practices may adversely
affect Dominion’s financial results. Dominion cannot predict the
impact future changes in accounting standards or practices may
have on public companies in general or the energy industry or its
operations specifically. New accounting standards could be
issued that could change the way Dominion records revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities. These changes in accounting
standards could adversely affect Dominion’ reported earnings or
could increase reported liabilities.
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Selected Financial Data

2003 2002 2001 2000 1992

{millions, except per share amounts) :
Operating revenue $12,078 $10,218 $10,558 $ 9,246 $ 5,520
Income from continuing operations before extracrdinary item and

cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles 949 1,362 5484 415 552
Loss on discontinued operations, net of taxes (642) - - - -
Extraordinary item, net of taxes - - - - {255)
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of taxes 11 - - 27 -
Net income 318 1,362 544 436 297
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary

item and cumulative effect of changes in accounting

principles per common share —basic 2.99 4.85 2.7 1.85 1.55
Net income per common share —basic 1.00 4,85 2.17 1.85 1.55
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary

item and cumulative effect of changes in accounting

principles per common share —diluted 2.98 4.82 2.15 1.85 1.48
Net income per common share — diluted 1.00 4.82 2.15 1.85 1.48
Dividends paid per share 2.58 2.58 2.58 2.58 2.58
Total assets 44,186 39,998 36,431 30,683 19,132
Long-term debt 15,776 12,060 12,119 10,101 6,936
Preferred securities of subsidiary trusts - 1,397 1,132 385 385
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Report of Management’s Responsibilities

The management of Dominion Resources, inc. is responsible for
all information and representations contained in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and other sections of the annual report on
Form 10-K. The Consolidated Financial Statements, which include
amounts based on estimates and judgments of management,
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
gererally accepted in the United States of America. Other finan-
cial information in the Form 10K is consistent with that in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Certifications by Dominion’s
chief executive officer and chief financial officer required by Sec-
tion 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have been filed as
Exhibits 31.1 and 312 in the Form 10K.

Management maintains a system of internal controls designed
to provide reasoncble assurance, at a reasonable cost, that
Dominion’s and its subsidiaries’ assets are safeguarded against
loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions
are executed and recorded in accordance with established pro-
cedures. Management recognizes the inherent limitations of any
system of internal control, and therefore cannot provide absolute
assurance that the objectives of the established internal controls
will be met.

This system includes writien policies, an organizational struc-
ture designed to ensure appropriate segregation of responsibili-
ties, careful selection and training of qualified personnel and
internal audits. Management believes that during 2003 the
system of internal control was adequate to accomplish the
intended objectives.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by
Deloitte & Touche ILP, independent auditors, who were desig-
nated by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. Deloitte
& Touche LLP's audits were conducted in accordance with audit
ing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
ond include a review of Dominions and its subsidiaries’ account-
ing systems, procedures and internal controls, and the perfor-
mance of tests and other auditing procedures sufficient to provide
reasonable assurance that the Consolidated Financial Statements
are not materially misleading and do not contain material errors.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Dominion
Resources, Inc., composed enfirely of independent directors
meets periodically with the independent auditors, the internal
auditors and management to discuss auditing, internal occount-
ing control and financial reporting matters of Dominion and to
ensure that each is properly discharging its responsibilities. Both
independent auditors and the internal auditors periodically meet
alone with the Audit Committee and have free access to the Com-
mittee at any time.

Management recognizes ifs responsibility for fostering a
strong ethical climate so that Dominion’s affairs are conducted
according to the highest standards of personal corporate con-
duct. This responsibility is characterized and reflected in
Dominion’s code of ethics, which addresses potential conflicts of
interest, compliance with all domestic and foreign laws, the
confidenticlity of proprietary information, and Rull disclosure of
public information.

Dominion Resources, Inc.

Thos. E. Capps
Chief Executive Officer

Jhrrar /. ;

Thomas N. Chewning
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

/\(;"A. _(qu/

Steven A. Rogers
Vice President, Controller and Principal Accounting Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Dominion Resources, Inc.
Richmond, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of Dominion Resources, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of
income, common shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2003. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is fo express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stan-
dards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
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In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Dominion
Resources, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three yecrs in the period ended December 31, 2003,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial state-
ments, the Company changed its methods of accounting to
adopt new accounting standards for: asset retirement obligations,
contracts involved in energy trading, derivative contracts not
held for trading purposes, derivative contracts with a price
adjustment feature, the consolidation of variable interest entities,
and guarantees in 2003; goodwill and intangible assets in
2002; and derivative contracts and hedging activities in 2001,

L) thoble 37 ¢

Uoe s | Ongte L
Richmond, Virginia

February 26, 2004




Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 33, 2003 2002 2001
{millions, except per share amounts)
Operating Revenue $12,078 $70,218 $10,538
Operating Expenses
Electric fuel and energy purchases, net 1,667 1,447 1,369
Purchased electric capacity 607 G691 680
Purchased gas, net 2,175 1,159 1,822
Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases 468 159 219
Restructuring and other acquisition-related costs - (8) 105
Other operations and maintenance 2,908 2,198 2,938
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,216 1,258 1,245
Cther taxes 476 429 395
Total operating expenses 9,517 7,333 8,773
Income from operctions 2,561 2,883 1,785
Other income {loss) (40) 103 126
Interest and related charges:
Interest expense 849 826 899
Distributions — mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities 111 193 75
Subsidiary preferred dividends 15 16 23
Total interest and related charges 975 043 997
Income before income taxes 1,546 2,043 o4
Income tax expense 597 681 370
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes
in accounting principles 949 1,362 544
Loss from discontinued operations (net of income taxes of $15) (642) - -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (net of income taxes of $7) 1 - -
Net Income $ 318 $ 1,362 $ 544
Earnings Per Common Share —Basic:
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes
in accounting principles $ 299 § 4.85 $ 2,17
Loss from discontinued operations (2.02) - -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles .03 - -
Net income $ 1.00 & 4.85 $ 2.17
Earnings Per Common Share — Diluted:
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes
in accounting principles $ 298 $ 4.82 $ 2.15
Loss from discontirued operations (2.01) - -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles .03 - -
Net income $ 1.00 $ 4.82 $ 2.13
Dividends paid per common share $ 2.58 $ 2,58 $ 2.58

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31, 2003 2002
(millions)
Asseis
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 126 § 291
Customer accounts receivable (net of allowance of $51 and $63) 3,091 2,568
Other accounts receivable 828 486
Inventories:
Materials and supplies 296 269
Fossil fuel 154 137
Gas stored—current portion 420 231
Derivative and energy trading assets 1,436 1,365
Margin deposit assets 157 149
Prepayments 202 347
Escrow account for debt refunding - 500
Other 471 482
Total current assets 7.181 6,825
investments
Available for sale securities 413 564
Nuclear decommissioning frust funds 1,872 1,599
Other 802 1,011
Total investments 3,087 3,174
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Property, plant and equipment 37,107 32,631
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (11,257) {10,289)
Total property, plant and equipment, net 25,850 22,342
Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Goodwill, net 4,300 4,301
Regulatory assets 832 584
Prepaid pension cost 1,939 1,710
Derivative and energy trading assets 402 482
Other 595 530
Total deferred chorges and other assets 8,068 7,657
Total assefs $ 44,186 $ 39,998
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At December 31, 2003 2002

{millions)

Liabilifies and Sharehoiders’ Equity
Current Liabilities

Securities due within one year $ 1,252 $ 2,125
Shortterm debt 1,452 1,193
Accounts peyable, trade 2,712 2,310
Accrued inferest, payroll and taxes 619 606
Derivative and energy trading liabilities 2,082 1,609
Other 750 603G
Total current liabilities 8,867 8,443
Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt 14,336 11,968
Junior subordinated notes payable to affiliated trusts ) 1,440 -
Other notes payable to affiliates - 92
Total long-term debt 15,776 12,060
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 4,471 4,099
Deferred investment tax credits 92 110
Asset refirement obligations 1,651 1,538
Derivative and energy trading liabilities 1,185 &%0
Regulatory liabilities 587 551
Other 762 640
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 8,748 7,628
Total liabilities 33,391 28,131
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 23)
Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trusts (! - 1,397
Subsidiary Preferred Stock Not Subject To Mandatory Redemption 257 257
Common- Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock—no par 2} 10,052 9,051
Other paid-in capital 61 a7
Retained earnings 1,054 1,561
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (629) {446)
Total common shareholders’ equity 10,538 C 19,213
Total liab'lities and shareholders’ equity $44,186 $39,998

(1} Junior subordinated notes issued by Dominion Resources, Inc. and certain subsidiaries constitute 100% of the trusts’ assets; trusts no longer subject to consolidation,
effective December 31, 2003,
{2) 500 million shares authorized; 325 million shares and 308 million shares outstanding ot December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders’ Equity and

Comprehensive Income

Accumulated
Other Other
Common Stock Paid-In Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount  Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
(millions)
Balance at December 31, 2000 246 § 5979 § 16 $1,028 $ (23) $ 7,600
Comprehensive income:
Net income 544 544
Net deferred derivative gains —hedging activities,
net of $263 tox expense 465 455
Unrealized gains on investment securities, net of $10 tax expense [A] 11
Foreign currency translation adjustments {9) {9}
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of $3 tax expense 4 4
Cumulative effect of o change in accounting principle,
net of $106 tax benefit {183) {5183)
Amounts reclassified to net income:
Net realized gains on investment securities,
net of $6 tax expense (8) (8)
Net derivative losses — hedging activities,
net of $19 tax benefit 32 32
Total comprehensive income 544 312 856
Issuance of stock and stock options —Louis Dreyfus acquisition 14 894 894
Issuance of stock—employee and direct stock purchase plans 3 185 185
Stock awards and stock options exercised {net of change in
unearned compensation) 2 79 79
Tax benefit from stock options exercised 12 12
Dividends and other adjustments {8} {650) {638)
Balance at December 31, 2001 265 7,129 28 922 289 8,368
Comprehensive income: :
Net income 1,362 1,362
Net deferred losses on derivatives— hedging activities,
net of $345 tax benefit {663) {663)
Unrealized losses on investment securities, net of $41 tax benefit (68) {68)
Foreign currency translation adjustments é &
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of $1 tax benefit (2) (2)
Amounts reclassified to net income:
Net derivative gains —hedging activities, net of $4 tax expense {8) (8)
Total comprehensive income 1,362 {735) 627
Issuance of stock—public offering 38 1,712 1,712
fssuance of stock —employee and direct stock purchase plans 3 199 199
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in
unearned compensation) : 3. 113 113
Stock repurchase and retirement 4} (66) (65}
Accrued contract payments — equity-linked securities (36) (36)
Tax benefit from stock options exercised 21 21
Dividends and other adjustments 4] (723) {725)
Balance at December 31, 2002 308 2,051 47 1,561 (846) 15,213
Comprehensive income:
Net income 318 318
Net deferred derivative losses — hedging activities,
net of $479 tax benefit (791) (791)
Unrealized gains on investment securities, ‘
net of $78 tax expense 112 112
Foreign currency translation adjustments 68 68
Amounts reclassified to net income:
Net realized losses on investment securities,
net of $29 tax benefit 49 49
Net losses on derivatives — hedging octivities,
net of $225 iax benefit 379 379
Total comprehensive income 318 (183) 135
Issuance of stock— public offering 11 683 683
Issuance of stock —employee and direct stock purchase plans 3 206 206
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in
unearned compensation) 3 112 112
Tax benefit from stock options exercised 14 14
Dividends and other adjustments (825) (825)
Balance at December 31, 2003 325 $10,052 § 61 $1,054 $(629) $10,538

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 3], 2003 2002 2001

(millions)

Operating Activities

Net income $ 318 $1,362 $ 544
Adijustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Impairment of telecommunications assets 566 - -
DCl impairment losses 85 13 281
Impairment of CNG’s international operations assets 84 - -
Net unrealized gains on energy trading contracts (54) (8) {140)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,334 1,379 1,322
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net 452 714 201
Other adjustments for non-cash items 22 34 -
Changes in:
Accounts receivable (531} (814) 463
Inventories (234) {55} (170)
Deferred fuel and purchased gas costs, net (244) {143) 293
Prepaid pension cost (229) {198) {122)
Purchase and origination of mortgages - - {1,528)
Proceeds from sale and principal collections of mortgages - - 993
Accounts payable, trade 396 527 {25)
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 42 58 (1171)
Margin deposit assets and liabilities (18) (186) 346
Other operating assets and liabilities 366 {238) 165
Net cash provided by operating activities ' 2,355 2,448 2,452
Investing Activities '
Plant construction and other property additions (2,138) {1,339) {1,224)
Additions fo gas and oil properties, including acquisitions (1,300) (1,489} {944)
Proceeds frem sales of gas and oil properties 305 15 8
Acquisition of businesses — {416) {2,215)
Proceeds frem sale of loans and securities 912 572 78%
Purchases of securities (777) (462) (630)
Escrow release (deposit) for debt refunding 500 {580) -
Purchase of Dominion Fiber Ventures senior notes (633) - -
Advances fc lessor for project under construction (385) (240) {49)
Other 143 {107} 24
Net cash used in investing activities (3,373) (3,960) {£6,243)
Financing Activities
Issuance of common stock 990 2,020 245
Repurchase of common stock - {66) -
Issuance of oreferred securities by subsidiary frusts - 400 747
Repayment of preferred securities of subsidiary trusts - {133) -
[ssuance of longterm debt and preferred stock 3,393 2,434 7,365
Repayment of long-term debt and preferred stock (2,922) {9,904} {6,193)
Issuance (repayment) of shortderm debt, net 259 {6566} (1,620)
Common dividend payments (825) (723} {649}
Other (42) {43) 21
Net cash provided by financing activities 853 1,317 1,916
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (165) {193) 126
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 291 486 360
Cash and cosh eouivalents at end of period $ 126 $ 291 $ 486

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash poid [receivad) during the yeor for:

Interest and related charges, excluding capitalized amounts $ o4 $ 912 $ 952

Income taxes (32) 8) 284
Noncash transactions from investing and financing activities:

Exchange of debt securities 500 567 -

Stock and s'ock option issuance — Louis Dreyfus acquisition - - 894

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

t. Nature of Operations

Dominion Resources, Inc. (Dominion) is o holding company
headquariered in Richmond, Virginia. ts principal subsidiaries
are Virginia Electric and Power Company {Virginia Power}, Con-
solidated Natural Gas Company (CNG), and Dominion Energy,
Inc. (DEI}. Dominion and CNG are registered public utility hold-
ing compenies under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of
1935 {1935 Act).

Virginia Power is a regulated public utility that generates,
transmits and distributes electricity within a 30,000-square-mile
area in Virginia ond northeastern North Carolina. Virginia Power
sells electricity to approximately 2.2 million retail customers,
including governmental agencies, and to wholesale customers
such as rural electric cooperatives, municipalities, power mar-
keters and other utilities. Virginia Power has trading relationships
beyond its retail service territory and buys and sells wholesale
electricity and natural gas off-system.

CNG operates in all phases of the natural gas business. its
regulated retail gas distribution subsidiaries serve approximately
1.7 million residential, commercial and industrial gas sales and
fransportation customers in Ohio, Pennsylvania and West Vir-
ginia. lts interstate gas transmission pipeline system serves each
of its distribution subsidiaries, non-affiliated utilities and end use
customers in the Midwest, Mid-Atlantic and Northeast. CNG’
exploration and production operations are located in several
major natural gas and oil producing basins in the United States,
both onshore and offshore. CNG also provides a variety of
energy marketing services.

DEl is involved in merchant generation, energy trading and
marketing and natural gas and oil exploration and production.

Dominion has substantially exited the core operating busi-
nesses of Dominion Capital, Inc. (DCI), as required by the Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission [SEC) under the 1935 Act.
Currently, Dominion is required to divest all remaining DCl hold-
ings by January 2006. DCI’s primary business was financial ser-
vices, including loan administration, commerciol lending and
residential mortgage lending.

Dominion manages its daily operations along four primary
operating segments: Dominion Generation, Dominion Energy,
Dominion Delivery and Dominion Exploration & Production. In
addition, Dominion also reports the operations of DCI, its telecom-
munications business and its corporate and other operations as a
segment. Assefs remain wholly owned by its legal subsidiaries.

The term “Dominion” is used throughout this report and,
depending on the context of its use, may represent any of the fol
lowing: the legal entity, Dominion Resources, Inc., one of Domin-
ion Resources, Inc’s consolidated subsidiaries or the entirety of
Dominion Resources, inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.
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Z. Significant Accounting Policies

Generof

Dominion makes certain estimates and assumptions in preparing
its Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (generally accepted accounting principles). These esti-
mates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of rev-
enues and expenses for the periods presented. Actual results may
differ from those estimates.

The Consolidated Financial Statements represent Dominion's
accounts after the elimination of intercompany transactions.
Dominion follows the equity method of accounting for investments
with a 50% or less interest in partnerships and corporate joint
ventures when Dominion is able to significantly influence the
financial and operating policies of the investee. Dominion reports
its equity earnings from these investments in other income. For all
other investments, the cost method is applied.

Certain amounts in the 2002 and 2001 Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements and footnotes have been reclassified to conform
to the 2003 presentation.

Operating Revenue

Obperating revenue is recorded on the basis of services
rendered, commodities delivered or coniracts seftled and includes
amounis yet to be billed to customers. Dominion’s customer
accounts receivable at December 31, 2003 and 2002 included
$342 million and $334 million, respectively, of accrued unbilled
revenue based on estimated amounts of electric energy or
natural gas delivered but not yet billed fo its utility customers.
Dominion estimates unbilled utility revenue based on weather
factors and, for electric customers, total daily electric generation
supplied ofter adjusting for estimated losses of energy during
transmission, taking into consideration historical usage and
applicable customer rates.

The primary types of sales and service activities reported as
operating revenue include:

Regulated electric sales consist primarily of state-regulated
refoil electric sales and federally regulated wholesale electric
sales and electric transmission services subject fo cost-of-service
rate regulation;

Regulated gas sales consist primarily of state-regulated retail
natural gas sales and related distribution services;

Nonregulated electric sales consist primarily of sales of
electricity from utility and merchant generation facilities at
market-based rates and electric trading revenue;

Nonreguiated gas sales consist primarily of sales of
natural gas ot market-based rates, brokered gas sales and gas
trading revenue;

Gas transportation and storage consists primarily of regu-

lated sales of gathering, transmission, distribution and storage




services. Also included are regulated gas distribution charges to
refail distribution service customers opting for alternate suppliers;

Gas and oil production consists primarily of sales of natural
gos, oil and condensate produced by Dominion. Gas and oil
production revenue is reported net of royalties and

Other revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service rev-
enve from electric and gas distribution operations; sales of codl,
brokered oil and other extracted products; gas and oil processing
and gas transmission pipeline capacity release.

See Derivative Instruments below for a discussion of account
ing changes, effective January 1, 2003 and October 1, 2003,
that impacted the recognition and classification of changes in fair
value, including settlements, of contracts held for energy trading
and other purposes.

Electric Fuel, Purchased Energy and Purchased
Gas—Deferred Cosis

Where permitted by regulatory authorities, the differences
between actual elactric fuel, purchased energy and purchased
gas expenses ond the levels of recovery for these expenses in
current rates are deferred and matched against recoveries in
future periods.

Income Taxes

Dominion and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income
tax return. Where permitted by regulatory authorities, the treat-
ment of temporary differences can differ from the requirements of
SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Accordingly, a reg-
ulatory asset has been recognized if it is probable that future rev-
enues will be provided for the payment of deferred tax liabilities.
Deferred investment tax credits are amortized over the service
lives of the properties giving rise to the credifs.

Dominion establishes a valuation allowance when it is more
likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not
be realized.

Dominion has not provided for U.S. deferred income taxes or
foreign withholding taxes on its remaining.undistributed earnings
of $116 million of its non-U.S. subsidiaries since these earnings
are intended fo be reinvested indefinitely.

Stock-based Compensation

Dominion sponsors two stock plans that provide stock-based
awards to directors, executives and other key employees. Under
the plans, Dominion grants stock options and restricted stock
awards that vest over periods ranging from three to five years.
Options have cortractual terms that range from seven fo ten
years. Forty million shares of common stock may be issued under
the plans and approximately 12 million of these shares are avail-
able for new grants as of December 31, 2003.

Deminion measures compensation cost for stock-based
awards issued to its employees in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued fo
Employees, and related interpretations. Compensation expense
is measured based on the intrinsic value, the difference between

fair market value of Dominion common stock and the exercise
price of the underlying award, on the date when both the price
and number of shares the recipient is entitled to receive are
known, generally the grant date. Compensation expense is rec-
ognized on a straightine basis over the stated vesting period of
the award.

The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on net income
and earnings per share if Dominion had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation:

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
[millions)
Net income—as reported $318 $1,362 § 544
Add: actual stock-based compensation

expense, net of tax{! 10 5 18
Deduct: pro forma stock-based

compensation expense, net of fax (36) (32) (49}
Net income—pro forma $292 $1,315 §$313
Bosic EPS—gs reported $1.00 S 4.85 $2.17
Basic EPS—pro forma 0.92 4,68 2.05
Diluted EPS—as reported 1.00 4.82 2.15
Diluted EPS — pro forma 0.92 4.65 2.3

(1} Actual stock-based compensation expense reflects primarily the issuance of
restricted stock. For 2001, stock-based compensation expense also includes an
oftertax charge of $11 million for stock options modified in the 2001
restructuring initiative discussed in Note 6.

Cash and Cash Equivaienis

Current banking arrangements generally do not require checks to
be funded until actually presented for payment. At December 3],
2003 and 2002, accounts payable included the net effect of
checks outstanding but not yet presented for payment of $123 mil-
lion and $101 million, respectively. For purposes of the Consoli-
dated Statements of Cash Flows, Dominion considers cash and
cash equivalents to include cash onhond, cash in banks and tem-
porary investments purchased with @ remaining maturity of three
months or less.

Inventories
Materials and supplies and fossil fuel inventories are valued
using primorily the weighted-average cost method. Stored gas
inventory used in local gas distribution operations is valued using
the lastinfirst-out (LIFO) method. Under the LIFO method, those
inveniories were valued at $59 million and $52 million at
December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively.
Based on the average price of gas purchased during 2003,
the cost of replacing the current portion of stored gas inventory
exceeded the amount stated on a UFO basis by approximately
$265 million. Stored gas inventory held by certain nonregulated
gas operations is valued using the weighted average cost method.

Derivative Instruments

Dominion uses derivative instruments such as futures, swaps,
forwards and options to manage the commodity, currency
exchange and financial market risks of its business operations,
Dominion also manages a portfolio of commodity contracts held
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

for trading purposes as part of its sirategy to market energy and
to manage related risks.

All derivatives not qualifying for the normal purchase and nor-
mal sales exception are reported on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at fair value. Commodity coniracts representing unreal-
ized gain positions and purchased options are reported as
derivative and energy trading assets. Commodity contracts
representing unrealized losses and options sold are reported as
derivative and energy trading liabilities. For derivatives that are
not designated os hedging instruments, any changes in fair value
are recorded in earnings.

Valuation Methods
Fair value is based on actively quoted market prices, if available.
In the absence of actively quoted market prices, Dominion seeks
indicative price information from external sources, including bro-
ker quotes and industry publications. If pricing information from
external sources is not available, Dominion must estimate prices
based on available historical and nearterm future price informa-
tion and certain statistical methods, including regression analysis.
For options and contracts with option-like characteristics
where pricing information is not available from external sources,
Dominion generally uses o modified Black-Scholes Model that
considers time value, the volatility of the underlying commodities
and other relevant assumptions when estimating fair value. Other
option models are used by Dominion under special circum-
stances, including a Spread Approximation Model, when con-
tracts include different commodities or commodity locations and
a Swing Option Model, when contracts allow either the buyer or
seller the ability to exercise within a range of quantities. For con-
tracts with unique characteristics, Dominion estimates fair value
using a discounted cash flow approach deemed appropriate in
the circumstances and applied consistently from period to period.
if pricing information is not available from external sources, judg-
ment is required to develop the estimates of fair value. For indi-
vidual contracts, the use of different assumptions could have a
material effect on the contract’s estimated fair value.

Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments
Dominion designates a substantial portion of derivative instru-
ments, held for purposes other than trading, as fair value or cash
flow hedges for accounting purposes. For all derivatives desig-
nated as hedges, the relationship between the hedging instru-
ment and the hedged item is formally documented, as well as the
risk management objective and strategy for using the hedging
instrument. Dominion assesses whether the hedge relationship
between the derivative and the hedged item is highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows both at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis. Any change in fair value
of the derivative that is not effective in offsetting changes in the
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fair value of the hedged item is recognized currently in earnings.
Also, in the case of options that are designated as hedging instru-
ments, management may elect to exclude changes in time value
from the measurement of hedge effectiveness, thus requiring that
such changes be recorded currently in earnings. Dominion dis-
continues hedge accounting prospectively for derivatives that
have ceased to be highly effective hedges.

Cash Flow Hedges A significant portion of Dominion’s
hedge strategies represents cash flow hedges of the variable
price risk associated with the purchase and sale of electricity, nat-
ural gas, oil and other commodities. Dominion also uses foreign
currency forward contracts to hedge the variability in foreign
exchange rates and interest rate swaps to hedge variable interest
rates on long-term debt. For cash flow hedge transactions in
which Dominion is hedging the variability of cash flows, changes
in the fair value of the derivative are reported in accumulated
other comprehensive income {AOCI) until earnings are affected
by the hedged item.

Fair Value Hedges Dominion also engages in fair value
hedges by using derivative instruments to mitigate the fixed price
exposure inherent in firm commodity commitments and certain
natural gas inventory. In addition, Dominion has designated inter-
est rate swaps as fair value hedges to manage its exposure to
fixed interest rates on certain long-term debt. For fair value hedge
transactions, changes in the fair value of the derivative will gener-
ally be offset currently in earnings by changes in the hedged
item’s fair value.

Statement of Income Presentation Gains and losses on
derivatives designated as hedges, when recognized, are included
in operating revenue, operating expenses or interest and related
charges in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Specific line
item classification is determined based on the nature of the risk
underlying individual hedge strategies. The portion of gains or
Josses on hedging instruments determined to be ineffective and
any gains or losses attributable to the changes in the time value of
options, excluded from the measurement of effectiveness, are
included in other operations and maintenance expense.

Derivative Instruments Held for Trading and Other Purposes
As part of its strategy o market energy and to manage related
risks, Dominion manages a portfolio of commedity-based deriva-
tive instruments held for trading purposes, primarily natural gos
and electricity. Dominion uses established policies and proce-
dures to manage the risks associated with the price fluctuations in
these energy commodities and uses various derivative instruments
to reduce risk by creating offsetting market positions.

Certain derivative instruments are not held for trading purposes
and are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. How-
ever, to the extent Dominion does not hold offsetting positions for
such derivatives, management believes these instruments represent
economic hedges that mitigate exposure to fluctuations in com-
modity prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates.




Statement of Income Presentation:

Derivatives Held for Trading Purposes All changes in fair
value, including amounts realized upon settlement, are presented in
revenue on a net basis as nonregulated electric sales, nonregulated
gas sales and other revenve.

Financially-Settled Derivatives — Not Held for Trading Pur-
poses or Designated as Hedging Instruments All unrealized
changes in fair value and settlements are presented in other
operations and maintenance expense on a net basis.

Physically-Settled Derivatives — Not Held for Trading Pur-
poses or Designated as Hedging Instruments Effective October
1, 2003, all statement of income related amounts for physically
setfled derivative sales contracts are presented in revenue, while
all statement of income related amounts for physically settled
derivative purchase contracts are reported in expenses. For the
nine months ended September 30, 2003, unrealized changes in
fair value for physically seftled derivative contracts are presented
in other operations and maintenance expense on a net basis.

Non-derivative energy-related contracts are no longer subject
to fair value accounting, effective January 1, 2003. Dominion rec-
ognizes revenue or expense on a gross basis at the time of con-
tract performance, setflement or termination. Prior to 2003, dll
energy frading confracfs, including non-derivative contracts,
were recorded at fair value with changes in kair value reported
in revenue on a net basis.

Investment Securities
Dominion accourits for and classifies invesiments in morketable
equity and debt securities in two categories. Debt and equity
securities purchased and held with the intent of selling them in the
near term are classified as trading securities. Trading securities
are reported at fair value with net realized and unrealized gains
and losses included in earnings. All other debt and equity securi-
ties are classified as available-for-sale securities. These are
reported at fair value with realized gains and losses included in
earnings and unrealized gains and losses reported as a compo-
nent of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax.
Dominion analyzes all securities classified as available-for-
sale to determine whether a decline in its fair value should be
considered other-than-temporary. Dominion uses several criteria
to evaluate otherthantemporary declines including length of time
over which the market value has been lower than its cost, the per-
centage of the decline as compared fo its overage cost and the
expected fair value of the security. If the market value of the secu-
rity has been less than cost for greater than nine months and the
decline in value is greater than 50% of its average cost, the secu-
rity is written down fo its expected recovery value. If only one of
the above criteria is met, a further andlysis is performed to evalu-
ate the expected recovery value based on third party price tar-
gets. If the third party price quotes are below the security’s
average cost and one of the other criteria has been met, the
decline is consicered otherthantemporary and the security is
written down to its expected recovery value.

Property, Plant and Eguipment

Property, plant and equipment, including additions and replace-
ments, is recorded at original cost, including labor, materials,
other direct costs and capitalized interest. The costs of repairs
and maintenance, including minor additions and replacements,
are charged fo expense as incurred. In 2003, 2002 and 2001,
Dominion capitalized interest costs of $96 million, $95 million
and $41 million, respectively.

For electric and gas distribution and transmission property
subject to cost-of-service utility rate regulation, the cost of such
property, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation
at retirement. Amounts related to cost of removal collections
and expenditures are recorded as regulatory liabilities or
regulatory assets.

For generation-related property, cost of removal not associ-
ated with asset reftirement obligations is charged to expense as
incurred. Dominion records gains ond losses upon retirement of
generation-related property based upon the difference between
proceeds received, if any, and the property’s undepreciated basis
ot the retirement clate.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed
on the straight-line method based on projected service lives.
Dominion’s depreciation rates on property, plant and equipment

are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
{percent)
Generation 1.95 2.34 2.78
Transmission 2,22 2.26 2.58
Distribution 3.18 3.27 3.43
Storage 2.81 247  2.57
Gas gathering and processing 2,39 2.31 2.12
General and other 5.67 5.74 4,924

Amortization of nuclear fuel used in electric generation is pro-
vided on a units-of-production basis sufficient to fully amortize,
over the estimated service life, the cost of the fuel plus permanent
storage and disposal costs.

In 2002, Dominion extended the estimated usefu! lives of most
of its fossil fuel power stations and electric fransmission and dis-
tribution property based on depreciation studies that indicated
longer lives were appropriate. In 2001, Dominion increased the
estimate of the useful lives of its nuclear property by 20 years in
connection with license extensions already received from the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) and current filings of
applications for other units. The changes reduced depreciation
expense as follows:

2003 2002 2031
(millions)
Nuclear $94 $04 £78
Fossil fuel, electric transmission and distribution 68 42 -

Dominion follows the full cost method of accounting for gas
and oil exploration and production activities prescribed by the
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SEC. Under the full cost method, all direct costs of property
acquisition, exploration and development activities are capital-
ized. These capitalized costs are subject to a quarterly “ceiling
test.” Under the ceiling test, amounts capitalized are limited to
the present value of estimated future net revenues to be derived
from the anticipated production of proved gas and oil reserves,
assuming period-end hedge-adjusted prices. If net capitalized
costs exceed the ceiling test af the end of any quarterly period,
then a permanent write-down of the assets must be recognized in
that period. The ceiling test is performed separately for each cost
center, with cost centers established on a country-by-country
basis. Approximately 14% of Dominions anticipated production
is hedged by qualifying cash flow hedges, for which hedge-
adjusted prices were used fo calculate estimated future net
revenue. Whether period-end market prices or hedge-adjusted
prices were used for the portion of production that is hedged,
there was no ceiling test impairment as of December 31, 2003.

Depreciation of gas and oil producing properties is computed
using the units-of-production method. Under the full cost method,
the depreciable base of costs subject to amortization also
includes estimated future costs to be incurred in developing
proved gas and oil reserves, as well as capitalized asset retire-
ment costs, net of projected salvage values. The costs of invest-
ments in unproved properties are initially excluded from the
depreciable base. Until the properties are evaluated, @ ratable
portion of the capitalized costs is periodically reclassified to the
depreciable base, determined on a property by property basis,
over terms of underlying leases. Once a property hos been evalu-
ated, any remaining capitalized costs are then transferred to the
depreciable base. See Asset Retirement Obligations for a discus-
sion of gas and oil abandonment and dismantlement costs.

Goodwill and Infangible Assets

Goodwill is subject to review for impairment rather than periodic
amortization. Dominion evaluates goodwill for impairment at
least annually and whenever an event occurs or circumstances
change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of @
reporting unit below its carrying amount. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives. Prior to
the adoption of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets, on January 1, 2002, goodwill arising from acquisitions
completed before July 1, 2001 was amortized on a straight-line
basis over periods up to 40 years.

Impairment of Long-Lived end Intangible Assefs
Dominion performs an evaluation for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of long-lived assets or intangible assets with finite lives
may not be recoverable. These assets are written down fo fair
value if the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is
less than the carrying amounts.
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

For utility operations subject to federal or state cost-of-service rate
regulation, regulatory practices that assign costs to accounting
periods may differ from accounting methods generally applied
by non-regulated companies. The economic effects of practices
prescribed by regulatory authorities for rate-making purposes
must be considered in the application of generally accepted
accounting principles.

Assei Retirement Obligations

Beginning in 2003, Dominion recognizes its asset retirement
obligations at fair value as incurred, capitalizing these amounts
as costs of the related tangible long-lived assets. Due to the
absence of relevant market information, fair value is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses. Dominion reports the accre-
tion of the liabilities due to the passage of time as an operating
expense. In addition, beginning in 2003, Dominion classifies all
investments held by its decommissioning trusts as availablefor-
sale, and recognizes realized and unrealized gains and losses
in other income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss),
as appropriate.

Nuclear Decommissioning — 2002 and 2001

Utility Nuclear Plants In accordance with the accounting policy
recognized by regulatory authorities having jurisdiction over its
electric utility operations, Dominion recognized an expense for
the future cost of decommissioning in amounts equal to amounts
collected from ratepayers and earnings on frust investments dedi-
cated to funding the decommissioning of Dominion’s utility
nuclear plants. The trust investments were reported ot fair value
with the accumulated provision for decommissioning reported
as a liability. Net reclized and unrealized earnings on the trust
investments, as well as an offsetting expense to increase the
accumulated provision for decommissioning, was recorded as

a component of other income {loss).

Merchant Nuclear Plant Dominion recognized, as a liability
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, an obligation to decommis-
sion its merchant nuclear plant. The obligation was based upon
its estimated fair value, using discounted cash flows of expected
costs to perform the decommissioning activities. Accretion of the
obligation was reported as depreciation expense. The external
trusts were accounted for as available-for-sale investments with
realized and unrealized earnings recognized in other income
and other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Gas and Gil Dismantlement and Abendonment
Casts— 2002 and 2001

Through 2002, Dominion’s accounting and reporting practices for
future dismantlement and restoration activities for its gas and oil
wells and platforms recognized such costs as @ component of
depletion expense and included them in accumulated depreciation,
depletion and amortization.




Amertization of Debt Issuance Costs

Dominion defers and amortizes debt issuance costs and debt pre-

“miums or discounts over the expected lives of the respective debt
issues, considering maturity detes and, if applicable, redemption
rights held by others. As permitted by regulatory authorities,
gains or losses resulting from the refinancing of debt allocable to
utility operations subject to cost-based rate regulation have also
been deferred and amortized over the lives of the new issues.

3. Newly Adopted Accounting
Standards

2003

SFAS No. 143

Effective January 1, 2003, Dominion adopted SFAS No. 143,
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, which provides
accounting requirements for the recognition and measurement of
liabilities associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets. The effect of adopting SFAS No. 143 for 2003, as com-
pared to an estimate of net income reflecting the continuation

of former accounting policies, was to increase net income by
$201 million. The increase is comprised of a $180 million after-
tax gain, representing the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle and an increcse in income before the cumu-
lative effect of a change in accounting principle of $21 million.

EITF 02-3

On january 1, 2003, Dominion adopted Emerging Issues Task
Force [EITF) Issue No. 02-3, Issues Involved in Accounting for
Derivative Contrccts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts
Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities,

that rescinded EITF Issue No. 98-10, Accounting for Contracts
Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities.
Adopting EITF 02-3 resulted in the discontinuance of fair value
accounting for non-derivative contracts held for trading purposes.
Those contracts are recognized as revenue or expense at the time
of contract performance, settlement or termination. The EITF $8-10
rescission was effective for non-derivative energy trading con-
tracts initiated after October 25, 2002. For all non-derivative
energy trading contracts initiated prior fo October 25, 2002,
Dominion recognized a loss of $67 million (after taxes of

$43 million) as the cumulative effect of this change in accounting
principle on January 1, 2003.

EITF 03-11

Dominion adopted EITF Issue No. 03-11, Reporting Realized
Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments That Are Subject to
FASB Statement No. 133 and Not “Held for Trading Purposes”
as Defined in Issue No. 02-3, on October 1, 2003. EITF 03-11

addresses classification of income statement related amounts for

derivative contracts. Income statement amounts related to periods
prior to October:1, 2003 are presented as originally reported.
See Note 2.

Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C20

In connection with a request to reconsider an inferpretation of
SFAS No. 133, FASB issued Statement 133 Implementation lssue
No. C20, Interpretation of the Meaning of “Not Clearly and
Closely Related” in Paragraph 10 (b) regarding Contracts with a
Price Adjustment Feature. Issue C20 establishes criteria for deter-
mining whether a contracts pricing terms that contain broad mar-
ket indices (e.g., the consumer price index] could qualify as a
normal purchase or sale and, therefore, not be subject to fair
value accounting. Dominion has several contracts that qualify as
normal purchase and sale contracts under the Issue C20 guid-
ance. However, the adoption of Issue C20 required the contracts
to be initially recorded at fair value as of October 1, 2003, and
the recognition of an aftertax charge of $75 million, representing
the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle. As
normal purchase and sales contracts, no further changes in fair
value will be recognized.

SFAS No. 149

Dominion adopted SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133
on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 149
reflects decisions made by FASB and its Derivatives Implementa-
tion Group in connection with issues raised about the application
of SFAS No. 133. Generally, changes resulting from SFAS No.
149 apply to contracts entered into or modified after June 30,
2003 and for heclging relationships designated after June 30,
2003. The initial adoption of SFAS 149 did not have a material

impact on Dominion’s results of operations and financial position.

FIN 46R

On December 31, 2003, Dominion adopted FASB Interpretation
No. 46 {revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, (FIN 46R) for its interests in special purpose enti-
ties. FIN 46R addresses the consolidation of variable interest
entities (VIEs), which are entities that are not controllable through
voting interests or in which the VIEs' equity investors do not bear
the residual economic risks and rewards.

Under FIN 46R, Dominion consolidated several special pur-
pose lessor entities through which Dominion had constructed,
financed and leased several new power generation projects, as
well as its corporate headquarters and aircraft. As a result, the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2003 reflects
an additional $644 million in net property, plant and equipment
and deferred charges and $688 million of related debt. The
cumulative effect of adopting FIN 46R for its interests in special
purpose entities was an aftertax charge of $27 million, represent-
ing depreciation expense and amortization associated with the
consolidated assets. Annual depreciation expense for these assets
is expected to be approximately $31 million.
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From 1997 through 2002, Dominion established five capital
trusts that sold trust preferred securities to third party investors.
Dominion received the proceeds from the sale of the trust pre-
ferred securities in exchange for various junior subordinated
notes issued by Dominion to be held by the trusts. Upon adoption
of FIN 46R, Dominion’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December
31, 2003 reports the junior subordinated notes held by the trusts
os long-term debt, rather than the trust preferred securities.

Dominion is required to adopt FIN 46R for its interests in VIEs

that are not considered special purpose entities ric later than ™~

March 31, 2004. Dominion is still evaluating the impact that
adopting FIN 46R for these interests may have on its future results
of operations or financidl condition.

FIN 45

In November 2002, FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, Guaran-
tor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebiedness of Others—An
Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 (FIN 45).
Under FIN 45, issuers of certain types of guarantees must recog-
nize a liability based on the fair value of the guarantee issued,
even when the likelihood of making payments is remote. In
addition, FIN 45 requires increased disclosures for specific types
of guarantees.

FIN 45 initic! recognition requirements apply only fo guaran-
tees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. Dominion does
not anticipate any material impact on its future results of opera-
tions or financial condition as a result of recording newly issued
or modified guarantees ot fair value.

20902 ond 2001

SFAS No. 142

Dominion adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. The
discontinuance of goodwill amortization under SFAS No. 142
resulted in an increase in net income of $95 million in 2002,

SFAS No. 133

Dominion adopted SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, on January 1, 2001 and
recorded an affertax charge to accumulated other comprehen-
sive income of $183 million, net of taxes of $106 million.

Pro Ferma Information Reflecting Adoption of

New Stendards

Disclosure requirements associated with the adoption of FIN 46R,
SFAS Nos. 143 and 142, require a presentation of pro forma net
income and earnings per share for 2002 and 2001 as if Domin-
ion had applied the provisions of those standards as of January
1, 2001. Other standards adopted during 2003 do not require
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pro forma information and are excluded from the amounts pre-
sented below.

Basic  Diluted

Amount EPS EPS
(in millions, except per share amounts)
2002
Reported net income $1,362 $%4.85 $4.82

Adjusted net income 1,363 4.85 4,82

2001 0000 e
Reported net income __ L 544 2.7 2.15
Adjusted net income 658 2,63 2.60

SFAS No. 143 also requires a pro forma presentation of
asset retirement obligations as if Dominion had applied the provi-
sions of SFAS No. 143 as of January 1, 2001. Those amounts are
as follows:

2001 2002
(millions)
Pro forma asset refirement obligations
at Janvary 1, $ 810 $1,447
Pro forma asset retirement obligations
at December 31, $1,4487 $1,348

£. Acquisitions

Cove Point LNG Limited Partnership

In September 2002, Dominion acquired 100% ownership of
Cove Point LNG Limited Partnership {Cove Point), a cost-based
rate-regulated entity, from a subsidiary of The Williams Compa-
nies for $225 million in cash. Dominion recorded $75 million of
goodwill representing the excess of the purchase price over the
regulatory basis of Cove Point’s assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. Cove Point’s assets include a liquefied natural gas
import facility located near Baltimore, Maryland, a liquefied nat
ural gas storage facility and an approximately 85-mile natural
gas pipeline. Cove Point became fully operational in 2003. Cove
Point is included in the Dominion Energy operating segment and
the goodwill arising from the acquisition was allocated to that
segment for purposes of impairment testing under SFAS No. 142,

RFiirant State Line Ventures, Inc.

In June 2002, Dominion acquired 100% ownership of Mirant
State Line Ventures, Inc. {State Line) from a subsidiary of Mirant
Corporation for $185 million in cash. State Line’s assets include
a 515-megawatt coalfired generation facility located near
Hammond, Indiana. Its operations are included in the Dominion
Generation Vopercting segment.

Louis Dreyfus Naturel Gas Corp.

In November 2001, Dominion acquired all of the outstanding
shares of common stock of Louis Dreyfus Natural Gas Corp.
{Louis Dreyfus), a natural gas and oil exploration and production
company headquartered in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. The




aggregate purchase price was $1.8 billion, which consisted of
approximately 14 million shares of Dominion common stock val-
ved at $881 million, $902 million in cash and employee stock
options with a fair value on the date of grant of approximately
$13 million. Dominion recorded $543 million of goodwill, repre-
senfing the excess of purchase price over the fair value of the
Louis Dreyfus assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The opera-
tions of Louis Drevfus are included in the Dominion Exploration &
Production operating segment. All of the goodwill arising from
the acquisition was allocated to that segment for purposes of
impairment testing under SFAS No. 142.

Milistone Power Statien

in March 2001, Dominion acquired Millstone Power Station
{Millstone}, a nuclear power station located in Waterford,
Connecticut. The aggregate purchase price was $1.3 billion in
cash, consisting of approximately $1.2 billion for plant assets and
$105 miltion for ruclear fuel. Dominion recorded $302 million
of goodwill representing the excess of the purchase price over
amounts allocated to Millstone’s assets acquired and fiabilities
assumed. The operations of Millstone are included in the Domin-
ion Generation operating segment and all of the goodwill arising
from the acquisition has been allocated fo that segment for
purposes of impairment testing under SFAS No. 142.

5. Operating Revenue

Year Ended December 37, 2003 2002 2001
{millions)

Regulated electric sales $ 4876 § 4,856 S 4,619
Regulated gas sales 1,258 876 1,409
Nonregulated electric sales 1,130 1,017 1,022
Nonregulated gas sales 1,718 778 1,073
Gas transportation and storage 740 705 702
Gas and oil production 1,503 1,334 1,057
Other 853 652 676
Total operating revenue $12,078 $10,218 $10,558

&. Restructuring Activities

in 2001, after fully integrating CNG's organization and opera-
tions with those of Dominion, management initiated a focused
review of Dominion’s combined operations. As a result,
Dominion recognized the following restructuring costs and
related liabilities during 2001:

Amount
(millions)
Severance and related costs $ a2
Nonqualified plan benefits, settlement and other costs 46
Lease termination and restructuring 13
Other 4
Total restructuring costs $103

The change in the liabilities for severance and related costs
and lease termination costs during 2003 and 2002 are pre-
sented below:

Severance Liability Lease Liability

{millions)

Balance at December 31, 2001 $ a2 $10
Amounts paid (24) m
Revision of estimate (8) -
Balance ot December 31, 2002 0 ©
Amounts paid (9) {(3)
Balance at December 31, 2003 $ 1 $6

7. Income Taxes

Income from continuing operations before provision forincome
taxes (pre-tax income), classified by source of income, and the
details of income tax expense were as follows:

Year Ended December 3], 2003 2002 2001
{millions)
Income before provision for taxes:
us. $1,506 $2,018 4816
Non-U.S. 40 25 98
Total $1,546 $2,043 $914
Income tax expense:
Current
Federal 121 {46) 104
State 22 13 62
Non-U.S. 1 3
Total current 144 {33) 169
Deferred
Federal 433 654 157
State 32 65 24
Non-U.S. 6 13 45
Total deferred a7 732 220
Amortization of deferred investment
tax credits— net (18) (18) (19)
Total income tax expense $ 597 § 681 $370
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The statutory U.S. federal income tax rate reconciles to the
effective income tax rates as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 20030 20022 2001
U.S. statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increases {reductions) resulting from:
Valuation allowance 4.0 - -
State taxes, net of federal benefit 2.2 2.5 5.9
Utility plant differences {0.4) {8.1) 8.5
Preferred dividends 0.4 0.3 0.9
Amortization of investment tax credits {0.9) (C.7) {1.7)
Nonconventional fuel credit - {1.8) {4.8)
Other benefits and taxes related to
foreign operations (0.5) 0.2 3.0
Goodwill amortization - - 3.3
Employee pension and cther benefits {0.7) {0.6) 11.4)
Employee stock ownership plan deduction  (0.7) {0.8) -
Other, net 0.2 {0.7) {0.5)
Effective tax rate 38.6% 33.3% 40.4%

{1) Dominion’s effective tax rate increased in 2003, reflecting the effects of the
expiration of nonconventional fuel tax credits, an increase in valuation
allowances related to federal loss carryforwards at CNG International and
DC! thot are not expected to be ufilized and an impairment of goodwill
associated with the telecommunications investment, parfially offset by a
reduction in Canadian tax rates applied to deferred tax balances.

(2) Dominion’s effective income tax rate decreased in 2002, reflecting the effect of
including certain subsidiaries in Dominion’s consolidated state income tax
returns. In addition, the effective tax rate decreased for foreign earnings, the
impact of discontinuing goodwill amortization for book purposes and other
factors.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income
tax purposes. Dominion’s net deferred income taxes consist of

the following:
At December 31, 2003 2002
{millions)
Deferred income tax assets:
Other comprehensive income $ 397 $ 246
Deferred investment tax credits 31 37
Loss and credit carryforwards 424 204
Valuation allowance (338} (8}
Other - 18
Total deferred income tax assets 514 497
Deferred income tax liabilities;
Depreciation method and plant basis differences 2,085 1,833
Income taxes recoverable through future rates 16 15
Partnership basis differences 485 352
Investee earnings reported in different tax periods 208 149
Postretirement and pension benefits 604 317
Intangible drilling costs 833 777
Geological, geophysical and other
exploration differences 220 196
Deferred state income taxes 432 347
Other 5 321
Total deferred income tax liabilities 4,888 4,507
Total net deferred income tax liabilitiest $4,374 $4,010

{1) At 2003 and 2002, total net deferred income tax liabilities include $97 million
and $89 million, respectively, of current deferred tax assets included in other
current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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At December 31, 2003, Dominion had the following ioss and
credit carryforwards:
* Federal loss carryforwards of $499 million that expire if unuti-
lized during 2004 through 2007. A valuation allowance on
$251 million has been established due to the uncertainty of
realizing the future deductions;
¢ State net operating loss carryforwards of $1.3 billion that
expire if unutilized during 2008 through 2022. A valuation
allowance on $446 million has been established for these
carryforwards; and
* Federal minimum tax credits of $113 million that do not expire
and other federal and state income tax credits of $54 million that
will expire if unutilized during 2006 through 2009.

8. Hedge Accounting Activities

Dominion is exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the
price of natural gas, electricity and other energy-related products
marketed and purchased as well as currency exchange and
financial market risks of its business operations. Dominion uses
derivotive instruments fo mitigate its exposure to these risks and
designates derivative instruments as fair value or cash flow
hedges for accounting purposes. Selected information about
Dominion’s hedge accounting activities follows:

2003 2002 2001

(millions)
Portion of pre-tax gains {losses) on hedging

instruments determined to be ineffective

and included in net income:

Fair value hedges $3) $ 2 $ (1)

Cash flow hedges 7 (31) 3
Net ineffectiveness $4  $(29) $ 2
For options used as hedging instruments,

change in options’ time value excluded

from measurement of effectiveness and

included in net income:

Fair value hedges $1 3 (0) -

Cash flow hedges 7 (%) (47)
Tofal change in options’ fime value $8 §(2) s(a7)




The following table presents selected information related to
cash flow hedges included in AOCI in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at December 31, 2003:

Portion
Expected to

Accumulated  be Reclassified

Other to Earnings
Comprehensive during
Income (Loss) the Next Maximum
After Tax 12 Months Term
(millions)
Commodities:
Gas $(590) $(257) 50 months
Oil (82) (40) 36 months
Electricity (107) (66) 48 months
Interest Rate {25) — 270 months
Foreign Currency 36 4 47 months
Total $(768) $(359)

The actual amounts that will be reclassified to earnings in
2004 will vary from the expected amounts presented cbove as a
result of changes in market prices, interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. The effect of amounts being reclassified from
ACCl to earnings will generally be offset by the recognition of
the hedged transactions (e.g., anticipated sales) in earnings,
thereby achieving the realization of prices contemplated by the
underlying risk management sirategies.

in connection with the December 2, 2001 Enron bankruptcy fil-
ing, Dominion’s Enron derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
of anticipated purchases and sales of natural gas no longer quali-
fied for hedge accounting and, accordingly, were de-designated
from their hedging relationships for accounting purposes.

9. Discontinued Operations —
Telecommunications Operations -

Dominion Fiber Ventures, LLC {DFV) is a joint venture originally
formed by Dominion and a third-party investor trust {Investor
Trust) to fund the development of its principal subsidiary, Domin-
ion Telecom, Inc. (DTI). DTl is a facilities-based interchange and
emerging local carrier, providing broadband solutions to whole-
sale customers throughout the eastern United States. In connec-
tion with its formation, DFV issued $665 million of 705% senior
secured notes due March 2005 which were secured in part by
Dominion convertible preferred stock held in trust. Dominion is
the beneficial owner of the trust and thus does not present the
convertible preferred stock in its Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Also, as described below, Dominion acquired substantially all of
DFV's senior notes in early 2003, reducing the likelihood that the
remarketing of the Dominion convertible preferred stock held in
trust would ever cceur.

At inception, Dominion’ strategy for DTl was to focus primar-
ily on delivering it capacity, dark fiber and collocation services
to underserved markets. With the markets for these services not
growing at rates originally contemplated and the continuing
downward pressure on prices, resulting from excess capacity in
the telecommunications industry, Dominion reconsidered its
investment strategy during 2003. Reflecting a revision in long-
term expectations for potential growth in telecommunications ser-
vice revenue, Dominion approved a strategy to sell its interest in
the telecommunications business and does not expect to have
any significant participation in the business once sold. Dominion
has engaged outside parties to assist in marketing DTl and
expects a sale to oceur in 2004.

As a result, DTl assets (network assets and inventories) and
liabilities, both totaling $13 million are classified as held-forsale,
and cre included in other current assets and liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2003. DTls
results of operaticns, including revenue of $11 million, operating
expenses of $638 million and income tax expense of $15 million,
are presented as discontinued operations, on a net basis, on the
Consclidated Statement of Income for 2003. Dominion hos guar-
antees related to DTl in the amount of $17 million. In addition,
bidders may choose not to acquire all of the operating leases of
DTI which may uliimately be abandoned.

2003 — Asset Impairmenis
The change in strategy in 2003 included a review of DTI’s network
assets and related inventories for impairment. As a result, Domin-
ion recognized a $566 million impairment of network assets and
related inventories, reflecting the excess of the assets carrying
amount over their estimated fair values. This amount included the
allocation of $16 million to the Investor Trust, representing its
minority interest share of these charges. Management determined
the estimated fair values with the assistance of an independent
appraiser and subsequently updated the fair values based on
preliminary bids received in connection with the sale of DTI.
Since realization of tax benefits related to the impairment
charges will be dependent upon Dominion’s future tax profile and
taxable earnings, management established a valuation allow-
ance that completely offsets the deferred tax benefits. In addition,
Dominion increased the valuation allowance on deferred tax
assets previously recognized, resulting in a $48 million increase

in deferred income tax expense.

2003 — Additional Investments in DFY

The DFV senior notes contained certain stock price and credit
downgrade triggers that could have resulted in the issuance of
the convertible preferred stock held:in trust. In the first quarter of
2003, Dominion purchased $633 million of DFV senior notes
and, in connection with the purchase, obtained consent to
remove the triggers from the indenture. Dominion paid a total of
$664 million for the notes acquired and recognized a pre-fox
charge of $57 miliion, reported in other expenses on the
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Consolidated Statement of Income. The charge consisted of the
premium paid to acquire the notes, the consent fee paid to the
note holders and the recognition of previously unamortized debt
costs. After the transaction, Dominion owned a total of $644 mil-
lion of DFV senior notes with the remaining $21 million of
outstanding notes held by third parties.

Dominion began consolidating the results of DFV in its Consol-
idated Financial Statements in February 2003, as a result of
acquiring substantially all of DFV's outstanding senior notes. Prior
to this acquisition, Dominion accounted for DFV as an equity-
method investment, due to the Investor Trust's equity investment
and veto rights.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, Dominion purchased the
Investor Trust’s interest in DFVY for $62 million, including $2 million
for accrued dividends. This transaction was accounted for as a

purchase of a minority inferest and $60 million was recognized ~

as goodwill and impaired. The purchase enabled Dominion to
proceed with its strategy to sell DTl and, accordingly, classify the
business as discontinued operations as of December 31, 2003.

2003 — Cfher

Also early in 2003, Dominion recognized a $27 million charge
for the reallocation of DFV's equity losses between the Investor
Trust and Dominion. Based on updated projections of DFV's
expected net losses, Dominion and the Investor Trust revised the
allocation of equity losses, using cash allocations and liquidation
provisions of the underlying limited liakility company agreement
rather than voting interests.

2002 and 2001 Transactions

For periods in which DFV was accounted for under the equity
method, Dominion’s Consolidated Financial Statements reflected
the following transactions between Dominion and DFY and DTI:
* loans from DTl and DFV to Dominion of $140 million at
December 31, 2002;

¢ Equity losses of $32 million and $3 million for 2002 and
200), respectively;

¢ Inferest expense on the affiliated loans of $13 million and
$23 million for 2002 and 2001, respectively; and

¢ Management and other support services billed by Dominion
to DTl of $35 million and $20 million in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. ‘
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i0. Earnings Per Share

The following table presents Dominion’s basic and diluted earn-

ings per share (EPS) calculation:

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(millions, except per share amounts)
income from continuing operations before

cumulative effect of changes in

accounting principles $ 949 $1,362 § 5344
Loss from discontinued operations (642) - -
Cumuldtive effect of changes in

accounting principles 11 - -
Net income $ 318 81,362 §$ 344
Basic EPS
Average shores of common stock

outstanding — basic 317.5 2871.0 250.2
Income from continuing operations

before cumulative effect-of changes : -

in accounting principle $ 299 $ 485 § 27
Loss from discontinued operations {2.02) - -
Cumulative effect of changes in

accounting principles .03 - -
Net income " $1.00 $ 485 § 217
Diluted EPS
Average shares of common

stock outstanding 3175 281.0 250.2
Net effect of dilutive stock options( 1.3 1.6 2.3
Average shares of common stock

autstanding — diluted 318.8 282.6 252.5
Income from continuing operations

before cumulative effect of changes

in accounting principles $ 298 $ 4382 § 215
Loss from discontinued operations {2.01) - -
Cumulative effect of changes in

accounting principles .03 - -
Net income $1.00 $ 482 $ 215
Average anti-dilutive shares excluded

from the EPS caleulation 9.5 11.0 3.0

(1) Represents the effect of “in-the-money” stock options on the celculation of

average outstanding shares of common stock.




11, Available-For-Sale and Other
Investment Securities

Dominion holds marketable debt and equity securities in nuclear
decommissioning frust funds and retained interests from prior
securitizations of financiol assets. These investments are classified
as available-forsale. As described below, prior to adopting SFAS
No. 143, Dominion did not record unrealized gains and losses in
AQC! for investments held for decommissioning its utility nuclear
plants; those investments are not presented in the tables below for
2002 or 2001.

Available-forsale securities as of December 31, 2003 and
2002 are summarized below:

Total Total
Unrealized  Unrealized
Gains Losses
Fair Included Included
Value in AOCI in AOCI
{millions)
2003
Equity securifies $1,092 $157 $ 9
Debt securities 1,102 22 12
Total 2,194 179 21
2002
Equity securities 489 i ii8
Debt securities 758 14 id
Total $1,247 $ 15 $132

The following table presents the fair value and gross unreal-
ized losses of Dominion’s available-for-sale securities, aggregated
by investment category and the length of time the securities have
been in o continuous loss position, at December 31, 2003:

Equity Securities Debt Securities

Foir  Unrealized Fair  Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses

{miltions)
less than 12 months  § 54 $4 $ 52 $ 2
12 months or more 60 5 55 10
Totol $114 $9 $107 $12

Debt securities backed by mortgages and loans do not have
stated contractual maturities as borrowers have the right to call or
repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
At December 31, 2003, these debt securities totaled $413 million.
The fair value of all other debt securities of December 31, 2003
by contractual maturity are as follows:

Amount
[millions)
Due in one year or less $ 6
Due after one year through five years 245
Due after five years through ten years 262
Due affer ten years 176
Total $689

Presented below is selected information regarding the sales
of investment securities. In determining realized gains and
losses, the cost of these securities was determined on a specific
identification basis.

2003 2002 2003

(millions)

Available-forsale securities:
Proceeds from sales $832 $506 $484
Realized gains 62 38 18
Realized losses 102 38 4

Trading securities:

Net unrealized gain (loss)(? 12 {10} 21

(1) Beginning in 2003, after adopting SFAS No. 143, Dominion accounts for its
utility decommissioning frust investments as available-forsale.

[2)For 2002, $5 million of net realized and unrealized pre-tax losses related to
refained interests were reported in earnings. Effective May 1, 2002, Dominion
reclassified its retained interests from trading to available-for-sale based on a
determination that the refained interests were not readily marketable on terms
that would be acceptoble to Dominion.

Decommissioning Trust lavesimenis—

Utility Plants 2002 and 2001

Prior to adopting SFAS No. 143, Dominion recognized an
expense for the future cost of decommissioning its utility nuclear
plants in amounts equal to amounts collected from ratepayers
and earnings on frust investments dedicoted to funding the
decommissioning of those plants. The trusts were reported ot fair
value with realized and unrealized earnings on the trust invest-
ments, as well as an offsetting expense to increase the accumu-
lated provision for decommissioning, recorded as a component
of other income {loss). At December 31, 2002, the balance of
investments held in these trusts was $838 million, Dominion rec-
ognized net redlized gains and interest income of $11 million for
2002 and $32 million for 2001, and recognized net unrealized
losses of $67 miliion for 2002 and $61 million for 2001,
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i2. Property, Plant and Equipment

Major classes of property, plant and equipment and their respec-
tive balances are:

At December 31, 2003 2002
{millions)
Utility
Generation $ 9,780 $ 3,497
Transmission 3,308 3,283
Distribution 7,713 7,347
Storage 999 787
Nuclear fuel 757 740
Gas gathering and processing 416 341
General 795 830
Plant under construction 698 972
Total utility 24,466 22,791
Nonutility
Exploration and production properties:
Proved 7,561 6,265
Unproved 1,721 1,840
Merchant generation properties —nuclear 929 921
Nuclear fuel 175 146
Merchant generation properfies — other 1,214 629
Other —including plant under construction 1,041 439
Total nonutility 12,641 9,840
Total property, plont and equipment $37,707 332,631

Costs of unproved properties capitalized under the fuil cost
method of accounting that were excluded from amortization at
December 31, 2003, and the years in which such excluded costs
were incurred, follow:

Years
Total 2003 2002 2001  Prior
(millions)

Property acquisition
costs $ 863 $84 S 84 $643 $50
Exploration costs 171 76 43 32 20
Copitalized interest 120 53 52 8 7
Total $1,154 5213 $179 5685 $77

Amortization rates for capitalized costs under the full cost
method of accounting for Dominion’s United States and Canadian
cost centers were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
(Per Mcf Equivalent]

United States cost center $1.20 $1.13  $1.13
Cancdian cost center 1.00 0.85 0.78

Velumetric Produciion Poyment Transaction

In 2003, Dominion received $266 million in cash for the sale of a
fixed-term overriding royalty interest in certain of its natural gas
reserves for the period August 2003 through August 2007. The
sale reduced Dominion’s natural gas reserves by approximately
66 billion cubic feet (bef). While Dominion is obligated under the
ogreement to deliver to the purchaser its portion of future natural
gas production from the properties, it retains control of the prop-
erties and rights to future development drilling. If production from
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the properties is inadequate to deliver approximately 66 bef of
natural gas scheduled for delivery to the purchaser, Dominion has
no obligation to make up the shortfall. Cash proceeds received
from this volumetric production payment transaction were
recorded as deferred revenue. Dominion will recognize revenue
from the fransaction as natural gas is produced and delivered to
the purchaser.

Classification of Mineral Rights

Companies with gas and oil exploration ond production opera-
tions have become aware that a question has arisen about
whether contractual mineral rights should be classified as intangi-
ble assets rather than tangible assets on the belance sheet as a
result of SFAS Nos. 141, Business Combinations, and 142. if, as a
result of the resolution of this issue, reclassification of the costs
ossociated with its mineral rights is required, Dominion’s net
intangible assets would increase and its net property, plant and
equipment would decrease. As of December 31, 2003, the
amount subject to reclassification was approximately $4.2 billion.
While resolution of this issue may affect the balance sheet classi-
fication of these assets, there would be no impact on Dominion’s
results of operations or cash flows.

Jointly-Owned Utility Planis
Dominion’s proportionate share of jointly-owned utility plants at
December 31, 2003 follows:

Bath
County North
Pumped Anna Clover
Storage Power Power
Station  Station  Station
{millions, except percentages)
Ownership interest 60.0% 88.4% 50.0%
Plant in service $1,019 52,064 $546
Accumulated depreciation 360 864 103
Nuclear fuel 348
Accumulated amortization of nuclear fuel 286
Construction work in progress 17 28 1

The co-owners are obligated to pay their share of all future
construction expenditures and operating costs of the jointly
owned facilities in the same proportion as their respective owner-
ship interest. Dominion reports its share of operating costs in the
appropriate operating expense {fuel, other operations and main-
tenance, depreciation, and other taxes, efc.) in the Consolidated
Statements of Income.




13. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goadwill during 2003 are presented below:

Corporate
Dominion Dominion Dominion  Dominion and
Generation Energy Delivery E&P Other Total
{millions)
Balance at December 31, 2002 $1,472 $585 $1,344 $879 $ 21 $4,301
Acquisition of controlling interest in previously unconsolidated
telecom and DCl businesses - - - - 87 87
Telecom impairment loss - - - - (60) (60)
DCl impairment losses - - - - (18) (18}
Purchase accounting adjustments - 2 - - (12) (10)
Recllocation of goodwill due to transfer of electric transmission
operations from Dominion Delivery to Dominion Energy - 168 (168) - - -
Reallocation of goodwill due to transfer of Dominion Retail
operations from Dominion Energy to Dominion Delivery - (7) 7 - - -
Balance at December 31, 2003 $1,472 $748 $1,183 $879 $18 $4,300

Goodwill Impairments

In 2003, Dominion recorded goodwill impairment charges of
$18 million related fo the DCI reporting unit. During 2003, a DCI
subsidiary received an unfavorable arbitration ruling that resulted
in lower margins for services provided. Another DCI subsidiary
experienced delays in expanding marketing and stabilizing pro-
duction efforts. As a result of these unfavorable developments,
Dominion performed goodwill impairment tests, using discounted
cash flow analyses, which indicated that the goodwill associoted
with those entities was impaired.

Also in 2003, as described in Note 9, Dominion purchased
the remaining equity interest in DFV for $62 million, including
$2 million for accrued dividends. This transaction was accounted
for as o purchase of a minority interest and $60 million was rec-
ognized as goodwill and immediately impaired. The purchase
enabled Dominion to proceed with its strategy to sell DTI.

In 2002, Dominion recorded a goodwill impairment charge of
$13 million related to @ DCI subsidiary that received an unfavor-
able arbitration ruling that affected its ability to recover disputed
amounts for past and future performance under a contract with a
major customer. Dominion performed a goodwill impairment test,
using discounted cash flow analysis, which indicated that the
goodwill was impaired.

Other infangible Assets

All of Dominion’s intangible assets, other than goodwill, are sub-
ject to amortization. Amortization expense for intangible assets
was $54 million, $53 million and $44 million for 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively. There were no material acquisitions of
intangible assets during 2003 and 2002. Intangible assets are
included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
components of intangible assets at December 31, 2003 and
2002 were as follows:

2003 2002
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying = Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
(millions)
Software and
software licenses  $543 $237 $464 $200
Other 73 23 68 19
Total $616 $260 $532 $219

Annual amortization expense for intangible assets is estimated
to be $54 million for 2004, $49 million for 2005, $43 million for
2006, $36 million for 2007 and $24 million for 2008.
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i4. Regulatory Assets and
Liabilities
Regulatory assets represent probable future revenue associated
with certain costs that will be recovered from customers through
the ratemaking process. Regulatory liabilities represent probable
future reductions in revenues associated with amounts that are fo
be credited to customers through the ratemaking process or
amounts that have been collected from customers and not yet
expended.

Dominion’s regulatory assets and liabilities include the follow-

ing at December 31, 2003 and 2002

At Decemper 31, 2003 2002
(millions)
Unrecovered gas costs $55 § 32
Regulatory assets:
Other postretirement benefit costs!l} 102 106
Income taxes recoverable through future rates® 227 203
Deferred cost of fuel used in electric generation 335 133
Cost of decommissioning DOE uranium
enrichment facilities® 27 34
Customer bad debts4 65 56
Other 76 52
Regulatory assets 832 584
Total regulatory assets 887 616
Regulatory liabilities
Provision for future cost of removals! 572 531
Estimated rate contingencies and refunds(¢! 13 21
Other 18 13
Total regulatory liabilities $603 3335

{1) Costs recognized in excess of amounts included in regulated rates charged
by Deminion’s regulated gas operations before rates were updated fo reflect
the new method of accounting and the cost related to the accrued benefit
obligation recognized as part of Dominions accounting for its acquisition
of CNG.

{2)Income taxes recoverable through future rates resulting from the recognition
of additional deferred income taxes, not previously recorded under past rate-
making practices.

{3) Cost of decommissioning the Depariment of Energy’s uranium enrichment
facilities, representing the unamortized portion of Dominion’s required
contributions. Beginning in 1992, Dominion began making contributions over
a 15-year period and collecting these costs in eleciric customers’ fuef rates.

{4) The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio has authorized the deferral of costs
associated with certain uncollectible customer accounts not contemplated by
current rates.

{5} Rates charged to customers by Dominion's regulated businesses include a
provision for the cost of future activities to remove assets expected to be
incurred at the time of retirement.

(6)Estimated rate contingencies and refunds are associated with certain increases
in prices by Dominion’s rate reguloted utilities and other rate —making issues
that are subject to final modification in regulatory proceedings.

74. Dominion 2003

The incurred costs underlying regulatory assets may represent
past expenditures by Dominion’s rate regulated electric and gas
operations or may represent the recognition of liabilities that ulti-
mately will be settled at some future time. At December 31, 2003,
approximately $403 million of Dominion’s regulatory assets rep-
resented past expenditures on which it does not earn a return.
These expenditures consist primarily of customer bad debts and
a portion of deferred fuel costs. Deferred fuel costs have histori-
cally been recovered within two years; however, in connection
with the settflement of the 2003 Virginia fue! rate proceeding,
Dominion agreed to recover $307 million of previausly incurred
costs through June 30, 2007 without a return on unrecovered
balances.

i5. Asset Retirement Obligations

Dominion’s asset refirement obligations are primarily associated
with the decommissioning of its nuclear generation facilities,
abandoning certain natural gos pipelines and dismantling and
removing gos ard oil wells and platforms. In addition, Dominion
has asset retirement obligations related to its natural gas gather-
ing, storage, transmission and distribution systems, including
approximately 2,300 gas storage wells in Dominion’s under-
ground natural gos storage network. These obligations result from
certain safety requirements to be performed at the time any
pipeline or storage well is abandoned. However, Dominion
expects fo operate its natural gas gathering, storage, transmis-
sion and distribution systems in perpetuity. Thus, asset retirement
obligations for those assets will not be reflected in Dominion’s
Consolidated Financial Statements until sufficient information
becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the
fair value of the activities to be performed. Generally, this will
occur when expected retirement or abandonment dates for
individual pipelines or storage wells are determined by
Dominion’s operational planning. Asset refirement obligations
recognized upon adoption of SFAS No. 143 and changes

to Dominion’s asset retirement obligations during 2003 were

as follows:

Amount
[millions)
Obligations recognized upon adoption of SFAS No. 143 $1,543
Obligations incurred during the period 31
Obligations settled during the period (32)
Accretion expense 86
Revisions in estimated cash flows 16
Other 9
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 20031 $1,653

{1] Amount includes $2 million reported in other current liabilities.




Dominion has established trusts dedicated to funding the
future decommissioning of its nuclear plants. At December 31,
2003 the aggregate fair value of these trusts, consisting primarily
of debt and equity securities, totaled $1.9 billion.

At December 21, 2002, Dominion had recognized an accu-
mulated provision for decommissioning activities of $1.5 billion.
This amount was recognized under prior accounting policies and
is reported as an asset retirement obligation on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet at December 31, 2002.

16. Short-Term Debt and Credit
Agreements

Joint Credit Facilities

in May 2003 and 2002, Dominion, Virginia Power and CNG
entered into two joint credit facilities that allow aggregate
borrowings of up to $2 billion. The facilities include a $1.25 bil-
lion 364-day revolving credit facility that terminates in May
2004 and @ $750 million three-year revolving credit facility that
terminates in May 2005. The 364-day facility includes an option
to extend any borrowings for an additional period of one year
to May 2005. These joint credit facilities are being used for work-
ing capital, as support for the combined commercicl paper pro-
grams of Dominion, Virginia Power and CNG and other general
corporate purposes. The three-year facility can also be used to
support up to $200 million of letters of credit. Dominion expects
to renew the 364-day revolving credit facility prior to its maturity
in May 2004.

At December 31, 2003, total outstanding commercial paper
supported by the joint credit facilities was $1.44 billion, with a
weighted average interest rate of 1.20%. At December 31, 2002,
total outstonding commercial paper supported by previous credit
agreements was $1.2 billion, with a weighted average interest
rate of 1.71%.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, total outstanding letters of
credit supported by the three-year facility were $85 million and
$106 million, respectively.

CNG Credit Facility

In August 2003, CNG entered into a $1 billion 364-day revolving
credit facility that terminates in August 2004, This credit facility is
being used to support CNG? issuance of commercial paper and
letters of credit to provide collateral required by counterparties on
derivative financial contracts used by CNG in its risk manage-
ment strategies for its gas and oil production. At December 31,
2003, outstanding letters of credit under this facility totaled $820
million. At December 31, 2002, outstanding letters of credit under
the previous facility totaled $500 million.

In January 2004, CNG entered into a $200 million letter of
credit agreement o support the issuance of a letter of credit to
provide collateral required by a counterparty on derivative finan-
cial contracts used by CNG in its risk management strafegies for
its gas and oil preduction. The agreement terminates in May
2004 and is not expected to be renewed.
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i7. Long-Term Debt

2003
Weighted
Average
At December 31, Coupon!) 2003 2002
(millions, except percentages} ‘
Dominion Resources, Inc.:
Unsecured Senior and Medium-Term Notes:
Variable Rate, due 2003 - $ 100
2.25% to 7.625%, due 2003 tc 2008 5.17% $ 1,740 2,350
50% to 8.125%, due 2009 to 2033126 6.11% 3,680 2,570
Unsecured Equity-Linked Senior Notes, 5.75% io 8.05%, due 2006 fo 2008 7.03% 743 743
Unsecured Convertible Senior Notes, 2.125%, due 202314 220 -
Unsecured Junior Suberdinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts, 7.83% to 8.4%, due 2027 to 204165 8.22% 825 -
Unsecured Nonrecourse Debt, Variable Rate, due 2004 1.73% 18 i8
Consolidated Natural Gas Company:
Unsecured Debentures and Senior Notes:
5.375% to 7.25%, due 2003 to 2008 6.47% 1,400 1,550
5.0% to 6.875%, due 2010 to 20271 6.41% 1,950 1,750
Unsecured Senior Subordinated Debt, 2.25%, due 2004 88 88
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust, 78%, due 20416 206 -
Virginia Electric and Power Company:
Secured First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds:®)
7.625% to-8:0%, due 2003 to 2007 7.83% 465 665
70% to 8.625%, due 2023 fo 2025 8.09% 512 1,001
Unsecured Senior and Medium-Term Notes:
Variable Rate, due 2003 - 120
5.375% to 7.2%, due 2003 to 2008 5.65% 1,445 1,485
4.50% to 5.25%, due 2009 to 2038 4.80% 830 300
Unsecured Callable and Puttable Enhanced Securities®™, 4.10%, due 20387 225 -
Tax-Exempt Financings: 18
Variable Rate, due 2008 1.33% 60 &0
Variable Rates, due 2015 to 2027 1.34% 137 137
495% to 5.25%, due 2007 to 2008 5.21% 107 107
2.174% to 5.875%, due 2009 to 2031 4.78% 295 293
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust, 7.375%, due 204215 412 -
Dominion Energy, Inc.:
Unsecured MediumTerm Notes, 5.72% to 6.1%, due 2005 to 20069 5.94% 243 199
Secured Senior Note, 733%, due 2020 238 246
Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rates, due 2006 to 200719 1.60% 951 -
Revolving Lines of Credit, Variable Rates, due 2003 to 2004 1.55% 150 163
Dominion Capital, Inc.:
Notes, 7.6% to 12.5%, due 2003 to 2008 12.5% [ 26
Note, Variable Rate, due 2003 - 22
Dominion Resources Services, Inc., Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rate, due 200615} 107 -
Dominion Fiber Ventures, Secured Senior Note, 705%, due 2005 21 -
17,074 14,065
Fair value hedge valuation 43 75
Amounts due within one year 6.10% {1,252) (2,077)
Unamortized discount and premium, net (89) (95)
15,776 11,968
Other Unsecured Notes Payable to Affiliates:
6.0%, dve 2005 . - 126
Variable Rate, due 2006 - 14
Amounts due within one year - (48)
92
Total long-term debt $15,776 $12,060

(1) Represents weighted-average coupon rates for debt outstanding as of December 31, 2003.

(2) $250 million of the 7.82% remarketable notes due September 15, 2014 will be either mandatorily purchased and remarketed by the remarketing agent or mandatorily
redeemed by Dominion on September 15, 2004. Dominion has access fo other means of long-term liquidity in the event of a failed remarketing.

(3) At the option of holders in October 2006 and August 2015, $150 million of CNG’s 6.875% senior notes due 2026 and $510 million of Dominion’s 5.25% senior notes
due 2033, respectively, are subject to redemption at 100% of the principal amount plus acerued interest.

Footnotes fo Long-term Debt table continued on next page.
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(4) Convertible into Dominion commeon stock at any time after March 31, 2004
when the average closing price of Dominion common stock is at least $88.32
per share, At the option of holders on December 15, 2006, December 15,
2008, December 15, 2013, or December 15, 2018, this security is subject to
redemption at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest.

(5)New debt reflected on Dominion’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as a result of
FIN 46R. '

{6) Substantially all of Virginia Power’s property ($11.7 billion of December 31,
2003) is subject to the lien of the mortgage, securing its mortgage bonds.

(7)On December 15, 2008, $225 million of the 4.10% Callable and Puttable
Enhanced Securities™ due 2038 are subject to redemption at par plus
accrued interest; unless holders of related options exercise rights to purchase
ond remarket the netes.

{8} Certain pollution control equipment at Virginia Power’s generating facilities has
been pledged fo support these financings. The variable rate tax-exempt
financings are supported by a stand-alone $200 million three-year credit
facility that ferminates in May 2006.

{9) Aggregete principal amount of CAD$335 million of securities denominated in
Canadian dollars and presented in US dollars, based on exchange rates as of
yearend.

Based on stated maturity dates rather than early redemption dates that could be elected by the instrument holders, the scheduled

principal payments of longterm debt at December 31, 2003 were as follows:

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total
{millions, except perceatages)
Secured First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds $ 250 - - $ 215 - $ 512 $ 977
Secured Senior Notes 8 $ 29 $ 9 10 $ 10 193 259
Unsecured Senior Notes (including Medium-Term Notes) 725 1,340 1,656 850 1,000 6,680 12,251
Unsecured Callable and Puttable Enhanced Securities™ - - - - - 225 225
Tax-Exempt Financings - - - 15 152 432 599
Secured Bank Debt - - 688 370 - - 1,058
Unsecured Senior Subordinated Debt 88 - - - - - 88
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to
Affiliated Trusts - - - - - 1,443 1,443
Other 168 2 - - 4 - 174
Total $1,239 $1,371 $2,353 $1,460 $1,166 $9,485 $17,074
Weighted average coupon 6.10% 6.05% 4.94% 4.91% 5.07% 6.31%

Dominion’ shortterm credit facilities and long-term debt
agreements contain customary covenants and default provisions,
As of December 31, 2003, there were no events of default under
these covenants.

Equity ~ Linked Securities

tn 2002 and 2000, Dominion issued equity-linked debt securi-
ties, consisting of stock purchase contracts and senior notes. The
stock purchase contracts obligate the holders to purchase shares
of Dominion common stock from Dominion by a settlement date,
two years prior to the senior notes’ maturity date. The purchase
price is $50 and the number of shares to be purchased will be
determined under a formula based upon the average closing
price of Dominion common stock near the seftlement date. The
senior notes, or freasury securities in some instances, are
pledged as collateral to secure the purchase of commen stock
under the related stock purchase contracts. The holders may sal-

isfy their obligations under the stock purchase contracts by allow-

ing the senior notes to be remarketed with the proceeds being
paid to Dominior as consideration for the purchase of stock.
Alternatively, holders may choose to continue holding the senior
notes and use other resources as consideration for the purchase
of stock under the stock purchase contracts.

Dominion makes quarterly interest payments on the senior
notes and quarterly payments on the stock purchase contracts at
the rates described below. Dominion has recorded the present
value of the stock purchase contract payments as a liability, offset
by a charge to common stock in shareholders’ equity. Interest
payments on the senior notes are recorded as inferest expense
and stock purchase contract payments are charged against the
liability. Accretion of the stock purchase contract liability is
recorded as interest expense. In calculating diluted earnings per
share, Dominion applies the treasury stock method to the equity-
linked debt securities. These securities did not have a significant
effect on diluted earnings per share for 2003.

Under the terms of the stock purchase contracts, Dominion will
issue between 6.7 million and 8.1 million shares of its common
stock in November 2004 and between 4.1 million and 5.5 million
shares of its common stock in May 2006. A total of 13.6 million
shares of Dominion common stock has been reserved for
issuance in connection with the stock purchase contracts.
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Selected information about Dominion’s equity-linked debt securities is presented below:

Senior Stock
Total Notes  Purchase Stock

Total Llong- Annual Contract Total  Purchase Maturity
Date of Units Net term Interest Annual Equity Settlement  of Senior
Issuance 1ssued Proceeds Debt Rate Rate Charge Date Notes
{miflions, except percentages)
2000 8.3 $400.1 $412.5 8.05% 1.45% $20.7 11/04 11/06
2002 6.6 $320.1 $330.0 5.75% 3.00% $36.3 5/06 5/08

i8. Subsidiary Preferred Stock

Dominion is authorized to issue up to 20 million shares of pre-
ferred stock. Dominion issued 665,000 shares of Series A
mandatorily convertible preferred stock, liquidation preference
$1,000 per share, to Piedmont Share Trust [Piedmont Trust} in con-
nection with the formation of DFV and the issuance of senior
notes by DFV. Dominion is the beneficial owner of the Piedmont
Trust which is consolidated in the preparation of Dominion’s Con-
solidated Financial Statements, thus eliminating these outstanding
shares of preferred stock.

Virginia Power is authorized to issue up to 10 million shares
of preferred stock, $100 fiquidation preference. Upon involuntary
liguidation, dissolution or winding-up of Virginia Power, each
share is entitled to receive $100 per share plus accrued divi-
dends. Dividends are cumulative.

Holders of the outstanding preferred stock of Virginia Power
are not entitled to voting rights except under certain provisions of
the amended and restated articles of incorporation and related
provisions of Virginia law restricting corporate action, or upon
defoult in dividends, or in special statutory proceedings and as
required by Virginia law (such as mergers, consclidations, sales
of assets, dissolution and changes in voting rights or priorities of
preferred stock).

In 2002, Virginia Power purchased and redeemed, ot par, all
shares of its variable rate preferred stock October 1988 Series,
June 1989 Series, September 1992A Series and September
19928 Series for $250 million, at the redemption price of $100
per share. The dividend rates for these series were variable
and set every 49 days via an auction process. The combined
weighted average rates for all series outstanding during 2002
and 20071, including fees for broker/dealer agreements, were
4.00% and 4.32%, respectively.

fn 2002, Virginic Power issued 1,250 units consisting of 1,000
shares per unit of cumulative preferred stock for $125 million. The
preferred stock has a dividend rate of 5.50% until the end of the
initial dividend period on December 20, 2007. The dividend rate
for subsequent periods will be determined through periodic rate
remarketing. The preferred stock has a liquidation preference of
$100 per share plus accumulated and unpaid dividends. Except
during the initial dividend period, and any non-call period, the
preferred stock will be redeemable, in whole or in part, on any
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dividend poyment date ot the option of Virginia Power. Virginia
Power may also redeem the preferred stock, in whole but not in
part, if certain changes are made to federal tax law which
reduce the dividends received deduction percentage.

Presented below are the series of Virginia Power preferred
stock not subject fo mandatory redemption that were outstanding
as of December 31, 2003.

Issued and
Outstanding  Entitled Per Share
Dividend Shares  Upon Liquidation
{thousands)
$5.00 107 $112.50
4.04 13 102.27
4.20 - 15 102.50
4.12 32 103.73
4.80 73 101.00
7.05 500 103.53(0
6.98 600 103.49(2
Flex MMP 12/02, Series A 1,250 100.00
Total 2,590

(1} Through 7/31/04; $103.18 commencing 8/1/04; amounts decline in steps
thereafter to $100.00.

{2)Through 8/31/04; $103.15 commencing 9/1/04; amounts decline in steps
thereafter to $100.00.




9. Company Obligated
Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred
Securities of Subsidiary Trusts

From 1997 through 2002, Dominion established five subsidiary
capital trusts, each as a finance subsidiary of the respective par-
ent company, which holds 100% of the voting interests. The capi-
tal trusts sold trust preferred securities representing preferred
beneficial interests and 97% beneficial ownership in the assets
held by the capital trusts. In exchange for the funds realized from
the sale of the trust preferred securities and common securities
that represent the remaining 3% beneficial ownership interest in

the assets held by the capital trusts, Dominion issued various
junior subordinated notes. The junior subordinated notes consti-
tute 100% of each capital trust’s assets. Each frust must redeem its
preferred securities when their respective junior subordinated
notes are repaid at maturity or if redeemed prior to maturity.
Under previous accounting guidance, Dominion consolidated
the trusts in the preparation of its Consolidated Financial State-
ments. In accordance with FIN 46R, Dominion does not consoli-
date the trusts as of December 31, 2003 and instead reports on
its Consolidated Balance Sheet the junior subordinated notes
issued by Dominian and held by the trusts as long-term debt.

The following table provides summary information about the junior subordinated notes outstanding as of December 31, 2003 and

the trust preferred securities outstanding as of December 31, 2002:

Trust
Preferred Common
Date Securities Securities
Established Capital Trusts Units Rate Amount Amount

[thousands) [millions)

December 1997 Dominion Resources Capital Trust 100 250 7.83% $ 250 $8
January 2001 Dominion Resources Capital Trust (12} 12,000 8.4% 300 9
January 2001 Dominion Resources Capital Trust Hi3} 250 8.4% 250 8
October 2001 Dominion CNG Capital Trust (4 8,000 7.8% 200 6
August 2002 Virginia Power Capital Trust 5] 16,000 7.375% 400 $12

1,400

Unamortized discount (3)

Total at December 31, 2002 $1,397

Junior subordinated netes/debentures held as assets by each capital trust were as follows:

(1) $258 million — Dominion Resources, Inc. 7.83% Debentures due 12/1/2027.
{2} $309 million —Dominion Resources, Inc. 8.4% Debentures due 1/30/204]1.
(3) $258 million —Dominion Resources, Inc. 8.4% Debentures due 1/15/2031,
(4)$206 million —CNG 78% Debentures due 10/31/2041.

{5) $412 million — Virginia Power 7.375% Debentures due 7/ 30/2042.

Distribution payments on the trust preferred securities are con-
sidered to be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the respec-
tive parent compeny that issued the debt instruments held by
each trust, when all of the related agreements are taken into con-
sideration. Each guarantee agreement only provides for the guar-
antee of distribution payments on the relevant trust preferred
securities to the extent that the trust has funds legally and immedi-
ately available to make distributions. The trust’s ability to pay
amounts when they are due on the trust preferred securities is
solely dependent upon the payment of amounts by Dominion,

Virginia Power or CNG when they are due on the junior subordi-
nated debt instruments. If the poyment on the junior subordinated
notes is deferred, the company that issued them may not make
distributions related to its capital stock, including dividends,
redemptions, repurchases, liquidation payments or guarantee
payments. Also, during the deferral period, it may not make any
payments or redeam or repurchase any debt securities that are
equal in right of payment with, or subordinated to, the junior
subordinated notes.
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20. Shareholders’ Equity

Issuvance of Common Stock

During 2003, Dominion issued 17 million shares of common
stock and received proceeds of $990 million. Of this amount,
11 million shares and proceeds of $683 million resulted from a
public offering. Net proceeds were used for general corporate
purposes, principally repayment of debt. The remainder of the
shares issued and proceeds received in 2003 occurred through
Dominion Direct® (a dividend reinvestment and open enrollment
direct stock purchase plan), employee savings plans and the
exercise of employee stock options.

Repurchases ef Commen Stock

Dominion is authorized by its Board of Directors to repurchase up
to $650 million of Dominion common stock outstanding. As of
December 31, 2003, Dominion had repurchased approximately
12 million shares for $537 million.

Shares Reserved for Issuance

At December 31, 2003, a total of 76 million shares was reserved
and available for issuance pursuant to Dominion Direct®, various
employee and director stock award and savings plans, stock pur-
chose contracts associoted with equity-linked debt securities and
Dominion’s Series A Mandatorily Convertible Preferred Stock. See
Notes 9 and 18 for a discussion of Dominion’s issuance of
665,000 shares of Series A Mandatorily Convertible Preferred
Stock, liquidation preference $1,000 per share to Piedmont Share
Trust, in connection with DFV.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Presented in the table below is a summary of accumulated other

comprehensive income by component:

At December 31, 2003 2002
(millions)

Net unrealized losses on derivatives— hedging activities $(768) ${356)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities 89 {72)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (14) {148)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 64 (&)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $(629) $(446)
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Stock-Based Awards

The following table provides a summary of changes in amounts
of Dominion stock options outstanding as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. Generally, the exer-
cise price of Dominion employee stock options equals the market
price of Dominion common stock on the date of grant.

Weighted- Weighted-
Stock average average
Options Exercise Price  Fair Value
{thousands)
Outstanding at
December 31, 2000 10,331 $4%.77
Exercisable at
December 31, 2000 6,967 $41.51
Granted — 20011
Exercise price < market price
on grant date 480 $33.2% $23.69
Exercise price = market price
on grant date 11,471 $61.20 $11.24
Exercise price > market price
on grant date 194 $62.27 $ 9.43
Exercised, cancelled
and forfeited (1,484) $41.23
Outstanding at
December 31, 2001 20,992 $52.90
Exercisable at
December 31, 2001 7,955 $42.68
Granted—2002 3,122 $62.28 $10.91
Exercised, cancelled
and forfeited {3,057) $44.54
Outstanding at
December 31, 2002 21,057 $55.49
Exercisable at
December 31, 2002 8,586 $47.95
Exercised, cancelled
and forfeited {2,513) $44.39
Outstanding at
December 31, 2003 18,544 $56.97
Exercisable at
December 31, 2003 11,604 $54.44

(1) In connection with the acquisition of Lovis Dreyfus, employee stock options of
Louis Dreyfus were converted into employee stock options of Dominion. Based
on the conversion formula, certain converted stock options had exercise prices
that either exceeded or were less than the market price of Dominion common
stock on the date of grant. The fair value of all converted stock options was
included in the purchase price of Louis Dreyfus.




There were no options granted in 2003. The fair value of the
options granted in 2002 and 2001 was estimated on the dates
of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions:

2002 2001
Expected dividend yield 4.17%  4.22%
Expected volatility 22.67% 22.19%
Risk free interest rate 4.38%  5.15%
Contractual life 10 years 10 years
Expected life 6 years 6 years

The following table provides certain information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2003:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-
average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining average average
Exercise Shares Contractual Exercise Shares Exercise
Price Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

{thcusands) (years) {thousands)

$ 0-$19.99 2 5.0 $19.10 2 $19.10
$20-$30.99 34 4.9 $24.33 34 $24.33
$31-$40.99 33 6.0 $39.25 . 33 $39.25
$41-$50.99 4,623 5.9 $43.35 4,363 $42.92
$51-560.99 9,273 5.1 $59.88 4,862 $59.87
$61-$69 4,579 7.4 $65.22 2,310 $65.49
Total 18,544 5.9 $56.97 11,604 $54.44

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, Dominion
granted approximately 402,000 shares, 14,000 shares, and

341,000 shares of restricted stock with weighted-average fair val-
ves of $56.08, $60.62 and $63.49.

21%. Dividend Restrictions

The 1935 Act and related regulations issued by the SEC impose
restrictions on the transfer and receipt of funds by a registered
holding company from its subsidiaries, including a general prohi-
bition against loans or advances being made by the subsidiaries
to benefit the registered holding company. Under the 1935 Act,
registered holding companies and their subsidiaries may pay div-
idends only from refained earnings, unless the SEC specifically
authorizes payments from other capital accounts. Dominion
received dividends from its subsidiaries of $1.1 billion, $945 mil-
lion and $806 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

At December 31, 2003, Dominion’s consolidated subsidiaries
had approximately $8.9 billion in capital accounts other than

refained earnings, representing capital stock, additional paid in
capital and accumulated other comprehensive income. Dominion
Resources, Inc. had approximately $9.5 billion in capital
accounts other than retained earnings at December 31, 2003.
Generally, such amounts are not available for the payment of div-
idends by affected subsidiaries, or by Dominion itself, without
specific authorization by the SEC.

in response to a Dominion request, the SEC granted relief in
2000, authorizing payment of dividends by CNG from other
capital accounts to Dominion in amounts up to $1.6 billion, repre-
senting CNG?s retcined earnings prior to Dominion’s acquisition
of CNG. Furthermore, Dominion submitted a similar request to
the SEC in 2002, seeking relief from this restriction in regard to
its subsidiary into which Louis Dreyfus was merged. The applica-
tion requests relief up to approximately $303 miliion, represent-
ing Louis Dreyfus’ retained earnings prior to Dominion’s
acquisition of Louis Dreyfus. Dominion’s ability to pay dividends
on its common stock ot declared rates was not impacted by the

restrictions discussed above during 2003, 2002 and 2001.
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The Virginia Commission may prohibit any public service
company, including Virginia Power, from declaring or paying a
dividend to an affiliate, if found not to be in the public interest. At
December 31, 2003, the Virginia Commission had not restricted
the payment of dividends by Virginia Power.

Certain agreements associated with Dominion’s credit facilities
contain restrictions on the ratio of debt to total capitalization.
These limitations did not restrict Dominion’s ability to pay divi-
dends or receive dividends from its subsidiaries at December 3],
2003.

See Note 19 for a description of potential restrictions on divi-
dend payments by Dominion and certain subsidiaries in connec-
tion with the deferral of distribution payments on trust preferred
securities.

22. Employee Benefit Plans

Dominion and its subsidiaries provide certain benéfits to eligible
active employees, retirees and qualifying dependents. Under the
terms of its benefit plans, Dominion and its subsidiaries reserve
the right to change, modify or terminate the plans. From time to
time in the past, benefits have changed, and some of these
changes have reduced benefits.

Dominion maintains qualified noncontributory defined benefit
pension plans covering virtually all employees. Retirement bene-
fits are based primarily on years of service, age and compensa-
tion. Dominion’s funding policy is to generclly contribute annually
an amount that is in accordance with the provisions of the
Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The pension
program also provides benefits to certain retired executives under
company-sponsored nonqualified employee benefit plans. Cer-
tain of these nonqualified plans are funded through contributions
o a grantor trust.

Dominion provides retiree health care and life insurance bene-
fits with annual premiums based on several factors such as age,
refirement date and years of service. On December 8, 2003, the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003 (the Act) was signed into law. The Act introduces a
prescription drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D) as
well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit
plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent
to Medicare Part D. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 104,
Employers’ Accounting for Posiretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions, presently enacted changes in relevant laws are
required to be considered in current period measurements of
postretirement benefit costs and the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation (APBO).
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In January 2004, the FASB issued Staff Position No. FAS
106-1, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related fo the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003, which allowed plan sponsors to elect to defer rec-
ognizing the effects of the Act. Dominion elected not to defer
recognition of the effects of the Act. Specific autheritative guid-
ance on the accounting for the federal subsidy is pending. When
issued, that guidance could require Dominion to change previ-
ously reported information.

Based on an analysis performed by a third party actuary,
Dominion has determined that the prescription drug benefit
offered under its other postretirement benefit plans is at least actu-
ariafly equivalent to Medicare Part D and therefore expects to
receive the federal subsidy offered under the Act. Dominion con-
sidered the passage of the Act a significant event requiring
remeasurement of its APBO on December 8, 2003. The impact of
remeasurement on the 2003 postretirement net periodic benefits
cost was not material. Dominion will amortize the unrecognized
actuarial gains associated with the benefits of the subsidy over
the average remaining service period of plan participants in
accordance with SFAS No. 106. This amortization will lower
future annual net postretirement benefits costs by approximately
$13 million beginning in 2004,

Deminion uses December 31 as its measurement date for virtu-
ally all of its employee benefit plans. Dominion uses a market-
related value of pension plan assets to determine the expected
return on pension plan assets, a component of net periodic pen-
sion cost. The market-related value recognizes changes in fair
value on a straight-line basis over a four-year period. Changes in
fair value are measured as the difference between the expected
and actual plan asset returns, including dividends, interest and
realized and unrealized investment gains and losses.




The following tables summarize the changes in Dominion’s pension and other postretirement benefit plan obligations and plan assets

and a statement of the plans’ funded status:

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2003 2002
{miltions}
Expected benefit obligation at beginning of year $2,801 $2,593 $1,119 $ 996
Other gain (2) - - -
Acquired businesses - i} - 3
Change in benefit obligation:
Actual beriefit obligation at beginning of year 2,799 2,594 1,119 999
Service cost 86 77 55 44
Interest cost 182 177 79 68
Benefits paid (158) {148) {60) (38)
Actuarial loss during the year 199 89 228 84
Actuarial gain related to Medicare Part D - - (70) -
Plan amendments 2 12 - (18)
Expected benefit obligation at end of year 3,110 2,807 1,351 1,119
Change in plan assets:
Fair valve of plan assets at beginning of year 3,074 3,352 443 446
Actual return on plan assets 627 {241) 89 (37}
Contributions 192 1% 87 690
Benefits paid from plan assets (159) {148) {32) {32)
Fair value of plan assefs at end of year 3,734 3,074 587 443
Funded status 624 273 (764) {67 6)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 1,244 1,374 392 308
Unrecognized prior service cost 18 4 4 4
Unrecognized net transition [assef] obligation - () 82 93
Prepaid {accrued) benefit cost $1,886 $1,660 $ (286) $(271)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31:
Prepaid pension cost $1,939 $1,710 - -
Accrued benefit liability (86) {84) (286) $(271)
Intangible asset 9 10 - -
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 24 24 - -
Net amount recognized $1,886 $1,660 $ (286) $(271)

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pen-
sion plans was $2.7 billion and $2.4 billion at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. Under its funding policies, Domin-
ion evaluates plan funding requirements annually, usually in the
third quarter after receiving updated plan information from its
actuary. Bosed on the funded status of each plan and other fac-
tors, the amount of contributions, if any, is determined at that time.

Dominion has nonqualified pension and supplemental pen-
sion plans that do not have “plan assets” as defined by generally
accepted accounting principles. The total projected benefit oblig-
ation for these plans was $99 million and $97 million of Decem-
ber 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and is included in the table
above. The total accumulated benefit obligation for these plans
was $90 million and $88 million at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The additional minimum liability recognized
relating to these plans was $34 million at December 31, 2003
and 2002.
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Dominion’s overall objective for investing its pension and other
postretirement plan assets is to achieve the best possible long-
term rates of return commensurate with prudent levels of risk. To
minimize risk, funds are broadly diversified among asset classes,
investment strategies and investment advisors. The strategic target
asset allocation for Dominion’s pensicn fund is 45% U.S. equity

securities; 8% non-U.S. equity securities; 22% debt securities;
and 25% other, such as real estate and private equity invest-
ments. Financial derivatives may be used to obtain or manage
market exposures and to hedge assets and liabilities. Dominion’s
pension plans and other postretirement plans asset allocations at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 are os follows:

Pension Plans

Other Postretirement Plans

Year ended December 31, 2003 2002 2003 2002

Fair % of Fair % of Fair % of Fair % of

Value Total Value Total Value Total Value Total
{millions)
Equity securities:
Us. $1,658 44 $1,156 38 $251 43 $174 39
Infernational 407 11 264 8 62 11 43 10
Debt securities 859 23 893 29 205 35 170 38
Real estate 264 7 242 8 14 2 12 3
Other 546 15 519 17 55 9 44 10
Total $3,734 100 33,074 100 $587 100 3443 186G
The components of the provision for net periodic benefit cost were as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
{millions)
Service cost $ 86 $ 77 $ 71 $ 55 344 $ 40
Interest cost 182 177 173 79 68 63
Expected return on plan assets (332) (349) (331} (33) (38) (32)
Amortization of prior service cost 2 1 2 1 (1)
Amortization of transition obligation (2) 4) (4) 9 11 10
Amortization of net loss 20 2 3 20 5
Settlement loss 7
Special termination benefits 15
Curtailment loss . 2
Net periodic benefit cost (credi) $ (44) $ (96) $ (62) $130 $95 $ 80

Significant assumptions used in determining the net periodic cost recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income were as

follows, on o weighted-average basis:

Pension Benefits

Other Postretirement Benefits

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 7.50% 6.75% 7.25% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets 8.75% 9.50% 9.50% 7.78% 7.82% 7.88%
Rate of increase for compensation 4.70% 4.60% 5.00% 4.70% 2.60% 5.00%
Medical cost trend rate 9.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Decreasing to
4.75% in 2007
and years
thereafter

Significant assumptions used in determining the projected pension benefit and postretirement benefit obligations recognized in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows, on a weighted-average basis:

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount rate 6.25% 6.75% 6.25% 6.75%
Rate of increase for compensation 4,70% 4.70% 4.70% 2.70%
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Dominion determines the expected long-term rates of return on
plan assets for pension plans and other postretirement benefit
plans by using @ combination of:
¢ Historical return analysis to defermine expected future risk
premiums;

* Forward looking refurn expectations derived from the yield on
long-ferm bonds and the price earnings ratios of major stock mar-
ket indices;

* Expected inflation and risk-free inferest rate assumptions; and
* The types of investments expected to be held by the plans.

Assisted by an independent actuary, management develops
assumptions, which are then compared to the forecasts of other
independent investment advisors to ensure reasonableness. An
internal committee selects the final assumptions.

Discount rates are determined from analyses performed by a
third party actuarial firm of AA/Aa rated bonds with cash flows
matching the expected payments to be made under Dominion’s
plans.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect
on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percent-
age-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would
have the following effects:

Cther Postrefirement Benefits

One One
percentage  percentage
point point
increase decrease
{millions)
Effect on total service and interest cost
components for 2003 $ 22 $ (18)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation
at December 31, 2003 $182 $(148)

In addition, Dominion sponsors defined contribution thrift-type
savings plans. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, Dominion recog-
nized $27 million, $26 million and $27 million, respectively, as
contributions to these plans.

Certain regulatory authorities have held that amounts recov-
ered in utility customers’ rates for other postretirement benefits,
in excess of benefits actually paid during the year, must be
deposited in trust funds dedicated for the sole purpose of paying
such benefits. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries fund postretirement
benefit costs through Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Associa-
tions. The remaining subsidiaries do not prefund postretirement
benefit costs but instead pay claims as presented.

23. Commitments and
Contingencies

As the result of issues generated in the ordinary course of busi-
ness, Dominion and its subsidiaries are involved in legal, tax and
regulatory proceedings before various courts, regulatory commis-
sions and governmental agencies, some of which involve sub-
stantial amounts of money. Management believes that the final
disposition of these proceedings will not have a material effect
on its financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

Long-Term Purchase Contracts

Presented below is a summary of Dominions commitments as of
December 31, 2003 under long-term term, fixed quantity, fixed
price purchase contracts:

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total

{millions)
Purchased
electric
capacityt
Production
handling for
gas and oil
production
operations a4 59 58 53 36 43 293

$589 $584 $571 $547 $516 $4,176 $6,983

(1) Reflects Dominion’s minimum commitments to purchase capacity from other
utilities, qualifying facilities and independent power producers under confracts
for electric generation. At December 31, 2003, the present value of the total
commitment is $4.2 billion. Capacity payments under these contracts totaled
$611 million, $661 million and $668 million for 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively.

In 2003, Dominion paid $154 million for the purchase of a
generating facility and the termination of two long-term power
purchase contracts with non-utility generators. Dominion recorded
the generating facility at its estimated fair value of $49 million
and recorded an aftertax charge of $65 million for the termina-
tion of the power purchase contracts. In 2001, Dominion com-
pleted the purchase of three generating facilities and the
termination of seven long-term power purchase contracts with
non-utility generators. Dominion paid $207 million for the gener-
ating facilities and these contracts and recorded an after-tax
charge of $136 million. The allocation of the purchase price
was assigned to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon
estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition.
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Lease Commitments

Dominion leases various facifities, vehicles, and equipment under
both operating and capital leases. Future minimum lease pay-
ments under noncancellable operating and capital leases that
have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year as of
December 31, 2003 are as follows (in millions):

Total
$57 $282

2004 Thereafter

$70

2005
$55

2006
$40

2007
$34

2008
$26

Rental expense included in other operations and maintenance
expense was $95 million, $84 million and $75 million for 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively. Beginning in 2004, approximately
$25 miltion will be recognized annually as inferest expense associ-
ated with the debt obligations of newly consolidated VIEs resulting
from the adoption of FIN 46R.

As of December 31, 2003, Dominion was party to an agree-
ment with a voting inferest entity (lessor) in order to construct and
lease @ new power generation project in Pennsylvania. Project
costs totaled $695 million at December 31, 2003 of which $624
million was advanced to the lessor by Dominion. This project is
expected fo be completed in 2004 and will result in estimated
annual lease commitments of approximately $58 million. A lease
agreement has not yet been executed for this project, however,
Dominion expects that, once executed, it will qualify as an oper-
oting lease.

Dominion has been appointed to act as the construction agent
for the lessor and controls the design and construction of the focil-
ity. Dominion, in this role, is responsible for completing construc-
tion by a specified date. in the event a project is terminated
before completion, Dominion has the option to either purchase
the project for 100% of project costs plus fees or terminate the
project and turn the project over to the lessor.

Envirenmenta! Matters

Dominion is subject to costs resulting from a steadily increasing
number of federal, state and local laws and regulations designed
to profect human health and the environment. These laws and
regulations can result in increased capital, operating and other
costs as a result of compliance, remediation, containment and
monitoring obligations.

Historically, Dominion recovered such costs arising from regu-
lated electric operations through utility rates. However, to the
extent environmental costs are incurred in connection with opera-
tions regulated by the Virginia State Corporation Commission
during the period ending June 30, 2007, in excess of the level
currently included in Virginia jurisdictional rates, Pominion’s
results of operations will decrease. After that date, Dominion may
seek recovery through rates of only those environmental costs
related to transmission and distribution operations.
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Superfund Sites From time to time, Dominion may be identi-
fied as a potentially responsible party to a Superfund site. The
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA){or a state) can either
{a) allow such a party to conduct and pay for a remedial investi-
gation, feasibility study and remedial action or (b) conduct the
remedial investigation and action and then seek reimbursement
from the parties. Each party can be held jointly, severally and
strictly liable for all costs. These parties can also bring contribu-
tion actions against each other and seek reimbursement from
their insurance companies. As a result, Dominion may be re;pon-
sible for the costs of remedial investigation and actions under the
Superfund Act or other laws or regulotions regarding the remedi-
ation of waste. Dominion does not believe that any currently
identified sites will result in significant liabilities.

In 1987, the EPA identified Dominion and a number of other
entities as Potentially Responsible Parties (PRPs) at two Superfund
sites located in Kentucky and Pennsylvania. On October 6,
2003, the EPA issued its Certificate of Completion of remediation
for the Kentucky site. Future costs for the Kentucky site will be lim-
ited to minor operations and maintenance expenditures. Remedi-
ation design is ongoing for the Pennsylvania site, and total
remediation costs are expected to be in the range of $13 million
to $25 million. Based on allocation formulas and the volume of
waste shipped to the site, Dominion has accrued a reserve of
$2 million to meet its obligations at these two sites. Based on a
financial assessment of the PRPs involved at these sites, Dominion
has determined that it is probable that the PRPs will fully pay their
share of the costs. Dominion generally seeks to recover its costs
ossociated with environmental remediation from third party insur-
ers. At December 31, 2003, any pending or possible claims were
not recognized as an asset or offset against such obligations.

Other EPA Matters In relation to a Notice of Violation
received by Virginia Power in 2000 from the EPA and related
proceedings, Virginia Power, the U.S. Department of Justice, the
EPA, and the states of Virginia, West Virginia, Connecticut, New
Jersey and New York agreed to o setflement in April 2003 in the
form of @ proposed Consent Decree. The Virginia federal district
court entered the final Consent Decree in October 2003, resolv-
ing the underlying actions. Under the settlement, Virginia Power
paid a $5 million civil penalty, agreed to fund $14 million for
environmental projects and committed to improve air quality
under the Consent Decree estimated to involve expenditures of
$1.2 billion. Dominion has already incurred certain capital
expenditures for environmental improvements at its coalired sta-
tions in Virginia and West Virginia and has committed to addi-
tional measures in its currentfinancial plans and capital budget
to satisfy the requirements of the Consent Decree. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2003, Dominion had recognized a provision for the fund-
ing of the environmental projects, substantially all of which was

recorded in 2000.




Other Before being acquired by Dominion, Louis Dreyfus
was one of numerous defendents in a lowsuit consolidated and
pending in the 93rd Judicial District Court in Hildalgo County,
Texas. The lawsuit alleges that gas wells and related pipeline
facilities operated by Louis Dreyfus and facilities operated by
other defendants caused an underground hydrocarbon plume in
McAllen, Texas. The plaintiffs claim that they have suffered dam.-
ages, including property damage and lost profits, as a result of
the alleged plume. Although the results of litigation are inherently
unpredictable, Dominion does not expect the ultimate outcome of
the case to have o material adverse impact on its results of opera-
tions, cash flows or financial position.

Dominion has determined that it is associated with 20 former
manufactured gas plant sites. Studies conducted by other utilities
at their former manufactured gas plants have indicated that their
sites contain coal tar and other potentially harmful materials.
None of the 20 former sites with which Dominion is associated is
under investigation by any state or federal environmental agency,
and no investigation or action is currently anticipated. At this
time, it is not known to what degree these sites may contoin envi-
ronmental contamination. Dominion is not able to estimate the
cost, if any, that may be required for the possible remediation of
these sites.

Nuclear Operations

Nuclear Decommissioning — Minimum Financial Assurance

The NRC requires nuclear power plant owners to annually
update minimum financial assurance amounts for the future
decommissioning of its nuclear facilities. Dominion’s 2003 NRC
minimum financial assurance amount, aggregated for the nuclear
units, was $2.5 billion ond has been satisfied by a combination
of surety bonds and the funds being collected and deposited in
the trusts. Dominion executed a guarantee, effective March 31,
2003, to replace the surety bonds.

Nuclear Insurance The Price-Anderson Act provides the
public up to $10.9 billion of protection per nuclear incident via
obligations required of owners of nuclear power plants. The
Price-Anderson Act Amendment of 1988 allows for an inflation-
ary provision adjustment every five years. Dominion has pur-
chased $300 million of coverage from the commercial insurance
pools with the remainder provided through a mandatory industry
risk-sharing program. In the event of a nuclear incident at any
licensed nuclear reactor in the United States, Dominion could be
assessed up to $100.6 million for each of its seven licensed
reactors not to exceed $10 million per year per reactor. There is
no limit to the number of incidents for which this retrospective
premium can be ossessed.

The Price-Andarson Act was first enacted in 1957 and has
been renewed three times—in 1967, 1975 and 1998. The Price-
Anderson Act expired on August 31, 2002, but operating nuclear
reactors continue to be covered by the law. Congress is currently
holding hearings to reauthorize the legislation. The expiration of

the Price-Anderson Act has no impact on existing nuclear license
holders.

Dominion’s current level of property insurance coverage
{$2.55 billion for North Anna, $2.55 billion for Surry, and $2.75
for Millstone) exczeds the NRC's minimum requirement for
nuclear power plant licensees of $1.06 billion per reactor site and
includes coverage for premature decommissioning and functional
total loss. The NRC requires that the proceeds from this insurance
be used first to return the reactor to and maintain it in a safe and
stable condition and second to decontaminate the reactor and
station site in accordance with a plon approved by the NRC.
Dominion’s nuclear property insurance is provided by the
Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited {NEIL), a mutual insurance
company, and is subject to retrospective premium assessments in
any policy year in which losses exceed the funds available to the
insurance company. The maximum assessment for the current pol-
icy period is $72 million. Based on the severity of the incident,
the board of directors of Dominion’s nuclear insurer has the dis-
cretion to lower or eliminate the maximum refrospective premium
assessment. Dominion has the financial responsibility for any
losses that exceed the limits or for which insurance proceeds are
not availoble because they must first be used for stabilizetion and
decontamination.

Dominion purchases insurance from NEIL to cover the cost of
replacement power during the prolonged outage of a nuclear unit
due to direct physical damage of the unit. Under this program,
Dominion is subject to a retrospective premium assessment for
any policy year in which losses exceed funds available to NEIL.
The current policy period’s maximum assessment is $29 million.

Old Dominion Electric Cooperative, a part owner of North
Anna Power Station, and Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale
Electric Company and Central Vermont Public Service Corpora-
tion, part owners of Millstone’s Unit 3, are responsible for their
share of the nuclear decommissioning obligation and insurance
premiums on apglicable units, including any retrospective pre-
mium assessments and any losses not covered by insurance.

Spent Nuclear Fuel Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste
Policy Act of 1982, Dominion has entered into contracts with the
Department of Energy (DOE) for the disposal of spent nuclear
fuel. The DOE failed to begin accepting the spent fuel on January
31, 1998, the date provided by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act and
by Dominion’s contracts with the DOE. In January 2004, Domin-
ion and certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries filed law-
suits in the United States Court of Federal Claims against the
DOE in connection with its failure to commence accepting spent
nuclear fuel. Dominion will continue fo safely manage its spent
fuel until it is accepted by the DOE.

Litigation

Virginia Power and DTl are defendants in a class action lawsuit
pending in the U.S. District Court in Richmond, Virginia. The
plaintiffs claim that Virginia Power and DTl strung fiber-optic
cable across their land, along a Virginia Power electric
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transmission corridor without paying compensation. The plaintiffs
are seeking damages for trespass and “unjust enrichment,” as
well as punitive damages from the defendants. The outcome of
the proceeding, including an estimate as to any potential loss,
cannot be predicted at this fime.

Enron Bankrupicy

Based on managements evaluation of the estimated collectibility
of amounts due from Enron Corp. and certain of its subsidiaries
{Enron) and the valuation of Enron-related commodity contracts,
Dominion recorded @ pre-tax charge to earnings of approxi-
mately $151 million in the fourth quarter of 2001. This charge was
comprised of approximately $9 million for net credit exposure on
past energy sales to Enron for which payment had not been
received and approximately $142 million related to the impaired
fair value of natural gas forward and swap contracts with Enron.
Management continues to believe that this charge substantially
eliminates any further Enron-related earnings exposure.

During 2002, Dominion terminated all outstanding and open
positions with Enron. Dominion has submitted a claim in the
Enron bankruptcy case for the value of such contracts, measured
at the effective dates of contract termination. Various contingen-
cies, including developments in the Enron bankruptcy proceed-
ings, may affect Dominion’s ultimate exposure to Enron.

Guarantees, Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds
Beginning in 2003, the issuance of certain types of guarantees
requires the recognition of a liability based on the fair value of
the guarantee issued, even when the likelihood of making pay-
ments is remote. Furthermore, any performance required by
Dominion under such guarantees would result in the recognition
of edditional liabilities in Dominion’s Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As of December 31, 2003, Dominion has guaranteed $57 mil-
lion related to officers’ borrowings under executive stock loan
programs, for which individua! officers are personally liable for
repayment. Substantially all of this guarantee is scheduled to
expire in 2005, Because of new restrictions on corporate loans
or guarantees under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Dominion
has ceased its program of new third party lcans to executives for
the purpose of acquiring company stock.

As of December 31, 2003, Dominion and its subsidiaries had
issued $6.8 billion of guarantees, including: $3.0 billion to sup-
port commodity transactions of subsidiaries; $2.0 billion for
subsidiary debt; $626 million related to a subsidiary leasing
cbligation for a new power generation project, and $1.2 billion
for guarantees supporting other agreements of subsidiaries.
Dominion had also purchased $133 million of surety bonds and
authorized the issuance of standby letters of credit by financial
institutions of $933 million. Dominion enters into these arrange-
ments to facilitate commercicl fransactions by its subsidiaries with
third parties. While the majority of these guarantees do not have
a fermination date, Dominion may choose at any time to limit the
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applicability of such guarantees to future transactions. To the
extent a liability subject fo a guarantee has been incurred by a
consolidated subsidiary, that liability is included in Dominion’s
Consolidated Financial Statements. Dominion is not required to
recognize liabilities for guarantees on behalf of its subsidiaries in
the Consolidated Financial Statements, unless performance is
considered probable. No such liabilities have been recognized
as of December 31, 2003. Dominion believes it is unlikely that it
would be required to perform or otherwise incur any losses
associated with guarantees of its subsidiaries’ obligations.

Indemnifications

As part of commercial contract negotiations in the normal course
of business, Dominion may sometimes agree to make payments
to compensate or indemnify other parties for possible future unfo-
vorable financial consequences resulting from specified events.
The specified events may involve an adverse judgment in a law-
suit or the imposition of additional taxes due to a change in tax
law or interprefation of the tax law. Dominion is unable to
develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of future
payments under these conlracts because events that would oblig-
ate Dominion have not yet occurred or, if any such event has
occurred, Dominion has not been notified of its occurrence.
However, at December 31, 2003, management believes future
payments, if any, that could ultimotely become payable under
these contract provisions, would not have a material impact on its
results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Stranded Costs

In 1999, Virginia enacted the Virginia Electric Utility Restructuring
Act (the Virginia Restructuring Act) that established o detailed
plan to restructure Virginia's electric utility industry. Under the Vir-
ginia Restructuring Act, the generation portion of Dominion’s Vir-
ginia jurisdictional operations is no longer subject to cost-based
regulation. The legislation’s deregulation of generation was

an event that required the discontinuance of SFAS No. 71 for
Dominion’s generation operations in 1999. Dominion’s base rates
(excluding fuel costs and certain other allowable adjustments)
will remain capped until July 2007, unless terminated sconer or
otherwise modified consistent with the Virginia Restructuring Act.
Under the Virginia Restructuring Act, Dominion may request a ter-
mination of the capped rates at any time after January 1, 2004,
and the Virginia State Corporation Commission may grant
Dominion’s request to terminate the capped rates, if it finds that a
competitive generation services market exists in Dominion’s ser-
vice area. Dominion believes capped electric retail rates and,
where applicable, wires charges provided under the Virginia
Restructuring Act provide an opportunity to recover a portion of
its potentially stranded costs, depending on market prices of elec-
tricity and other factors. Stranded costs are those costs incurred
or commitments made by utilities under cost-based regulation that
may not be reasonably expected to be recovered in a competi-
five market.




Even in the capped rate environment, Dominion remains
exposed to numerous risks, including, among others, exposure
to potentially stranded costs, future environmental compliance
requirements, changes in tax laws, inflation and increased
capital costs. At December 31, 2003, Dominion’s exposure to
potentially stranded costs included: long-term power purchase
contracts that could ultimately be determined to be above market;
generating plants that could possibly become uneconomic in a
deregulated environment; and unfunded obligations for nuclear
plant decommissiening and postretirement benefits not yet
recognized in the financial statements.

24, Fair Value of Financial
Iinstruments

Substantially all of Dominions financial instruments are recorded
at fair value, with the exception of the instruments described
below that are reported at historical cost. Fair values have been
determined using ovailable market information and valuation
methodologies considered appropriate by management. The
financial instruments’ carrying amounts and fair values as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003 2002
Estimated Estimated
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Valve Amount Value
{millions}
Long-term debtll $15,588 $16,514 $14,185 £14,950
Junior subordinated
notes payable to
offiliated trustsl?! 1,440 1,608 -_ -
Preferred securities of
subsidiary trusts!?! - - 1,3%7 1,441

(1) Fair value is estimated using market prices, where available, and interest rates
currently available for issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining
maturities. The carrying amount of debt issues with short-term maturities and
varioble rates refinanced at current market rates is a reasonable estimate of
their fair valve.

(2) Fair value is based or market quotations.

25. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Dominion if counterpar-
ties fail to perform their contractual obligations. In order to mini-
mize overall credit risk, Dominion maintains credit policies,
including the evaluation of counterparty financial condition, col-
lateral requirements and the use of standardized agreements that
facilitate the nefting of cash flows associated with @ single coun-
terparty. In addition, counterparties make available collateral,
including lefters of credit or cash held as margin deposits, as a
result of exceeding agreed-upon credit limits, or may be required
to prepay the tronsaction. Amounts reporred as margin deposit
liabilities represent funds held by Dominion that resulted from var-
ious trading counterparties exceeding agreed-upon credit limits

established by Deminion. Amounts reported as margin deposit
assets represent funds held on deposit by various trading counter-
parties that resulted from Dominion exceeding agreed-upon
credit limits established by the counterparties, As of December
31, 2003 and 2002, Dominion had margin deposit assets of
$157 million and $149 million, respectively, and margin deposit
liabilities {reported in other current liabilities} of $12 million and
$22 million, respectively.

Dominion maintains a provision for credit losses based on fac-
tors surrounding the credit risk of its customers, historical trends
and other information. Management believes, based on Domin-
ion’s credit policies and its December 31, 2003 provision for
credit losses, that it is unlikely that a material adverse effect on its
financial position, results of operations or cash flows would occur
as a result of counterparty nonperformance.

As a diversified energy company, Dominion transacts with
major companies in the energy industry and with commercial
and residential energy consumers. These transactions principally
occur in the Northeast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic regions of the
United States; however, management does not believe that this
geographic conceriration contributes significantly to Dominion’s
overall exposure to credit risk. In addition, as a result of its large
and diverse customer base, Dominion is not exposed to a signifi-
cant concentration of credit risk for receivables arising from utility
electric and gas operations, including transmission services, and
refail energy sales.

Dominion’s exposure to credit risk is concentrated primarily
within its sales of gas and oil production and energy trading,
marketing and commodity hedging activities, as Dominion trans-
acts with a smaller, less diverse group of counterparties and
transactions may involve large notional volumes and potentially
volatile commodity prices. Energy trading, marketing and hedg-
ing activities include proprietary trading activities, marketing of
merchant generation output, structured transactions and the use
of financial contracts for enterprise-wide hedging purposes. At
December 31, 2003, gross credit exposure related to these trans-
actions totaled $879 million, reflecting the unrealized gains for
contracts carried at fair value plus any outstanding receivables
{net of payables, where netting agreements exist), prior to the
opplication of collateral. After the application of collateral,
Dominion’ credit exposure is reduced to $865 million. Of this
amount, investment grade counterparties represent 82% and no
single counterparty exceeded 9%.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

26. Equity Method Investments and
Affiliated Transactions

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, Dominion’s equity method
investments totaled $437 million and $503 million, respectively,
and.equity earnings on these investments totaled $25 million in
2003, $11 million in 2002 and $36 million in 2001. Dominion’s
equity method investments are reported on the Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheets in other investments. The amounts reported for 2002
include Dominion’s investment in DFV, which, as discussed in
Note 9, Dominion began consolidating in 2003. See Note 27
for discussion of DCIs equity method investments.

Internationea! Investments

CNG International {CNGI) was engaged in energy-related activi-
ties outside of the United States, primarily through equity invest-
ments in Australia and Argentina. After completing the CNG
acquisition, Dominion’s management committed to a plan to dis-
pose of the entire CNG! operation consistent with its strategy to
focus on its core business. These assets are classified as part of
assets held for sale in other current assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2002, the CNGI assets
included investments in property, plant and equipment tofaling
$55 million and equity method investments totaling $83 million.
During 2003, Dominion recognized impairment losses totaling
$84 million {$69 million aftertax) related primarily to investments
in a pipeline business located in Australia and a small generation
facility in Kauai, Hawaii that was sold in December 2003 for
cash proceeds of $42 million. These impairment losses repre-
sented adjustments to the assets’ carrying amounts to reflect
Dominion’s current evaluation of fair market value less estimated
costs to sell, which were derived from a combination of actual
2003 transactions, management estimates, and other fair market
value indicators. Dominion expects to complete the sale of the
remaining assets by December 31, 2004.

27. Dominion Capital, Inc. (DCI)

As of December 31, 2003, Dominion has substantially exited the
core DCl financial services, commercial lending and residential
mortgage lending businesses.

Securitizations of Financial Assets

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, DCl held $413 million and
$470 million, respectively, of retained interests from the securiti-
zation of financial assets, which are classified as available-for-
sale securities. The retained interests resulted from prior year
securitizations of commercial loans receivable in collateralized
loan obligation (CLO), collateralized debt obligation {CDO) and
collaterclized morigage obligation [CMO) fransactions.
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In connection with Dominion’s ongoing efforts to divest its
remaining financial services investments, Dominion executed cer-
tain agreements in the fourth quarter of 2003 that resulted in the
sale of commercial finance receivables, a note receivable, an
undivided interest in a lease and equity investments fo a new

CDO structure. In exchange for the sale of these assets with an

aggregate carrying amount of $123 million, Dominion received
$113 million cash and a $7 million 3% subordinated secured
note in the new CDO structure and recorded an impairment
charge of $3 million. The equity interests in the new CDO struc-
fure, a voting interest entity, are held by an entity that is not affili-
ated with Dominion.

Simultaneous with the above transaction, the new CDQO struc-
ture acquired all of the loans held by two special purpose trusts
that were established in 2001 and 2000 to facilitate DCI’s securi-
tization of certain loan receivables. DCl’s original transfers of the
loans to the CLO trusts qualified as sales under SFAS No. 125,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities. Only after receiving consents from
non-affiliated third parties, the CLO trusts’ governing agreements
were amended to permit the sale of their financial assets into the
new CDO structure in 2003. in consideration for the sale of loans
to the new CDO structure, the trusts received $243 million of sub-
ordinated secured 3% notes in the new CDO structure and

$119 million in cash, which was used by the CLO trusts to redeem ‘

all of their outstanding senior debt securities. As of December 31,
2003, Dominion still held residual interests in the CLO trusts, the
value of which depended solely on the subordinated 3% notes
issued by the new CDO. In connection with its assessment of
revised cash flows expected to be received in relation to the
residual CLO interests, Dominion performed an impairment
analysis based on EfTF Issue No. 99-20, Recognition of Interest
fncome and Impairment of Purchased and Retained Beneficial
Inferests in Secured Financial Assets (EITF 99-20), and recorded
an impairment charge of $15 million. Dominion also expensed
$19 million of deferred transaction and related costs that had
been incurred in the original CLO securitization transactions.
Both CLO trusts were liquidated in early 2004 and Dominion’s
CLO residual interests were exchanged at that time for the afore-
mentioned $243 million subordinated secured 3% notes. Domin-
jon is obligated under the new CDO agreements to fund up to
$55 million through 2007 for certain outstanding revolving loan
commitments transferred to the new CDO structure and to pro-
vide a liquidity facility to the new CDO structure of up to $30 mil-
lion. Both Dominion facilities are senior in right of payment to
existing subordinated notes and equity interests in the new

CDO structure.



There were no mortgage securitizations in 2002 or 2003.
Activity for the retained interests from securitizations of CMO,
CLO and CDO retained interests is summarized as follows:

Retained

Interests—

CMO CLO/CDO

{millions)

Balance at January 1,.2002 $269 $283
Amortization (5 -
Cash received (45) (2)
Loss on securities {19} _—
Fair valve adjustment {17) -
Balance at December 31, 2002 189 287
Retained securitization - 7
Amortization (2) -
Cash received (10) (1)
Fair value adjustment (36) (15)
Balance at December 31, 2003 $141 $272

Key Economic Assumptions and Sensitivity Analyses
Retained inferests in CLOs and CDOs are subject to credit loss
and interest rate risk. Retained interests in CMOs are subject to
credit loss, prepayment and interest rate risk. Given the declining
residual balances and the lower weighted-average lives due to
the passage of time, adverse changes of up to 20% in assumed
prepayment speeds, credit losses and inferest rates are estimated
in each case to have less than a $10 million pre-tax impact on
future results of operations.

Impeirment Losses

The table below presents a summary of asset impairment losses
associated with DCl operations. All impairments recorded by the
financial services subsidiary are reported as cther operations
and maintenance expense.

2003 2002 2001

{miliions)
Retained interests from CMO securitizations $ 36 $11 § 21

Retained interests from CLO/CDO

securitizations 15 — 81
Fourth quarter CDO iransaction 23 - -
Venture capital and ather equity investments 16 - 64
Deferred tax assets 26 - -
Goodwill impairment 18 13 —
Loans receivable - - 94
Real-estate projects and other — - 21
Total $134  $24 $281

2003

On a quarterly basis, Dominion assesses for impairment its
retained interests from CMO securitizations using the guidance
contained in EITF 99-20. As a result of economic conditions and
historically low interest rates and the resulting impact on credit
losses and prepayment speeds, Dominion recorded impairments
totaling $36 million throughout 2003. Given the expected stabi-
lization of credit lasses and prepayment speeds in 2004 and
beyond, Dominion’s remaining projected credit loss and prepay-
ment experience is expected fo track closely with the current
assumptions, which were derived from actual 1996-2001 Saxon
Mortgage, Inc. loss and prepayment experience.

Other assets acquired through foreclosures were determined
to be impaired based on offers received. The fourth quarter
impairment associated with the retained interests from CLO secu-
ritizations and the fourth quarter CDO transaction are discussed
above. See Note 7 for discussion of deferred tax assets and
Note 13 for discussion of goodwill impairments.

2002 and 2001

In 2002, Dominion recognized an $11 million impairment on
refained interests in CMO securitizations to reflect revised pre-
payment speed assumptions as part of routine quarterly reviews.
In addition, a DC| subsidiary received an unfavorable arbitration
ruling that offected its ability to recover disputed amounts for past
and future perforrance under a contract with a major customer.
See Note 13 for discussion of goodwill impairments.

In 2001, DCI recognized impairment losses of $281 million on
various investments at DCI. In light of actual loan loss experience
and actual prepayment activity of certain mortgage and commer-
cial loans in the securitization trusts, Dominion increased its loan
loss and prepayment speed assumptions used to estimate the fair
value of its retained interests in mortgage, CLO and CDO securitiza-
tions. The other impairments and loss provisions reflected Domin-
jon's estimate of net realizable values of loans and other investments
associated with the dramatically weakened economy and increas-
ing instances of bankruptcies, defaults and maijor restructurings that
significantly diminished investment values. Dominion’s valuation
methodologies and assumptions varied by investment and included
cash flow analysis, signed contracts, independent third-party
appraisals and, ir certain cases, liquidation value.
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Remaining DCI Assets

Dominion is required by the SEC under the 1935 Act to divest of
all remaining DCl investment holdings by December 31, 2006.
Dominion’s Consolidated Balance Sheet reflects the following DCI
assets as of December 31, 2003:

{millions)

Current assets $ 38
Available for sale securities 413
Other long-term investments 122
Property, plant and equipment, net 26
Deferred charges and other assets 69
Total $668

28. Operating Segments

As a result of changes in the management reporting structure dur-
ing the fourth quarter of 2003, the nature and composition of
Dominion’s primary operating segments have changed, as follows:
» Dominion’ electric generation operations, formerly in the
Dominion Energy segment, have been presented as a separate
segment, Dominion Generation;

* Dominion retail energy marketing operations, formerly in the
Dominion Energy segment, have been included in the Dominion
Delivery segment and

* DFV and related discontinued operations, formerly in the
Dominion Delivery segment, have been included in the Corporate
and Other segment.

All segment information for prior years has been recast to
conform to the new segment structure. Dominion segments are
as follows:

Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of
Dominion’ electric utility and merchant fleet.

Dominion Energy includes Dominion’s electric transmission,
natural gas fransmission pipeline and storage businesses, certain
natural gas production, as well as Clearinghouse {energy frading
and marketing} and field services (aggregation of gas supply and
related wholesale activities) operations.

Dominion Delivery includes Dominion’s electric and gas dis-
tribution systems and customer service operations, as well as
retail energy marketing operations.
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Dominion Exploration & Preduction includes Dominion’s gas
and oil exploration, development and production operations.
Operations are located in several major producing basins in the
lower 48 states, including the outer continental sheif and deep-
water areas of the Gulf of Mexico, and Western Canada.

Corporate and Other includes the operations of DCI, DFV
and related telecommunications operations, and Dominion’s cor-
porate, service company and other operations {including unallo-
cated debt). In addition, the contribution to net income by
Dominion’s primary operating segments is determined based
upon a measure of profit that executive management believes
represents the segments’ “core” earnings. As a result, certain spe-
cific items attributable to those segments are not included in profit
measures evaluated by executive management in assessing the
segments’ performance or allocating resources among the seg-
ments. Those specific items are reported in the Corporate and
Other segment and include:

* 2003 cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles;
* 2003 incremental restoration expenses associated with
Hurricane Isabel;

¢ 2003 charges for the termination of a power purchase
contract and restructuring of certain electric sales contracts;

* 2003 severance costs for workforce reductions;

o 2001 restructuring activities;

* 2001 chorge for credit exposure associated with the
bankruptcy of Enron

* 2001 charge related to the termination of certain long-term
power purchase contracts.

Intersegment sales and transfers are based on underlying
contractual arrangements and agreements and may result in
intersegment profit or loss.




The following table presents segment information pertaining to Dominion’s operations:

Dominion Dominion Dominion Dominion Corporate Adjustments & Consolidated
Generation Energy Delivery E&P  and Other Eliminations Total
{millions)
2003
Total revenue from exiernal customers $4,217 $2,128 $3,287 $1,841 $ 149 $ 456 $12,078
Intersegment revenue 293 493 61 150 . 591 {1,588) —
Total operating revenue 4,510 2,621 3,348 1,991 740 (1,132) 12,078
Interest and related charges 239 64 17 82 656 (237) 975
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 229 104 302 532 49 - 1,216
Equity in earnings of squity method investees 14 11 - 6 (6) - 25
Income tax expense (benefit) 310 225 236 220 (394) - 597
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — - - - (642) - (642)
Net income 508 350 453 415 (1,408) —_ 318
Investment in equity method investees 155 96 5 51 130 - 437
Capital expenditures 1,303 319 485 1,311 20 - 3,438
Total assets (billions) 14.3 8.2 8.8 9.0 13.8 (9.9} 44.2
2002
Total revenue from external customers $4,410 $%,008 $2,7067 $1,629 $ 250 $ 214 310,218
Intersegment revenue 51 388 23 9D 568 {1,218) —
Total operating revenue 4,461 1,394 2,730 1,719 818 {204) 10,218
Interest and related charges 234 56 173 83 &44 {248) 945
Depreciation, deplefion and amortization 296 98 302 502 60 - 1,258
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 19 1] — 5 {23) - 11
Income tax expense [benefit) 330 172 261 165 {187} - &381
Net income 561 268 422 380 (269) - 1,362
Investment in equity method investees 148 68 - 53 234 -— 503
Capital expenditures 559 273 459 1,492 45 — 2,828
Total assets (billions) 1.7 6.7 7.9 7.8 13.4 {7.5) 40.0
2001
Tota! revenue from external customers $4,344 $1,423 $3,179 $1,354 $ 258 — $10,558
Intersegment revenue 2 388 15 105 626 (1,137) -
Total operating revenue 4,346 1,811 3,194 1,460 - 884 (1,137) 10,558
Interest and related charges 259 69 191 64 610 (196) %97
Depreciation, depletion and amortization an 108 299 364 163 — 1,245
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 24 10 - 5 (3) - 36
Income fax expense |benefif) 342 173 166 145 {456) —_ 370
Net income ¢ 311 § 268 $ 3211 $ 320 $ (866) - $ 344

As of both December 31, 2003 and 2002, approximately 3%
of Dominion’s total long-lived assets were associated with interna-
tional operations. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, approximately 2% and 1%, respectively, of operating rev-
enues were asscciated with international operations.
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28. Gas and Oil Producing Activities
(unaudited)

Capitalized Costs

The aggregate amounts of costs capitalized for gas and oil pro-
ducing activities, and related aggregate amounts of accumulated
depreciation, depletion and amortization, at December 31, 2003
and 2002 follow:

{millions) 2003 2002
Capitalized costs of:
Proved properties $7,561 $6,265
Unproved properties 1,721 1,440

9,282 7,705

Accumulated depreciation of:

Proved properties 1,476 1,212
Unproved properties 126 151
1,602 1,363

Net capitalized costs $7,680 $6,342

Total Costs Incurred
The following costs were incurred in gas and oil producing activities during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

2003 2002 2001
United United United
Total States Canada Toial Siagtes Canada Total Stgites Conada
{millions)
Property acquisition costs: .
Proved properties $ 181 $ 181 —_ $ 243 §$§ 243 - 51,586 §1,586 -
Unproved properties 138 125 $8 177 170 $7 908 897 $ 11
314 306 8 420 413 7 2,494 2,483 11
Exploration costs 291 266 25 267 260 7 305 305 -
Development costs(l] 667 604 63 760 679 81 512 395 117
Total $1,272 $1,176 $96 $1,447 $1,352 $95 $3,311 $3,183 $128

{1) Development costs incurred for proved undeveloped reserves were $182 million, $223 million and $133 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Results of Operations

Dominion cautions that the following standardized disclosures required by the FASB do not represent the results of operations based on
its historical financial statements. In addition to requiring different determinations of revenue and costs, the disclosures exclude the
impact of interest expense and corporate overhead.

2003 2002 2001
United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States  Canada
(millions)
Revenue (net of royalties) from:
Sales to nonaffiliated companies $1,736  $1,552 $184 $1,396  $1,257 $139 $1,144 § 920 $224
Transfers to other operations 185 185 - 97 o7 - 114 114 -
Total 1,921 1,737 184 1,403 1,352 139 1,258 1,034 224
Less:
Production {liffing) costs 357 294 63 272 220 32 220 162 58
Depreciation, depletion
and amortization 526 470 56 502 452 50 358 307 51
Income fax expense 356 350 6 222 209 13 208 162 46
Results of operations $ 682 § 623 $ 59 $ 497 $ 473 $ 24 $ 472 $ 403 $ &9
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Company-Qwned Reserves

Estimated net quantities of proved gas and oil {including condensate) reserves in the United States and Canada at December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, and changes in the reserves during those years, are shown in the two schedules that follow.

2003 2002 2001
United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada
{billion cubic feef)
Proved developed and
undeveloped reserves ~ Gas
At January 1 5,098 4,458 640 4,090 3,517 573 2,337 1,858 470
Changes in reserves:
Extensions, discoveries and
other additions 821 767 54 874 769 1035 503 394 109
Revisions of previous estimates (147) (71) (76) 158 145 13 (24) {64) 40
Production (396) {346) {50) (399) (3486) {53) (293) (238) (57)
Purchases of gas in place 133 133 — 381 379 2 1,578 1,576 2
Sales of gas in place (140) (140) - (6) (6) - () £)] -
At December 31 5,369 4,801 568 5,098 4,858 640 4,090 3,517 573
Proved developed reserves —Gas
At January 1 4,035 3,549 486 3.466 3,026 440 1.954 1,593 361
At December 31 4,006 3,553 453 4,035 3,549 486 3,466 3,026 449
Proved developed and
undeveloped reserves— Oil
{thousands of barrels)
At January 1 169,230 138,798 30,432 140,567 115,988 24,579 75,342 51,072 24,270
Changes in reserves:
Extensions, discoveries and
other additions 13,223 7,818 5,405 24,326 24,273 33 40,676 37,401 3,275
Revisions of previous estimates 697 1,433 {736) 11,165 4,293 6,872 {(¥,617) (165) (1,452)
Production (8,723) (7.642) (1,081) (9,725) (8,653) (1,073} (7,.563) (6,534) (1,529
Purchases of oil in place 380 380 —_ 2,928 2,928 —_ 34,619 34,604 15
Sates of oil in place (4,873) (4,873} - (31) (31} - {790) (753) -
Af December 31 169,934 135,914 34,020 169,230 © 138,798 30,432 140,567 115,988 24,579
Proved developed reserves—Oil
At January 1 65,823 47,759 18,064 63,777 46,473 17,304 36,236 21,709 14,527
At December 31 59,754 42,347 17,407 65,823 47,759 18,064 63,777 46473 17,304

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows and Changes Therein
The following tabulation has been prepared in accordance with the FASB's rules for disclosure of a standardized measure of discounted

future net cash flows relating to proved gas and oil reserve quantities owned by Dominion.

2003 2G02 2001
United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada
{millions)
Future cash inflows!! $36,486 §$32,922 $3,564 $28,337 §$25,344 $2,993 $12,350 $11,161 $1,189
Less:
Future development costs!?! 1,505 1,391 114 1,092 1,005 87 845 770 75
Future production costs 5,582 4,765 817 3,603 2,979 624 3,571 3,091 480
Future income tax expense {benefit) 9,457 8,715 742 7,582 6,904 678 1,987 2,026 (109)
Future cash flows 19,942 18,051 1,891 16,060 14,456 1,604 8,017 5,274 743
Less annual discount {10% a year) 10,709 9,745 964 8,255 7,636 819 2,804 2,513 221
Standardized measu-e of discounted
future net cash flows!?! $ 9,233 $ 8,306 §$ 927 $ 7,805 $ 7,020 $ 785 $ 3,213 $ 2,761 § 452

(1) Amounts exclude the effect of derivative instruments designated as hedges of future sales of production at year end.
(2) Estimated future development costs, excluding abandonment, for proven undeveloped reserves are estimated to be $381 million, $279 million, and $171 miliion for

2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
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in the foregoing determination of future cash inflows, sales
prices for gas and oil were based on contractual arrangements or
market prices at yearend. Future costs of developing and produc-
ing the proved gas and oil reserves reported at the end of each
year shown were based on costs determined at each such year
end, assuming the continuation of existing economic conditions.
Future income taxes were computed by applying the appropriate
yearend or future statutory tax rate to future pretax net cash
flows, less the tax basis of the properties involved, and giving
effect to tax deductions, permanent differences and tax credits.

It is not intended that the FASB's standardized measure of dis-
counted future net cash flows represent the fair market value of
Dominion’s proved reserves. Dominion cautions that the disclo-
sures shown are based on estimates of proved reserve quantities
and future production schedules which are inherently imprecise
and subiject fo revision, and the 10% discount rate is arbitrary. In
addition, costs and prices as of the measurement date are used
in the deferminations, and no value may be assigned io probable

or possible reserves.
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The following tabulation is a summary of changes between
the total standardized measure of discounted future net cash
flows at the beginning and end of each year.

2003 2002 2001

{millions)
Standardized measure of discounted
future net cash flows at January 1 $7,805 $3213 48,176
Changes in the year resulting from:
Sales and transfers of gas and oil
produced during the year, less
production costs (1,563) (1,221} (1,088)
Prices and production and
development costs related to
future production 480 3,975 {2,793)

Extensions, discoveries and other

additions, less production and

development costs 1,920 2,039 767
Previously estimated development

costs incurred during the year 182 223 134
Revisions of previous quantity

estimates (918) (152) 62
Accretion of discount 1,149 426 1,¥17
Income taxes {679) (2,63%9) 2,949
Acquisition of Louis Dreyfus - 1,347
Cther purchases and sales of

proved reserves in place 347 799 102
Other (principally timing

of production) 510 1,142 (620)

Standardized measure of
discounted future net cash flows
at December 31 $9,233 $7805 § 3,213




20. Quarterly Financial and Common Stock Data (unaudited)

A summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 follows. Amounts reflect all adjust-
ments, consisting of only normal recurring accruals, necessary in the opinion of management for a fair statement of the results for the

interim periods. Results for inferim periods may fluctuate as a result of weather conditions, changes in rates and other factors. As
described in Note 9, Dominion reported the operations of DTl as discontinued operations beginning in the fourth quarter of 2003, Prior
quarters for 2003 have been restated to conform to this presentation. All differences between amounts previously reported in Dominion’s
Quarterly Reports on Forms 10-Q during 2003 are a result of reporting the results of operations of Dominion’s telecommunications busi-

ness as discontinued operations.

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
{millions, except per share amounts)
2003
Operating revenue $3,579 $2,630 $2,853 $3,016 $12,078
Income from operations 1,014 577 698 272 2,561
Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles 409 246 326 (32) 949
Net income (loss) 508 240 (256) (174) 318
Basic EPS:
Income {loss} from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles 1.33 0.78 1.01 (0.10} 2.99
Net income (loss) 1.64 0.76 (0.79) (0.54) 1.00
Diluted EPS:
incame {loss} from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting principles 1.32 0.78 1.01 {0.10) 2,98
Net income (loss) ' 1.64 0.76 (0.79) (0.54) 1.00
Dividends paid per share 0.645 0.645 0.645 0.645 2.58

Common stock prices (high-low}

$58.62-51.74

$65.95-54.75

$64.28-58.05

$64.45-59.27

$65.95-51.74

2002

Operating revenue $2,634 $2,332 $2,545 $2,707 $10,218
income from operatians 711 525 836 713 2,385
Net income 322 272 430 338 1,362
Basic EPS 1.21 0.98 1.55 1.12 4.85
Diluted EPS 1.20 0.97 1.54 1.12 4.82
Dividends paid per share 0.643 0.643 0.643 0.645 2.58

Common stock prices (high-low)

$65.97-56.39

$67.06-60.59

$66.15-47.97

$55.74-35.40

$67.06-35.40
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Directors ana Ufrricers

Directors

Thos. E. Capps, 68
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Susan B. Allen, 42
Community Volunteer

Peter W. Brown, M.D., 61
Physician, Virginia Surgical Associates

Ronald J. Calise, 55
Former Managing Director, Global Power Group,
Investment Banking Division, lehman Brothers

George A. Bovidsen, Jr., 65
Retired Chairman, Dominion Resources, Inc.

John W, Harris, 56
President, Lincoln Harris, LLC {real estate consulting firm)

Robert 5. Jepsonr, Jn, 61

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Jepson Associates, Inc. (private investments)
Chairman, Jepson Vineyards, Lid.

Benjamin J. Lambert, 11, 67
Optometrist

Richard L. Leatherwoed, 64
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer, CSX Equipment

Margaret A. McKennao, 58
President, Lesley University

Kenneth A. Rendell, 76
Corporate director of various companies

Frarnk 8. Roysl, M.D., 64
Physician

§. Dallas Simmoens, 64
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer,
Dallas Simmons & Associates {management consulting firm)

Robert H. Spilman, 76
President, Spilman Properties, Inc. (private investments)

David A. Wellaerd, 66
Founding Chairman of the Board, Emeritus, Exempla Healthcare
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Officers

Thomas F. Farrell, i, 49
President and Chief Operating Officer

Thomas N. Chewning, 58
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Jay L, Johnson, 57
Executive Vice President
{President and Chief Executive Officer, Dominion Delivery)

Duane €. Radtke, 55

Executive Vice President

{President and Chief Executive Officer,
Dominion Exploration & Production)

Mary C. Doswell, 45

Senior Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer
{President and Chief Executive Officer,

Dominion Resources Services)

Paul B. Koonce, 44
(Chief Executive Officer, Dominion Energy)

Mark F McBetirick, 46
(President and Chief Executive Officer, Dominion Generation)

Eva 8. Hardy, 59
Senior Vice President— External Affairs
& Corporate Communications

G. Scoit Hetzer, 47
Senior Vice President and Treasurer

James L. Sanderlin, 62
Senior Vice President— Law

Thomas B. Beamn, 48
Vice President— Financial Management

William €. Hell, Jr., 50
Vice President— External Affairs & Corporate Communications

Simen €. Hodges, 42
Vice President— Financial Planning

Karen E. Hunter, 49
Vice President— Tax

Steven A. Rogers, 42
Vice President, Controller and Principal Accounting Officer

James F Stutts, 59
Vice President and General Counsel

Patricie A. Wilkersen, 48
Vice President and Corporate Secretary




Shareholder Information

Dominion Resources Services, Inc. is the transfer agent and reg-
istrar for Dominion’s common stock. Qur Shareholder Services
staff provides personal assistance for any inquiries Monday
through Friday from 9 a.m. to noon and from 1 p.m. to 4 p.m.
(EST). In additior, automated information is available 24 hours
a day through our voice response system.

1-800-552-4034 (toll free)
1-804-775-2500

Maijor press releases and other company information may be
obtained by visiting our Web site at www.dom.com.
Shareholders may also obtain account-specific information by
visiting this site. To sign up for this service, visit www.dom.com
and click on “Investors;” then point to “Stock Information” and
select “Access Your Account” Once you have accessed the
sign-in page, click on “First Time Visitor” in the upper-left corner
of the screen and follow the directions for “New Member Sign
Up.” After you have signed up, you will be able to monitor
your account, make changes and review your Dominion Direct®
statements at your convenience.

Birect Stock Purchase Plan

You may buy Dominion common stock directly from the
company through Dominion Direct. Please contact Shareholder
Services for a prospectus and enrollment form or visit
www.dom.com.

Commeon Steclk Listing
New York Stock Exchange
Trading symbol: D

Common Stocle Price Range

2003 2002
High Low High Low
First Quarter $58.62 $51.74 $65.97 $56.39
Second Quarter 65.95 54.75 67.06 60.59
Third Quarter 64.28 58.05 66.15 47.97
Fourth Quarter 64.45 59.27 55.74 35.4C
Year $65.95 $51.74 $67.06 $35.40

Dividends on Dominion common stock are paid as declared by
the board. Dividends are typically paid on the 20th of March,
June, September and December. Dividends can be paid by
check or electronic deposit, or they may be reinvested.

On December 31, 2003, there were approximately 175,000
registered shareholders, including approximately 84,000 certifi-
cate holders. ,

Annual Meeting

This year's Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Dominion
Resources, Inc. will be held Friday, April 23, ot 9:30 a.m. (EST)
at Dominion East Ohio’s Corporate Office located at 55th
Street Center, 1201 East 55th Street, Cleveland, Chio.

Corporate Sireet Address
Dominion Resources, Inc.

120 Tredegar Street
Richmond, Virginia 23219

Mailing Address

Dominion Resources, Inc.

P.O. Box 26532

Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Web Site

www.dom.com

Dominion’s Annual Report is available on its Web site.
Keyword: Annua!l Report

Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Richmond, Virginia

Shareholider inquiries
Shareholder_Services@dom.com

Dominion Resources Services, Inc.
Shareholder Services

P.O. Box 26532

Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Additional Information

Copies of Dominion's reports on Form 10K, Form 10-Q and
Form 8K are available without charge. These items can be
viewed by visiting www.dom.com, or requests for these items
can be made by writing to:

Investor Relations Department

Dominion Resources, Inc.
P.O. Box 26532
Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Or by e-mail to:
Investor_Relations @ dom.com

Electronic Reports

Our proxy statement and annual report are available electroni-
cally. Please refer to the proxy card that was mailed to share-
holders with this annual report for more information.
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On the Cover

Top row, left to right:

1. Cleveland is headquarters
for Dominion East Ohio,
which serves about 1.2 mil-
lion customers.

2, Dominion’s Cove Point
LNG import terminal has
docks for inbound tankers,
LNG storage tanks, vaporiz-
ers, and other equipment

to convert LNG from liquid
back into natural gas.

3. At Surry Power Station, the
new vessel head is upended
and readied to be lowered.

2nd row, left to right:

1. Roy Hollowell and
Steve Chafin study circuit
maps at the Norfolk
Operations Center during
Isabel restoration efforts.

2. Dominion Generation
installed the last new reactor
vessel head at Surry Power
Station in the fall.
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3rd row, left to right:

1. Sonora Field in west Texas
has more than 3,800 produc-
ing wells.

2. Crews from 21 different
mutual-aid companies and 25
contractors helped Dominion
crews restore power fo cus-
tomers after Hurricane Isabel.

3. Potable water is made
on site for workers at
Dominion’s West Cameron
100 shelf discovery in the
Gulf of Mexico. Mike
McNeely, senior electrician,
adjusts watermaker controls.

4. Elwood Power Station
outside Chicago sells its out-
put under contract.

4th row, left to right:

1. The Devils Tower spar
platform has been installed
in the deepwater of the Gulf
of Mexico and is expected
to begin production in 2004.

2. State Line Power Station

3. Fuel diversity is an impor-
tant advantage at Dominion
Generation, which includes
not only coal, but natural gas,
nuclear power and hydro-
electric stations in its fleet.

5th row, left to right:

1. Dominion’s Customer Call
Centers handled a record-
brecking 12,831,225 calls
in 2003 due to Isabel.
Tresha Mclean works at the
Richmond center.

2. Switching stations at

each Dominion generating
station transform voltage so
electricity can trave! through
the company’s 6,100-mile
transmission system to its

2.2 million electric customers.

3. Dominion plans to join

a regional fransmission orga-
nization to promote more
efficient regional transmission
coordination.

Bottom row, left to right:

1. Dominion Generation
placed a 545-megawatt
combined-cycle unit at

its Possum Point Power Station
in Northern Virginia into
operation July 1.

2, ING is pumped from
ships at Cove Point's offshore
dock through a series of
pipes to insulated storage
tanks. A portion of the pipes
are underwater.

3. Aldo Wiggins, under-
ground lineman in Virginia
Beach, is still able to smile
during power restoration
after Isabel.

4. Dominion Cove Point has
a storage capacity of 5 bil

lion cubic feet (BCF) and

a daily send-out capacity of
1 BCF— enough energy to -
run about 3.4 million homes
every day.
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